
Document Number: 2023723 V1 

AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL,  
HELD ELECTRONICALLY FROM CITY HALL,  
141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, ON 
MONDAY, MARCH 1, 2021 AT 5:30 PM 

 
 

“Live” Broadcast via City Website www.cnv.org/LiveStreaming 
Complete Agenda Package available at www.cnv.org/CouncilMeetings 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, March 1, 2021 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, February 22, 2021 
 
PROCLAMATION 
 

World Lymphedema Day – March 6, 2021 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – 63 Mahon Avenue 
 
“Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8819” (Brad Lamoureux / 
Lamoureux Architect Incorporated, 63 Mahon Avenue, CD-684 Text Amendment) would 
amend the current Comprehensive Development 684 (CD-684) Zone to add 1 floor on 
top of the original 2.5 storey approval, and to increase the allowable density from 1.90 
times the lot area to 2.60 times the lot area for a multi-use space for a private school. 
Eleven vehicle parking stalls are provided in the underground parkade, with another 11 
parking stalls to be provided in an off-site location.  
 
Bylaw No. 8819 to be considered under Item 3. 
 

AGENDA 
 
Staff presentation 
Applicant presentation 
Representations from the public 
Questions from Council 
Motion to conclude the Public Hearing 

  

http://www.cnv.org/LiveStreaming
http://www.cnv.org/CouncilMeetings


THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – March 1, 2021 Page 2 

 
BYLAW – THIRD READING 
 
3. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8819” 

(Brad Lamoureux / Lamoureux Architect Incorporated, 63 Mahon Avenue, 
CD-684 Text Amendment) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8819” 
(Brad Lamoureux / Lamoureux Architect Incorporated, 63 Mahon Avenue, 
CD-684 Text Amendment) be given third reading. 

 
ADJOURN 
 



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 
 

Document Number: 1914910 V1 

 
PUBLIC HEARING GUIDELINES FOR ELECTRONIC MEETINGS 

 
Public Hearings are included as part of a Regular Council agenda and governed by the 
provisions of the Local Government Act.   
 
A Public Hearing is held to allow the public an opportunity to make representations to 
Council – in person at the Public Hearing or by written submission – on a proposed 
amendment to the City's Official Community Plan and/or Zoning Bylaw.  All persons who 
believe their interest in property is affected by a proposed bylaw(s) are afforded a 
reasonable opportunity to be heard, voice concerns or present written submissions 
regarding matters contained within the bylaw(s). 
 
All written submissions and representations made at the Public Hearing form part of the 
official public record.  Minutes of the Public Hearing and a video recording of the 
proceedings will be posted on the City’s website at cnv.org. 
 
All written submissions must include the person’s name and address.  If this information 
is not provided, it cannot be included as part of the public record.  Electronic 
submissions are preferred, and hand-delivered or mailed submissions will also be 
accepted.  The deadline to submit email submissions is 12:00 noon on the day of the 
Public Hearing.  Due to COVID-19, safety quarantine restrictions have been put in place 
and the deadline for submissions by mail or delivery to City Hall is 4:00 pm on the 
Friday prior to the Monday Public Hearing (a minimum of one clear day prior to the 
Public Hearing). 
 
If persons wish to speak at the Public Hearing, we ask that everyone pre-register to be 
placed on the speaker’s list.  The pre-registration form is available at 
cnv.org/PublicHearings, or speakers can pre-register by contacting the Corporate 
Officer’s office.  All pre-registrations must be submitted no later than 12:00 noon on the 
day of the Public Hearing, to allow City staff time to contact all participants and provide 
them with call-in/online access instructions. 
 
Comments from the public must specifically relate to the proposed bylaw(s).  Speakers 
are asked to avoid repetitive comments and not to divert to other matters. 
 
Speakers will be asked to confirm their name and address for the record and will be 
provided one, 5-minute opportunity to present their comments.  There will be no 
opportunity to speak a second time.  After all persons who have pre-registered have 
spoken, the Mayor (Chair) will ask if anyone else from the public has new information to 
provide.   Speakers who have not pre-registered will also have an opportunity to provide 
input at cnv.org/PublicHearings.  Call-in details will be displayed on-screen at the Public 
Hearing (watch web livestream).  Once all registered speakers have provided input, the 
Mayor will call for a recess to allow additional speakers time to phone in. 
  

Continued… 



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 
 

Document Number: 1914910 V1 

 
PUBLIC HEARING GUIDELINES FOR ELECTRONIC MEETINGS 

(continued) 
 
Everyone will be given a reasonable opportunity to be heard and no one should feel 
discouraged or prevented from making their views known.  The City asks for everyone’s 
patience during the electronic Public Hearing. 
 
Procedural rules for the conduct of the Public Hearing are set at the call of the Chair 
and Council’s main function is to listen to the views of the public regarding the change 
of land use in the proposed bylaw(s).  It is not the function of Council to debate the 
merits of an application with speakers.  Questions from members of the public and 
Council must be addressed through the Chair. 
 
Once the Public Hearing concludes, no further information or submissions can be 
considered by Council. 
 
Following adjournment of the Public Hearing, the Regular meeting reconvenes and the 
Zoning and/or Official Community Plan bylaw amendment(s) are discussed and debated 
by members of Council, followed by consideration of third reading of the bylaw(s). 
 



Document Number: 2022948 

  
 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL, HELD 

ELECTRONICALLY FROM CITY HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH 
VANCOUVER, BC, ON MONDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 2021 

 
 
PRESENT 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

 
 
STAFF MEMBERS 
 

Mayor L. Buchanan 
Councillor H. Back 
Councillor D. Bell 
Councillor A. Girard 
Councillor T. Hu 
Councillor J. McIlroy 
Councillor T. Valente 
 

L. McCarthy, CAO 
K. Graham, Corporate Officer 
C. Baird, Deputy Corporate Officer 
J. Peters, Assistant City Clerk 
H. Granger, City Solicitor 
B. Themens, Director, Finance 
L. Garber, Deputy Director, Finance 
D. Van Heerden, Manager, Financial Planning 
J. Svancara, Budget Analyst 
B. Pearce, Director, Strategic and Corporate Services 
H. Reinhold, Deputy Director, Strategic and Corporate Services 
G. Munro, Manager, Information Technology 
B. Lightfoot, Manager, Real Estate 
M. Epp, Director, Planning and Development 
Y. Zeng, Manager, Community Planning 
R. de St. Croix, Manager, Long Range and Community Planning 
T. Ryce, Chief Building Official 
D. Johnson, Development Planner 
K. Magnusson, Deputy Director, Engineering, Parks and 

Environment 
M. Hunter, Manager, Parks and Environment 
R. Skene, Director, Community and Partner Engagement 
L. Orr, Deputy Director, Community and Partner Engagement 
L. Herman, Community Development Coordinator 
G. Schalk, Fire Chief 
S. Fraser, Manager, Police Support Services 
H. Turner, Director, North Vancouver Recreation and Culture 
G. Houg, Manager, Maintenance and Engineering Services, North 

Vancouver Recreation and Culture 
L. Phillips, Public Art Officer, North Vancouver Recreation and 
Culture 
D. Hutchison Koep, Chief Librarian 

 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Hu 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, February 22, 2021 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 2 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 22, 2021 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, February 8, 2021 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
PROCLAMATION 
 
Mayor Buchanan declared the following proclamation: 
 

Rare Disease Day – February 28, 2021 – read by Councillor Bell 
 
PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 
 
Nil. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

THAT the recommendation listed within the “Consent Agenda” be approved. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
START OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
*3. Board in Brief, Metro Vancouver Regional District, January 29, 2021 

– File: 01-0400-60-0006/2020 
 
 Re: Metro Vancouver – Board in Brief 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

THAT the correspondence from Metro Vancouver, dated January 29, 2021, regarding 
the “Metro Vancouver – Board in Brief”, be received and filed. 
 

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 
 

END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 3 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 22, 2021 

PUBLIC HEARING – 145-153 East 4th Street 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT the meeting recess to the Public Hearing regarding  “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 
6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8817” (Barry Savage / Integra Architecture Inc., 
145-153 East 4th Street, CD-732). 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting recessed to the Public Hearing at 5:42 pm and reconvened at 7:30 pm. 
 
BYLAW – THIRD READING 
 
4. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8817” (Barry Savage / 

Integra Architecture Inc., 145-153 East 4th Street, CD-732) 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT second reading of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, 
No. 8817” (Barry Savage / Integra Architecture Inc., 145-153 East 4th Street, CD-732) 
be rescinded; 
 
THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8817” (Barry 
Savage / Integra Architecture Inc., 145-153 East 4th Street, CD-732) be amended as 
follows: 
 

 Delete existing item B(7); 
 Renumber existing item B(8) to B(7); and  
 Add a new Item “B8 Section 906(4)(d) Parking Space access directly from Lane 

shall not apply”; 
 
AND THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8817” 
(Barry Savage / Integra Architecture Inc., 145-153 East 4th Street, CD-732) be given 
second reading, as amended. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8817” (Barry 
Savage / Integra Architecture Inc., 145-153 East 4th Street, CD-732) be given third 
reading. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 4 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 22, 2021 

DELEGATION 
 

Reid Shier, Executive Director, The Polygon Gallery 
 
Re: The Polygon Gallery COVID-19 Operational Update 
 

Jessica Bouchard, Associate Director, The Polygon Gallery, provided a PowerPoint 
presentation regarding the “The Polygon Gallery COVID-19 Operational Update” and she and 
Reid Shier, Executive Director, responded to questions of Council. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
5. Reid Shier, The Polygon Gallery, January 22, 2021 – File: 15-7780-20-0002/2021 
 
 Re: The Polygon Gallery COVID-19 Operational Update 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard 

 
THAT the correspondence from Reid Shier, The Polygon Gallery, dated January 22, 
2021, regarding “The Polygon Gallery COVID-19 Operational Update”, be received 
with thanks. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

BYLAW – ADOPTION 
 
Mayor Buchanan and Councillor Valente recused themselves at 8:31 pm, declaring a 
potential conflict of interest regarding Item 6 – “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment 
Bylaw, 2020, No. 8808” (Eggs Cana / Oana Nicoara, 115 East 1st Street, CD-731). Councillor 
Back assumed the role of Chair. 
 
6. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2020, No. 8808” (Eggs Cana / 

Oana Nicoara, 115 East 1st Street, CD-731) 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2020, No. 8808” (Eggs 
Cana / Oana Nicoara, 115 East 1st Street, CD-731) be adopted, signed by the Mayor 
and Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate seal. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
(by members remaining) 

 
Mayor Buchanan returned at 8:32 pm and Councillor Valente returned at 8:35 pm. 
 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 5 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 22, 2021 

REPORTS 
 
7. Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program – COVID-19 Resilience Infrastructure 

Stream – Esplanade Complete Street Application – File: 05-1855-03-0001/2021 
 

Report: Project Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure, February 10, 2021 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Project Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure, dated 
February 10, 2021, entitled “Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program – COVID-19 
Resilience Infrastructure Stream – Esplanade Complete Street Application”: 
 
THAT staff be directed to submit a grant application in the amount of $2.68 million for 
the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program – COVID-19 Resilience Infrastructure 
Stream – Esplanade Complete Street Infrastructure Project; 
 
AND THAT Council support the project and commit to any associated ineligible costs 
and cost overruns of the project. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
8. Union of British Columbia Municipalities (UBCM) Poverty Reduction Planning and Action 

Program – North Shore Grant Application – File: 10-5080-01-0001/2021 
 

Report: Community Planner, February 10, 2021 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Back 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Community Planner, dated February 10, 2021, entitled 
“UBCM Poverty Reduction Planning and Action Program – North Shore Grant 
Application”: 
 
THAT staff be directed to work with the District of North Vancouver and the District of 
West Vancouver to submit a joint regional application for the North Shore, under 
Stream 1 of the UBCM Poverty Reduction Planning and Action Program for 2021; 
 
THAT Council support the District of West Vancouver as the primary applicant for the 
North Shore application, to apply for, receive and manage the 2021 UBCM Poverty 
Reduction Planning and Action Program grant funding on behalf of the City of North 
Vancouver; 
 
AND THAT, subject to confirmation that full funding is available, the project be 
authorized to proceed. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 6 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 22, 2021 

REPORTS – Continued 
 
9. Council Appointments to the Civic Youth Awards, Scholarships and Youth Initiatives 

Grants Committee – File: 01-0360-20-0010/2021 
 

Report: Community Development Coordinator, February 10, 2021 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Community Development Coordinator, dated February 
10, 2021, entitled “Council Appointments to the Civic Youth Awards, Scholarships and 
Youth Initiatives Grants Committee”: 
 
THAT Councillor Girard and Councillor Hu be appointed to the 2021 Civic Youth 
Awards, Scholarships and Youth Initiatives Grants Committee; 
 
AND THAT the North Vancouver Board of Education (School District No. 44) be invited 
to appoint one City School Trustee to be a member of the 2021 Civic Youth Awards, 
Scholarships and Youth Initiatives Grants Committee, to review youth award 
nominations, scholarship applications and youth grants submitted for the year 2021. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

10. 2021-2030 Capital Plan – File: 05-1705-30-0019/2021 
 

Report: Director, Finance, February 10, 2021 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Director, Finance, dated February 10, 2021, entitled 
“2021-2030 Capital Plan”: 
 
THAT the 2021-2030 Capital Plan for the City of North Vancouver be endorsed; 
 
AND THAT resolutions or bylaws to appropriate funding for the projects included in the 
2021 Capital Budget be brought forward by staff in a timely manner. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
11. 2021 Early Approvals – Funding Appropriations #2101 and #2102 

– File: 05-1705-30-0019/2021 
 

Report: Director, Finance, February 10, 2021 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Director, Finance, dated February 10, 2021, entitled 
“2021 Early Approvals – Funding Appropriations #2101 and #2102”: 
  
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2101) an amount of $150,000 be appropriated from the 
General Capital Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the 2021 Capital Plan; 

 

Continued… 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 7 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 22, 2021 

REPORTS – Continued 
 

11. 2021 Early Approvals – Funding Appropriations #2101 and #2102 
– File: 05-1705-30-0019/2021 – Continued  
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2102) an amount of $51,000 be appropriated from the 
Engineering Equipment Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the 2021 Capital 
Plan; 
 
AND THAT should any of the amounts remain unexpended as at December 31, 2024, 
the unexpended balances shall be returned to the credit of the respective fund.  

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 
 

 Mayor Buchanan reported that the City received an award from HUB for First Street 
Mobility Corridor Infrastructure Improvement. 

 Mayor Buchanan announced that Connie Rabold, Manager, Communications, will 
retire from the City on February 26, 2021, and thanked her for her years of service. 

 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
Nil. 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
Mayor Buchanan commented that she and Councillor McIlroy intend to bring forward a Notice of 
Motion on Federal Declaration – Opioid Crisis at the Regular Council meeting of March 8, 2021. 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

THAT Council recess to the Committee of the Whole (Closed Session) pursuant to the 
Community Charter, Sections 90(1)(a) [personal information], 90(1)(e) [land matter], 
90(1)(f) [law enforcement matter] and 90(1)(m) [exclusion under another enactment]. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting recessed to the Committee of the Whole (Closed Session) at 9:25 pm and 
reconvened at 10:38 pm. 
 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 8 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 22, 2021 

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 
 
12. Preliminary Development Application Density Transfer Consideration – 114-132 West 

15th (Polygon 338 Development Ltd. / IBI Group Architects Canada Inc.)  
 – File: 08-3030-20-0197/1 
 

Report: Planner 2 and Manager, Real Estate, February 17, 2021 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Girard  
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2 and Manager, Real Estate, dated February 
17, 2021, entitled “Preliminary Development Application Density Transfer 
Consideration – 114-132 West 15th (Polygon 338 Development Ltd. / IBC Group 
Architects Canada Inc.)”: 
 
THAT staff be directed to process the proposed rezoning application, including 
contemplated density transfer from the City-owned ‘donor’ site at 2300 Lonsdale 
Avenue and 116 East 23rd Street; 
 
THAT the potential sale of transferrable density to Polygon 338 Development Ltd., at a 
rate of $250 per square foot, valid for 24 months from the date of this report, be 
subject to the successful completion of rezoning; 
 
AND THAT the report of the Planner 2 and Manager, Real Estate, dated February 17, 
2021, entitled “Preliminary Development Application Density Transfer Consideration – 
114-132 West 15th (Polygon 338 Development Ltd. / IBI Group Architects Canada 
Inc.)”, remain in the Closed session. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
13. Appointments to the Advisory Design Panel – File: 01-0360-20-0001/2021 
 

Report: Corporate Officer, February 10, 2021 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Girard  
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Corporate Officer, dated February 10, 2021, entitled 
“Appointments to the Advisory Design Panel”: 
 
THAT Darren Burns and Maryam Tashakor be appointed as the Architect 
Representatives to the Advisory Design Panel for a 2-year term beginning February 
23, 2021 and concluding January 31, 2023; 
 
THAT Keith Ross be reappointed as the Landscape Architect Representative to the 
Advisory Design Panel for a 2-year term beginning February 23, 2021 and concluding 
January 31, 2023; 
 
THAT Mehrdad Rahbar be appointed as the Business Representative to the Advisory 
Design Panel for a 2-year term beginning February 23, 2021 and concluding January 
31, 2023; 
 

Continued… 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 9 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 22, 2021 

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) – Continued  
 

13. Appointments to the Advisory Design Panel – File: 01-0360-20-0001/2021 – Continued  
 
THAT Sergeant Kevin Bracewell be endorsed as the RCMP appointment to the 
Advisory Design Panel for a 1-year term beginning February 23, 2021 and concluding 
January 31, 2022; 
 
THAT Kaylen Blomkamp be appointed as the Public Art Representative to the 
Advisory Design Panel for a 2-year term beginning February 23, 2021 and concluding 
January 31, 2023; 
 
AND THAT the report of the Corporate Officer, dated February 10, 2021, entitled 
“Appointments to the Advisory Design Panel”, remain in the Closed session. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

14. Appointments to the Social Planning Advisory Committee  
– File: 01-0360-20-0088/2021 

 
Report: Corporate Officer, February 10, 2021 

 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Girard  
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Corporate Officer, dated February 10, 2021, entitled 
“Appointments to the Social Planning Advisory Committee”: 
 
THAT Raashi Ahluwalia, June Maynard and Martyna Purchla be appointed to the 
Social Planning Advisory Committee for a 2-year term beginning February 23, 2021 
and concluding January 31, 2023; 
 
AND THAT the report of the Corporate Officer, dated February 10, 2021, entitled 
“Appointments to the Social Planning Advisory Committee”, remain in the Closed 
session. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
15. Appointment to the Climate and Environment Advisory Task Force  
 – File: 01-0360-20-0109/2021 
 

Report: Corporate Officer, February 10, 2021 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Girard  
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Corporate Officer, dated February 10, 2021, entitled 
“Appointment to the Climate and Environment Advisory Task Force”: 
 
THAT Keegan Casidy be appointed to the Climate and Environment Advisory Task 
Force for the remainder of the term; 
 
AND THAT the report of the Corporate Officer, dated February 10, 2021, entitled 
“Appointment to the Climate and Environment Advisory Task Force”, remain in the 
Closed session. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 10 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 22, 2021 

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) – Continued  
 

16. Law Enforcement Matter – File: 01-0230-20-0056/2021 
 
 Report:  Manager, Communications, February 10, 2021 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Girard  
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Manager, Communications, dated February 10, 2021, 
regarding a law enforcement matter: 
 
THAT the action taken by the Committee of the Whole (Closed Session) be ratified; 
 
AND THAT the wording of the recommendation and the report of the Manager, 
Communications, dated February 10, 2021, remain in the Closed session. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
ADJOURN 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Back 
 
 THAT the meeting adjourn. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:39 pm. 
 
 
“Certified Correct by the Corporate Officer” 
____________________________________ 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Office of the Mayor 
  

CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 

BRITISH COLUMBIA 
 

cÜÉvÄtÅtà|ÉÇ 
 

WORLD LYMPHEDEMA DAY 
 

WHEREAS  lymphedema, an accumulation of lymphatic fluid that causes swelling 

in the arms, legs or other areas of the body, is an incurable condition 

affecting more than 250 million people worldwide with disfigurement, 

disabilities, discomfort and distress; and 

WHEREAS  it is estimated that up to 1 million Canadians are living with 

lymphedema; 

AND WHEREAS  by raising awareness of lymphedema and its symptoms, the Lymphatic 

Education and Research Network aims to ensure that people suffering 

from lymphedema no longer go undiagnosed, and that they receive the 

best treatment options available; 

NOW THEREFORE  I, Linda Buchanan, Mayor of the City of North Vancouver, do hereby 

proclaim March 6, 2021 as World Lymphedema Day in the City of 

North Vancouver, the traditional territories of the Squamish and Tsleil‐

Waututh Nations. 

 
So proclaimed on Monday, March 1, 2021 

 

__________________________________ 

Mayor Linda Buchanan 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: David Johnson, Development Planner

Subject: REZONING APPLICATION: 63 MAHON AVENUE (BRAD LAMOUREUX /
LAMOUREUX ARCHITECT INCORPORATED)

Date: January 21,2021 File No: 08-3400-20-031/1

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION

PURSUANT to the report of the Development Planner, dated January 21,2021, 
entitled “Rezoning Application: 63 Mahon Avenue (Brad Lamoureux / Lamoureux 
Architect Incorporated)”:

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8819” (Brad 
Lamoureux / Lamoureux Architect Incorporated, 63 Mahon Avenue, CD-684 Text 
Amendment) be considered and referred to a Public Hearing;

THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government Act,

AND THAT the community benefits listed in the January 21,2021 report in the 
section “Community Benefits” be secured, through agreements at the applicant’s 
expense and to the satisfaction of staff.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Context Map (CityDoc #1942101)
2. Project Summary Sheet (CityDoc #2008681)
3. Architectural and Landscape Plans, dated October 21, 2020 (CityDoc #2013879)
4. Written description of the proposed addition (CityDoc #2006034)
5. Transportation Study (CityDoc #1989292)
6. Public Consultation Summary (CityDoc #2003326)
7. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8819” (CityDoc 

#2014104)

Document Number: 2003101 V4



REPORT: 63 Mahon Avenue (Brad Lamoureux / Lamoureux Architect Incorporated)
Date: January 21, 2021

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to present, for Council’s consideration, a rezoning 
application for 63 Mahon Avenue to amend the CD-684 Zone in the Zoning Bylaw. This 
amendment is to permit an additional floor to the proposal that was initially approved by 
Council in February 2017, resulting in a four-storey school building, rather than the 
originally approved two and a-half storey building.

BACKGROUND

Applicant: Brad Lamoureux
Architect: Lamoureux Architect Incorporated
Official Community Plan 
Designation: Mixed-Use Level 4A (MU4A)

Existing Zoning: CD-684
Applicable Guidelines: None

On March 3, 2016, the City received a rezoning application from Alcuin College for a 
two and a half storey building to house a 200-student school located at 300 West 
Esplanade. After staff review and public input, the application was approved by Council 
on February 6, 2017 (Comprehensive Development 684 (CD-684)). Since then, the 
needs of the school have changed and the desire for a gymnasium-type of space within 
the school resulted in a request for changes to the CD-684 Zone.

The applicant has already made a Building Permit (BP) application based on the 
approved two and a half building scheme and have already begun to clear the site. The 
proposed text amendment needs to be considered and subsequently approved by 
Council first before a revision of the BP application for a four-storey scheme can be 
received by staff.

During BP review, the address of the building was changed from 300 West Esplanade 
to 63 Mahon Avenue to better reflect the main access to the proposed building.

DISCUSSION

Project Description

The proposed four storey building will support a private K to 12 school (Attachment #3). 
The first two levels will be for instructional floor area and staff space. The third level will 
function mainly as the lunchroom with additional class space and an outdoor amenity 
space for both staff and students. This space will serve as a place for socializing and 
for learning opportunities.

The proposed fourth floor would consist of a gymnasium type space that will be used by 
the school during school hours for assemblies, physical activities, presentations, 
seminars and graduation. The applicant also intends to make the gym space available 
after school hours for community and cultural gatherings that are an extension of the

Page 2 of 13



REPORT: 63 Mahon Avenue (Brad Lamoureux / Lamoureux Architect Incorporated)
Date: January 21, 2021

school’s mandate. The space would be available free of charge for not-for-profit and 
cultural groups. In addition, the applicant also intends to rent out the space for some 
portions of the after school hours in order to help the school operation financially. A full 
description of the proposed uses for the fourth floor can be found in Attachment #4.

The addition of the fourth floor would increase the density from the approved 1.90 FSR 
to 2.60 FSR and increase the building height from the approved 13.3 metres to 19.8 
metres (43.7 feet to 64.9 feet).

The requested changes to the CD-684 Zone are identified in Table #1.

Existing CD Zone 
Requirements

Proposed CD Zone 
Provisions

Zoning CD-684 (2017 approval) CD-684 (as amended)

Permitted Uses Assembly Use No change

Maximum Density 1.90 FSR 2.60 FSR

Maximum Height 15.2 m (50.0 ft.) 19.8m (64.9 ft.)

Setbacks Zero at rear lane No change

Lot Coverage 35% above the Second Floor 82% above the Second Floor

Minimum Parking 11 Parking Space

11 Parking Spaces on-site 
requirement plus 11 Parking 
Spaces off-site secured by 

agreement (see parking 
section for discussion)

Site Context and Surrounding Use

The subject property is located in Lower Lonsdale at the corner of West Esplanade and 
Mahon Avenue, with Forbes Avenue bordered to the west (Attachment #1). The site is 
preparing to begin construction of the school but is awaiting this zoning amendment 
before proceeding with the proposed fourth floor. The immediate area contains a small- 
scale commercial building and a six-storey building to the north (currently under 
construction) along with a medium scale mixed-use building to the east. Single 
detached dwellings are located across Forbes Avenue on Squamish First Nations lands. 
The subject site is also close to both Waterfront Park and Semisch Park.

The buildings and uses immediately surrounding the subject site are described in Table 
#2 below.

Page 3 of 13



REPORT: 63 Mahon Avenue (Brad Lamoureux / Lamoureux Architect Incorporated)
Date: January 21, 2021

Direction Address Description Zoning

North
Across the lane

309-311 West 1st 
Street

Under construction - a 6 storey mixed 
use building with 50 rental apartment 
units and ground floor commercial.
23.0 metres (75.43 feet)

CD-719

North
Across the lane

315 West 1sl
Street

One to two storey commercial building 
over underground parking CD-122

South
Across West 
Esplanade

267 West 
Esplanade

Three storey commercial building over 
underground parking CD-023

South
Across West 
Esplanade

Squamish First 
Nations Lands Various

Predominately 
Single Family or 
Low Density 
Residential

East
Across from
Mahon Avenue

255 West 1st
Street and 260
West Esplanade

Mixed Use building consisting of 208 
residential units and ground floor 
commercial between W. 1st Street and 
West Esplanade.
5 Storeys along W. 1st Street and
7 storeys along W. Esplanade.
16.0 metres (52.5 feet)

CD-649

West Squamish First 
Nations Lands Various

Predominately 
Single Family or 
Low Density 
Residential

The location of the site is along a major truck and bus route and is a 10 to 15-minute 
walk from a major transit hub with connections to other parts of the City, as well as 
downtown Vancouver via the SeaBus.

PLANNING ANALYSIS

2014 Official Community Plan

The subject site is designated Mixed-Use Level 4A in the Official Community Plan 
(OCR), which allows for a mix of higher density multi-family and commercial uses. A 
maximum 2.6 FSR is permitted within this designation with the potential of additional 1.0 
FSR density bonus to be granted at the discretion of Council.

With the fourth floor addition, the applicant is proposing a total density of 1,887.4 square 
metres (20,317.0 square feet), within the OCR maximum density. This project is in 
keeping with the following goals and objectives of the following City policies:

Page 4 of 13



REPORT: 63 Mahon Avenue (Brad Lamoureux / Lamoureux Architect Incorporated)
Date: January 21, 2021___________________________________________________

Official Community Plan
Policy 1.1.4
Support the role of the Lonsdale Regional
City Centre as an urban core of the City, in 
part, by locating high trip-generating uses 
such as high density residential and 
commercial uses there;

The proposed assembly use fits as it 
provides educational and gathering 
opportunities in a medium to high 
residential neighbourhood.

Policy 1.1.5
Provide space for commercial uses in mixed- 
use developments to support employment 
and economic development;

The proposal provides employment 
opportunities in the education sector.

Policy 1.3.1
Ensure that new development is compatible 
with the established urban form of the City, 
reflecting the primacy of the Lonsdale
Regional City Centre and the transition 
though mid- and low-rise buildings to lower- 
density residential neighbourhoods;

The proposed four-storey building is in 
scale with the surrounding area and acts 
as a place to gather for residents in the 
area.

Policy 1.3.3
Ensure that new commercial and major 
institutional developments are designed with 
respect for nearby residential users;

The proposed height of the building is in 
scale with the surrounding area and is to 
provide landscaping features to soften the 
building when viewed from adjacent 
properties.

Policy 1.3.5
Encourage design excellence in 
developments through carefully considered, 
high quality architecture and landscaping, 
with varied designs which are interesting, 
sensitive and reflective of their surroundings;

The contemporary design provides a 
mixture of features to help break up the 
massing along all sides of the building to 
create interest and complement the 
surrounding buildings.

Policy 1.3.8
Ensure developments along commercial 
streets contribute to the active and 
pedestrian-friendly character of the area.

The proposal continues the pedestrian 
connectivity along West Esplanade, 
leading up Forbes Avenue to the rest of 
the City.

Policy 1.4.4
Incorporate active-design principals in new 
development that encourage physical 
movement and social interaction thereby 
contributing to a healthier community;

The main stairwells in the proposal are 
highly visible from the outside of the 
building and are adjacent to the main 
lobby, encouraging their use.

Policy 2.1.1
Invest in cycling and pedestrian networks and 
facilities to make these more attractive, safer, 
and convenient transportation choices for all 
ages and abilities with an aim to increase 
these ways of travelling over single occupant 
car use.

The previous approval committed the 
applicant to extend and connect the bike 
lane along the north side of West 
Esplanade and up along the east side of 
Forbes Avenue, along the length of the 
property.

Policy 2.1.2
Invest in pedestrian and cycling facilities on 
the routes to and around schools, and work

In addition to the description above, the 
applicant will be providing both secure 
and short-term bike parking facilities that

Page 5 of 13



REPORT: 63 Mahon Avenue (Brad Lamoureux / Lamoureux Architect Incorporated)
Date: January 21, 2021

with the North Vancouver School District to 
promote active transportation, healthy 
lifestyles, and sustainable travel behavior 
among children and youth;

will be available to users of the building 
outside of school hours.

Policy 2.1.4
Reduce crossing barriers at locations such as 
intersections, creeks, highways and rail 
crossings so that walking and cycling are 
more convenient and attractive;

The right-in turn from West Esplanade to 
Mahon Avenue will be closed off to 
vehicle traffic and becoming a cul-de-sac 
at the south end of Mahon Avenue. This 
will reduce the potential of vehicle 
interaction in the area.

Policy 2.2.1
Designate land uses to bring people and 
destinations closer together, minimizing the 
need for private vehicle use and maximizing 
opportunities for walking, cycling and transit 
as modes of travel;

The site is located along a main public 
transit route as well as in close proximity 
to the Lonsdale Quay bus loop and the 
Seabus.

Policy 3.4.2
Consider the potential for food production on 
public and private land including rooftops, 
community gardens, micro gardens, 
composting, urban farming, orchards, 
beehives and edible landscaping on 
residential boulevards, park land and rights- 
of-way;

There is potential for the outdoor space to 
provide an outdoor garden for education 
purposes.

Policy 7.1.2
Seek a strong balance of employment to 
resident labour force as generating more jobs 
close to home makes for shorter average 
commutes;

The school is an employment generator, 
giving opportunities for North Shore 
residents.

Strategic Plan
City for People The project supports the Strategic Plan 

vision and priority to be A City for People 
by using an existing site for education and 
cultural purposes to assemble and 
enhance the cultural fabric of the City.

Sustainable Development Guidelir es
Natural Systems
The ability of natural systems, both global 
and local, to support life. Parks and green 
spaces help regulate the climate, clean and 
filter water and air, and provide recreational 
and aesthetic benefits. Maintaining healthy 
natural systems will reduce strain on 
municipal infrastructure, support local wildlife 
and enhance quality of life for community 
members.

Through the previous approval, the 
applicant is providing a storm water 
management system to mitigate water 
run-off that the building generates. The 
outdoor area has the potential of having 
garden plots that can be used for 
educational purposes.

Physical Structures/Infrastructure:
The ability to effectively deliver basic 
services, shelter and physical amenities

The applicant has secured through its 
previous approval a storm water 
management system as well as

Page 6 of 13



REPORT: 63 Mahon Avenue (Brad Lamoureux / Lamoureux Architect Incorporated)
Date: January 21, 2021___________________________________________________

required to sustain the health and well-being 
of the community. This includes water supply, 
sanitary sewer, stormwater drainage, solid 
waste management, roads, 
telecommunications, and energy efficiency 
and conservation including district energy. As 
well, this category includes attractive 
streetscapes, durable buildings, provision of 
a range of housing types and adequate 
community amenities.

infrastructure improvements to service 
the building. It has also committed 
improvements to bicycle infrastructure by 
providing bike connections to the existing 
lane on West Esplanade and along the 
site turning up into Forbes Avenue.

Local Economy:
The ability to maintain and grow a healthy 
local economy. A strong economy brings 
employment and a solid tax base to support 
services without compromising other areas of 
capacity. A stronger economy has been 
shown to support healthier lifestyles for 
community members and greater 
opportunities for personal fulfillment and 
overall quality of life.

The proposal provides employment 
opportunities to teachers and school 
administrators. It also proposes the 
amenity space can be used for seminars 
for small businesses to further enhance 
themselves.

Human Potential:
The ability of our local community to support 
our residents in their pursuit of individual 
livelihood objectives including access to 
education, healthy food, active transportation 
and affordable housing. Meeting these basic 
needs is essential for the maintenance and 
growth of human capacity.

The school’s mandate is to foster today’s 
youth in not only basic education, but also 
in being good citizens.

Social Connections:
The ability of our community to foster 
communication, interaction and networks to 
respond effectively to community issues.
These may include supporting community 
members with low incomes, lone-parent 
families, and matters specific to children, 
youth, seniors and people with disabilities.

The applicant has offered the proposed 
assembly space free rental for not-for- 
profit groups and encourages cultural 
groups to use the facility.

Cultural Diversity:
The ability of our community to support and 
celebrate a diversity of cultural backgrounds. 
This includes recognition of the traditions of 
the Squamish Nation and the many cultures 
of residents who make the City their home.
With both tangible and intangible elements, 
cultural capacity has economic implications 
and is strongly connected to social traditions. 
Manifestations of cultural practices can range 
from spiritual practices to heritage buildings.

The applicant has offered the amenity 
space to the members of the Squamish 
Nation and other cultural groups.

Active Design Guidelines
Primary and Secondary Stairs The project includes both primary and 

secondary stairwells that are visible from

Page 7 of 13



REPORT: 63 Mahon Avenue (Brad Lamoureux / Lamoureux Architect Incorporated)
Date: January 21, 2021

the outside of the building to encourage 
active use.

Indoor Amenity The indoor amenity is a flexible space to 
host a variety of uses for up to 150 
people. It is to be used by the school 
during school hours and is available for 
public use outside of school hours.

Outdoor Recreation and Gardens The proposal includes outdoor space on 
the third level for both students and staff. 
It’s landscaped to provide opportunities 
for social interaction as well as learning 
opportunities and private study.

Enhanced bicycle facilities Secured bike facilities are proposed in the 
underground parking area, and short term 
bike parking is proposed outside of the 
main entrance of the building.

Zoning Bylaw 1995, No. 6700

The subject site is zoned “Comprehensive Development 684 (CD-684)”, which was 
created to accommodates the school use specifically. The proposed use for the fourth 
floor fits with the permitted Assembly Use on site. The definition of Assembly Use in the 
Zoning Bylaw is a use “providing to the assembly of persons for religious, charitable, 
philanthropic, cultural, or private education purposes: includes churches, auditoriums, 
youth centres, halls, and private schools. ”

The proposed floor space generates a requirement of five additional off-street parking 
stalls according to the Zoning Bylaw. While the provision of 11 additional off-site stalls 
is proposed, these additional spaces are outside of the 121.9 metre (400 foot) radius 
required to be considered as part of the parking allotment and will require a variance. 
The applicant will be securing these additional 11 parking spaces through a long term 
lease to the City’s satisfaction.

A summary of the building statistics can be found in (Attachment #2).

Contextual Fit

The subject site is small and triangular at 736.5 square meters (7,928 square feet) in 
area, making this a challenging site to design and build. The proposed building footprint 
will occupy most of the site with a coverage of 82% and will extend to the property line 
on all four sides of the property with the exception of a small setback at the south end.

The main slope of the site is from the high north end to the south with average grades of 
8.0% down along Mahon Avenue and 4.6% along Forbes Avenue. The north to south 
slope exposes the parking level at the south end where the ramp to the underground 
parking is located. The main access to the building is along Mahon Avenue with the 
main doors toward the northern end.

Page 8 of 13



REPORT: 63 Mahon Avenue (Brad Lamoureux / Lamoureux Architect Incorporated)
Date: January 21, 2021___________________________________________________

The site plan remains unchanged from the previous approval with the east side of the 
building being the focal point of activity with a concrete seating area for students and 
space for short-term bike parking. The south end of the site is the access point of the 
underground parking and will also connect the bike path along the north side of 
Esplanade as per the previous approval.

The proposed building design is contemporary. The main entrance to the building has 
good transparency to the street with its predominantly curtain glass fagade. Multi-toned 
pavers are proposed along the front side of the building to help identify the building 
entrance. The second floor projects above the main level to the property line to provide 
some weather protection for the main entrance. A metal fagade in a random vertical 
pattern is applied to all sides of the building to give some texture and interest. The 
proposed fourth floor will sit on top of the third level at the north end and supported by 
columns toward the south to retain the outdoor space for the third level. The third level 
where the outdoor space is located is screened on the east side by landscaping to help 
screen the view to and from the residential units in the building across the street to the 
east and to help with privacy for both occupants. The rest of the outdoor space is 
sheltered by the proposed fourth floor to give rain protection (Attachment #3).

The proposed north elevation will include a mesh on the side of the building with the 
ability for vines to grow. This will help improve the view to the rental apartments to the 
north.

The proposed landscaping plan is limited due to the building taking up most of the site 
area. Landscaping along the base of Forbes Avenue is planned to visually screen the 
underground parkade and to provide a buffer along the bike lane. On the third level 
outdoor area, raised planters and seating areas are proposed in the outdoor space with 
hexagons being the primary shape to reflect the learning pods of the school. The area 
is intended for social interaction, but also to provide opportunities for classes and study.

Design modifications were made after the review by the City’s Advisory Design Panel to 
improve how the addition would sit on the building and to improve view corridors to the 
neighbouring properties. This was done by shortening the height of the stairways and 
bringing the north corners of the roof inward. A landscaping screen at the opening on 
the third level facing the residents to the east will help soften the view of the building as 
well as providing a natural barrier to overlook potential.

Proposed Parking and Transportation Impacts

The subject site is located along a major truck and bus route. It is also adjacent to the 
City’s AAA bicycle network where a separated bike lane along the Forbes Avenue 
frontage as it connects with West Esplanade has already been secured through the last 
approval.

The current right-in-only access from West Esplanade to the Mahon Avenue cul-de-sac 
is planned to be closed to provide a safer pedestrian and cycling environment along 
West Esplanade. The design of the closure would ensure access for the Fire 
Department from West Esplanade.

Page 9 of 13



REPORT: 63 Mahon Avenue (Brad Lamoureux / Lamoureux Architect Incorporated)
Date: January 21, 2021

The proposed access to the underground parkade is at the southern end of the site.
The proposed additional floor area requires five additional parking stalls in accordance 
with the Zoning Bylaw. In response, the applicant has secured 11 off-site parking 
spaces for the school at 132 West Esplanade, about 450 metres (1,500 feet) away from 
the subject site, bringing the total number of parking spaces provided (on-site and off-
site) to 22, exceeding the minimum City requirement. The applicant has also secured a 
vehicle to transport people between the school and the parking area if needed.

The Zoning Bylaw supports allowing off-site parking to be counted as part of the parking 
total, but only if the off-site parking area is located within 121.9 metres (400 feet) from 
the subject site. As the proposed off-site parking does not meet this requirement, a 
variance to the additional five stalls is required. This variance is supported by staff due 
to the off-set timing of school hours and after-school hours in addition to the central 
location of the subject site, being in close proximity to many of the amenities of Lower 
Lonsdale, and close to a major public transportation hub of the Lonsdale Quay bus-loop 
and the SeaBus terminal.

As with all schools, busy periods of the day for student drop-off and pick-up will occur. 
The revised Transportation Study (Attachment #5) looked at the impact of the proposed 
floor area and applicant’s consulting team has submitted a plan to the satisfaction of 
City staff. As the additional floor area is to be used by the school during school hours, 
the morning drop-off and afternoon pick-up period remains unchanged due to no 
change in student and staff numbers during this period. The plan includes school staff 
monitoring the drop-off and pick-up zones to keep disruption of on-street parking during 
these periods to a minimum. Staff will continue to work with the applicant to help 
implement this plan, which may include street signage. Staff also support the variance 
to waive the required off-street loading bay as the applicant has demonstrated that the 
size and frequency of deliveries to the site during both periods would be small.

The applicant expressed a keen interest to address ongoing operational concerns from 
the neighbourhood and to enter into an agreement to confirm their approach. The terms 
of agreement would cover areas of concerns such as parking management, pick-up and 
drop-off, noise, loitering or cleanliness around the facility. Staff are in full support of this 
concept. Should this application be approved by Council, the applicant would work with 
interested neighbourhood groups or individuals to formalize an agreement, similar in 
nature to a good neighbour agreement.

COMMUNITY BENEFITS

While there is no City requirement for any offering of community benefit as part of this 
application, the applicant is offering the use of the upper floor gymnasium space after 
school hours to non-profit groups for free for a significant portion of the time on a weekly 
basis. To secure this commitment an agreement would be prepared to formalize the 
details of this offering, including terms, criteria and conditions to ensure fairness and 
community access for a specified number of hours per month. Staff will explore this with 
the applicant if this application moves forward.

Page 10 of 13



REPORT: 63 Mahon Avenue (Brad Lamoureux / Lamoureux Architect Incorporated)
Date: January 21, 2021___________________________________________________

ADVISORY BODY INPUT 
Advisory Design Panel

The application was reviewed by the Advisory Design Panel (ADR) on September 16, 
2020 and was requested for it to return to address the following items:

• Further explore and refine fourth floor massing and the balance of the third floor 
deck to demonstrate a stronger connection to the overall building identity and 
how it addresses neighbouring properties and streets;

• Consider the north elevation and how the design might improve upon balancing 
privacy and providing a level of softness or interest to the elevation for the 
neighbour property;

• Improve sightlines for the neighbouring property at the north end of the building;
• Ensure the creation of breakout spaces with the landscaping and exterior 

furniture layout with a safe design to consider student mental health and well-
being;

• Explore acoustic protection from traffic for the third level; and
• Consider dialogue with the Squamish Nation.

The applicant returned to the ADP October 21, 2020 with a revised plan to address the 
Panel’s previous concerns, such as:

• The proposed opening on the east side of the third level was revised to include a 
screen that will allow vines to grow down and screen the view to the east.

• The top east and west corners of the proposed fourth floor were recessed to 
improve sightlines to the neighbour to the north;

• The proposed north elevation was revised to install a metal mesh to permit the 
growth of vines down the elevation that would soften the visual image of the 
building from the north;

• The proposed outdoor space on the third level has included a seating area for 
solitude and study;

• The proposed soffit material covering the outdoor space on the third level will be 
cedar that will dampen the noise from the adjacent streets; and

• The applicant has reached out to the Squamish Nation and has offered the 
proposed fourth floor space for them to conduct meetings and social gatherings 
free of charge.

In reviewing these changes, the Panel unanimously endorsed the following resolution:

THAT the Advisory Design Panel has reviewed the Rezoning Application for 63 
Mahon Avenue and recommends approval of the project;

AND THAT the Panel commends the applicant for the quality of the proposal and 
their presentation.

Page 11 of 13



REPORT: 63 Mahon Avenue (Brad Lamoureux / Lamoureux Architect Incorporated)
Date: January 21, 2021

Integrated Transportation Committee
The application and the Transportation Study were presented to the Integrated 
Transportation Committee at their September 9, 2020 meeting and the committee 
suggested that a covenant be placed on title to require the amenity space manager to 
hand out a parking memorandum to all users of the amenity space regarding the 
parking pressures in the neighbourhood and encourage users to travel by sustainable 
modes.

As outlined under the Parking section of the report, an agreement would be prepared to 
address this issue should the application be approved by Council. There may not be a 
need for a restrictive covenant on title.

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION

The applicant attempted to hold their Virtual Information Session (VDIS) on October 28, 
2020 but did not conduct their notification procedures to staff satisfaction. A 
rescheduled VDIS was held on November 12, 2020 where an estimated 183 people 
joined at one point during the meeting (Attachment #6). Most of the discussion and the 
written material that was submitted was in favor of the proposed addition with many 
people feeling that it would be a good addition for the school to host activities on-site 
without having to go offsite for performances and graduation. The notification 
procedure was completed to the satisfaction of staff.

Staff have separately received a number of letters in opposition to the proposal, with 
some of the main concerns around the type of users that could be using the proposed 
floor outside of school hours bringing unwanted noise to the residential area, increased 
traffic and parking issues due to the added floor area and the proposed building height.

In addition, staff received a report from Laco Holdings Ltd. who conducted an 
independent survey and transportation study on the rezoning proposal. Key comments 
stated in the report echo concerns staff have heard from some residents in the area, 
which include a lack of parking in the area, traffic in relation to school operations and 
after hours use.

While staff are aware of the neighbourhood interest in this project and have been open 
in receiving comments from the public, staff are concerned about some issues 
regarding the process that led to the Laco Holdings’ report and the lack of clarity in the 
report describing that process. These include:

• The process led by Laco’s hired consultants and the report itself did not clearly 
indicate what information was given about the proposal, how additional 
information of the proposal may be obtained (i.e. the Let’s Talk page on the City 
website that has the submitted drawings), nor how the information that was 
obtained would be used for - overall, this lack of clarity has generated confusion 
in the neighborhood about the nature of the proposal and the City’s public 
engagement process;

Page 12 of 13



REPORT: 63 Mahon Avenue (Brad Lamoureux / Lamoureux Architect Incorporated)
Date: January 21, 2021___________________________________________________

• One of the questions in the survey asked if respondents received information 
about the rezoning in the mail from the City of North Vancouver. This is not a 
part of the City’s notification procedures. The initial notification of an application 
is provided by the applicant who sends out notifications to the neighbourhood 
within a 40 metre (131 foot) radius of the site. The results of this survey may not 
be consistent with the notification area of the City.

• There was a significant error in the description of the proposal by materials 
distributed in the neighborhood regarding the height of the proposed building.
The description calls this proposed building similar to a 9-storey development, 
this incorrect information has generated neighborhood opposition.

Staff overall response: Public comments of support and concerns have assisted staff in 
evaluation of this proposal. Analysis on traffic and noise impact were contemplated in 
the review of this application as were impacts on views. Overall, staff are satisfied with 
the traffic study and feel confident that with secured off-site parking, an operational 
agreement and with the proposed community use, the potential impacts of the additional 
floor space will be mitigated and the benefits of a well-managed community space will 
outweigh the incremental increase on traffic and noise.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONCLUSION

The proposal represents good planning principals and is in line with the Official 
Community Plan and the scale of development in the vicinity. The proposed addition on 
the top floor is intended to provide assembly space for students and staff as well as for 
community and cultural groups for their meetings and events; some not-for-profit groups 
have been offered free rent for their events. The proposed off-site parking arrangement 
is intended to serve as a means to mitigate the traffic and parking concerns to the 
proposed floor area and all the offsite works from the previous approval are unchanged 
and are already secured through agreements registered on title.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Page 13 of 13



Fo
rb

es
 A

ve
Fo

rb
es

 A
ve

W Esplanade

M
ah

on
 A

ve

W 1st St

W 1st St

W
 Esplanade

3 0 6

3
1

5

2 7 0

3
1

1

2 7

2 7 7

3 0 0

Context Map: 
Subject Site
Legal_Parcels Aerial 2019

jpeters�
Square
Attachment 1�



SITE CHARACTERISTICS
OCP Designation

Existing Zoning 

Site Area

FLOOR AREA AND HEIGHT Existing Zoning (CD-684)

Total Lot Coverage 90% on the ground floor      
35% above the second storey

Principal Building Height (maximum) 15.2 m                    
(50.0 ft.)

SETBACKS
Front (Mahon Avenue)

Exterior Side Yard (Forbes Avenue)

Exterior Side Yard (West Esplanade)

Rear (North)

BICYCLE PARKING
Short Term

Secured

Total Bicycle Parking (stalls)

VEHICLE PARKING
On-site stalls

Off-site stalls

Total Vehicle Parking (stalls)

30

8 12

16 11

Required Proposed

Floor Space Ratio
Maximum 1.90 FSR          

or 1,399.4 sq. m             
(15,063.0 sq. ft.) 

1,887.4 sq. m               
(20,317.0 sq. ft.)            

2.56 FSR

Maximum - 2.60 FSR            
1,914.9 sq. m (20,612.8 sq. ft.)    

0.0 m (0.0 ft.)

Proposed 

0.0 m (0.0 ft.)

0.0 m (0.0 ft.)

0.3 m (1.0 ft.)

0.0 m (0.0 ft.)

18

31

Numbers based on plans dated October 21, 2020                                                                                                                #2008681

90% on the ground floor      
82% above the second storey

19.8 m                    
(64.9 ft.)Six Storeys

Proposed

N/A

Existing Zoning (CD-684)

0.0 m (0.0 ft.)

0.0 m (0.0 ft.)

0.0 m (0.0 ft.)

16 22

23

N/A 11

Required

Proposed 

PROJECT SUMMARY SHEET
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

63 Mahon Avenue

Mixed Use Level 4A (MU4A)

736.5 sq. m                   
(7,928 sq. ft.)

Comprehensive Development 684 
(CD-684)

Offical Community Plan 

jpeters�
Square
Attachment 2�



DESIDESIDESIDESDDESDEDESIESESIDESDESISSIGN BGN BGN BGN BGN BGN BGN BGN BGN BGN BGN BGGN BRIEFRIEFRIEFRIEFRIERIERIEFRIEFRRIERIEFIEER - A- A- AA- A- A- AA- AAAAAAAAAALCULCULCLCUILCUILCULCUILCUILCUIUULCUUUULC N CON CON CON CON CON COCN CON COCON CN COCOOOCOLLEGLLEGLLEGLLEGLLEGLLELEGLEGLEGLEGLLEGLEGLLEGLLLLEGLLLEGE - E -E - E -E - E - -EE - EEE - E --E - EE  E FALLFALLFALLFALLALLALLFALLFALLALLFALLFALLFALLALFALLAALLLLFAAA LFALLALL 202202202220220220220220220202202202022200000000000000000

ALCUIN COLLEGE
63 MAHON AVENUE

DESIGN BRIEF
ADVISORY DESIGN PANEL

CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER

OCTOBER 21, 2020

Attachment 3



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 RATIONALE
1.1 DESIGN 1

1.2 SUSTAINABILITY 3

1.3 CPTED 4

1.4 4TH STOREY ADDITION 5

2.0 CONTEXT
2.1 AERIAL VIEW 8

2.2 CONTEXT MAP 9

2.3 SHADOW STUDY 10

2.4 SITE VIEWS 11

2.5 VIEW STUDY 12

2.5 CONTEXT ELEVATIONS 13

3.0 PLANNING
3.1 AREA SUMMARY 16

3.2 PARKING SUMMARY 17

3.3 ZONING 18

4.0 DESIGN
4.1 MATERIAL SAMPLE 19

4.2 BUILDING ELEVATIONS 20

4.3 SITE PLAN 24

4.4 BUILDING PLANS 25

4.5 BUILDING SECTIONS 31

5.0 LANDSCAPE
5.1 RENDERED PLANS 33

5.2 GRADING 37

5.3 PLANTING PLANS 38

5.4 IRRIGATION PLAN 40

5.5 DETAILS 42

PROJECT TEAM

ARCHITECTURE LAMOUREUX ARCHITECT INC.

CIVIL CREUS

LANDSCAPE CONNECT LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

ENVELOPE BAMTEC

GEOTECHNICAL GEOPACIFIC

STRUCTURAL WICKE HERFST MAVER

ELECTRICAL EMEC

MECHANICAL EMEC

CODE MR CONSULTING

LIGHTING MARGOT RICHARDS LIGHTING

ENERGY MURI CONSULTING GROUP INC.



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

THE SITE

The irregular and steeply sloped site posed several challenges; however, the particulars of 
the site have been treated as an asset. The building orientation carefully considers views, sun 
exposure, and addresses two streets of very different characters - Forbes, a busy thoroughfare 
to the west and Mahon, a quiet residential cul-de-sac to the east.   

THE BUILDING

The application proposes a new approximately 3033 square meter 4-storey building to house a 
private K-12 school on a site previously occupied by an auto repair shop. The 4th storey of the 
project is designed as a jointly operated community event amenity space that is made possible 
by Alcuin’s parent participant development partner, Montaigne Group Ltd. The proposed FAR 

garden. The roof line is limited to 21.2 meters (69.47 feet) above average grade. The distinctive 
building is designed to take full advantage of the remarkable views from a quieter street by 
orienting much of its glazing on Mahon Avenue with the intent to engage with a quieter, more 
human-scaled residential street. In order to further enhance the public realm on Mahon, the 
building sets back from the street at the ground level to allow for a generous landscaped 
buffer, a covered entrance and seating at the school’s entrance to offer a vibrant street life. 

1.1

1

THE SCHOOL’S PHILOSOPHY

St Alcuin College for the Liberal Arts (the ‘School’) is an independent, non-denominational 
university-preparatory school in North Vancouver, British Columbia. Its mission is to provide 
each student with a rich, rigorous and personalized education in an intimate setting. The goal 
is to foster creativity and achievement. The new proposed location for the School leverages an 
urban setting in order to provide students with this rich educational experience.

LOCATION

The new school is located in excellent proximity to existing transportation networks, the 
Lower Lonsdale community and associated amenities. Furthermore, the addition of Alcuin 
College adjacent to the new Polygon site reinforces the City of North Vancouver’s desire and 
commitment to support institutional and public amenity uses along this corridor. The project is 
located just west of the newly constructed Polygon mixed-use site and is designed to connect 
to the street edge and appropriately punctuate the end of West Esplanade. It is the intention 
that the building and surrounding proposed landscaping will offer an alternate and pleasant 
route for pedestrians looking to connect to Lower Lonsdale via 1st Street and Mahon Avenue. 
Currently under construction directly to the north and across a laneway is a 6-storey mixed use 
residential project.  

R
A

TIO
N

A
LE

     D
E

SIG
N



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

oasis for both teachers and staff. It is intended that some classes will be taught here in the 
summer months. The garden will also serve as a hands-on urban garden teaching tool as well 
as a beautiful peaceful place for teachers and students to have lunch, read a book or converse 
with friends. A green wall screen will provide privacy for rooftop patio activities but will also 
provide greenery for residents of neighbouring buildings and help buffer any excess noise 
that may come from any rooftop activities. The building form steps down towards Esplanade 
Avenue and away from the larger mass of the new Polygon development to the east, reducing 

and dynamic architectural image, with a form that expands towards the panoramic south-west 
views.

STORM WATER STRATEGY

With the zoning for the Alcuin College project changing from Industrial to Institutional, the 

don’t anticipate any requirement for reduction of stormwater volume from the site. To prevent 

2

LANDSCAPE

The landscape design for Alcuin College provides a modern and streamlined series of spaces 
that are tailored to the teaching style of the school. A tough, low-maintenance strategy, with 
durable materials is balanced with an attractive aesthetic that establishes an inviting and 
attractive series of spaces for student use. These principles will create an attractive setting for 
the school at the ground level, and a useful and attractive setting for the roof level learning 
areas. The primary drop-off area is located in close proximity to the main entrance facilitates 

and covered bicycle parking. A terraced hardscape at the east side entrance works with the 
sloping grades. At the south end of the building, this terracing of hard and soft landscaping 
terminates into a rain garden that can help manage storm water from Mahon Avenue. A 
dedication along Forbes Avenue will support improved pedestrian and cycling infrastructure. 

The roof level area provides a series of spaces that relate to interior functions. Large amounts 
of seating edges will support the numbers of students anticipated. Raised metal planters 
will provide urban agricultural and educational opportunities and allow for small trees to 
provide some shading and structure to the spaces. These planters, along with additional 
green roof style buffer plantings where suitable, incorporate a level of green vegetation while 
maintaining large functional spaces. An elevated platform will supply informal seating along 



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

its edges, as well as creating a stage venue for outdoor presentations and performances. 
Along the east edge of the roof terrace, a vertical trellis will support climbing vines and create 
a green “screen” offering privacy and visual interest to and from the neighbouring residential 

and easily adapt to different school uses, from casual lunch-time seating to more formal 
classroom-style arrangements or school performances on the raised stage platform.  Detailing 
for landscape elements will look to the architectural forms for inspiration as plans develop. 
Plant materials are selected based on native and adaptive, low-maintenance and highly 
attractive characteristics, with low water requirements. All of these components, along with 
thoughtful lighting, will maximize the year-round usability of the outdoor spaces, and support 
the school’s learning philosophy. 

SITE + BUILDING ORIENTATION

The project is located in the dense Lower Lonsdale area. The location is highly accessible 
by transit, bicycle networks, and walkable sidewalks to promote alternative modes of 
transportation. The project site is currently vacant and once developed will become part of the 
vibrant urban streetscape and bring more activity to the Lower Lonsdale community. 

3

1.2
R

A
TIO

N
A

LE
     SU

STA
IN

A
B

ILITY

The unique triangular shape of the building focuses views to the South and Southwest. Glazing 
on the east side brings in morning light while the punched window patterns on the South and 
West facades provide opportunities to mitigate undesirable heat gains during the warmer 
summer months with solar shading. The setback third level patio reveals an open rooftop deck 
that breaks up the massing of the building and provides an opportunity for outdoor learning 
and entertainment on site. The fourth storey cantilevers over the rooftop patio providing shade 
and protection during inclement weather; extending the use of the outdoor space throughout 
the year. The outdoor patio focuses views again to the South and West and to increase privacy 
and mitigate noise from outdoor activities there will be a green wall screen on the East side of 
the rooftop. 

ENERGY + MATERIALS

following Section 11 – Energy Cost Budget Method of ASHRAE 90.1-2016 compliance path. 
Heating will be provided by in-slab radiant heating system served by the Lonsdale Energy 
Centre (LEC) and cooling will be by variable refrigerant drive outdoor and indoor fancoil units. 
These systems will create a comfortable learning environment in the building and help keep 
operation costs low. Initial energy modeling suggests that the project should substantially 
exceed the required 14% energy cost savings by upward of an additional 10%. 



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

The project team will make an effort to source local, responsible, and healthy materials 
whenever possible and will use programs such as LEED and WELL Building Standard as a 
guide. Providing a quality learning environment is of utmost importance therefor choosing 

SOCIAL + CULTURAL BENEFITS

Throughout the day the school will support up to 200 students and staff. The students will 
increase circulation and activity in and around the site creating a more vibrant site. During the 
evenings and weekends the fourth storey event space is able to support gatherings for up to 
150 people. The usage of these two spaces at maximum capacity will not occur simultaneously. 
The space has been offered free of charge for periodic use to community groups such as North 

also been offered for free of charge for periodic use to the Squamish First Nation for cultural 
meetings or community functions.

CRIME PREVENTION THROUGH ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN (CPTED)

Alcuin College has been designed with the safety of students and the community in mind. 
The building and its architectural features will revitalize a currently underutilized corner of 
the Lower Lonsdale community and help minimize the fear of crime in the area. The newly 
constructed neighbouring residential developments in the area along Mahon and W 1st street 
also help keep the area active and well supervised. Mahon Avenue and Esplanade are popular 

on the street.  

4

1.3
R

A
TIO

N
A

LE
     C

PTE
D

There is currently ample street lighting in the area that has been updated or installed with the 
construction of new residential developments. At grade this development will further enhance 
the streetlight network along Mahon and help illuminate the dark corner of Forbes and 
Esplanade. Additional lighting will also be provided in the shared laneway. 

The main entrance is located in clear view on Mahon Avenue. The glazing at grade on the east 
side of the building provides daylight to the main level classrooms and a visible connection 
to the street. Interior lighting will help illuminate the sidewalk and bike parking area with the 
help of exterior lighting under the overhang of level 2. The main entrance is the primary access 
point for people coming into the building. Entrants are welcomed by Alcuin staff at Reception 
before gaining access to the secure areas of the school. The parkade and garbage collection 
room are only accessible through a security gate at the bottom of the ramp that descends from 
Mahon. The service entrance in the laneway is a secondary access point used only for loading 
and unloading during special events. This access point is secure, clearly visible, and well lit to 
provide a safe environment at night.

Exit stairs provide access to exit doors at grade along Mahon. These stair corridors support 
long windows that bring daylight into the stair and provide a visual connection to the street. 
Exits to outside are clearly visible and well lit. The “punched” windows away from the main 
entrance in the laneway and along Forbes and Esplanade are elevated at least 7’ above the 

allow for eyes on the street from above. 

Glass is used extensively at grade on the east side of the building near the entrance. It is 
durable, damage resistant, and easily cleaner. Dark metal panels clad the lower parts of the 
building. Below grade there is sealed concrete which is also durable and damage resistant.



DESIGN BBBBBBRIEFRIEFRIEFRIEFRIEFR - A- AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA- AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAALCLLLLLLCLCLCLCLCLCCLCCCCCUIUCUIUCUIUUUCUIUUCUCUICUCUIICUILCUILCUILLCLLLCLCLCCCCCCCUCUICUUUCUCUICUILLCLCLCCCCUUULLLLCCCCCUICUICUICUILCCUILCCCCCCCLLLLCCCLLLCCCCCLLLCCCLCCCULLCCCLLCCCCCLLLCCLLCCLLLLLCLLLCC NNN CON CNNNNN CN CON CON COCOCCCCON COCCN CCN CON CON CON CON COCON CON COCOCON CN CNNNN CN CON CCOCN CN CN CN CO COOCONNN CCCCN CN CN CON COONNNN CON CCN CCCCN CN CN COCOOO COCONNNN COOONNN CCCOON CNNNN CN CCO COCN CCN CCOOOOONNN CN CN CCOOCONN CN CN CCN CCOCONNN CCN CN COOOOCOON CCCCCOOOOOOONN CCCCCOOOCCCOONN CCCC COCOOOOOOCCCCOOONN CCCCCCCCCOOOOCCCCOOOOLLEGLLEGLLEGLLEGLLEGLLEGLLEGLLLLLLEGLLEGLEGEEEEEEEEGEEEEGEGGGGGGGGGGGGLLLEEEEEEGEGEGEGEGGGGGGLLEGLLLLEEGGGGGGLLEGLEEEEGGGGGGGGLLEGEEGGGGGGLLEGEEEGGGGGGGGGLEEEEEGGGGGEEEGGGGGGGGGGEEEEEEEGGGGGGGEEEEGGGGGEEGGGGGGGLLLEEEGEGGGGLEGGLEEEGGGLEEEGLEEEEEGEGGE - EE - E - EE - E - EEE - EEE EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE FALFFALLFALLFAFALLFALLFALLFAFAFAAFAAALLAALALLFALALLLLLLALFALLLFALLALLLALLALLFALLFALLFFFAFAALLAAALLALAALLALLALLLLLLALLLLFALLFALLLFALLLLLLFALLFALLFAFAAAAFAALLLLLFALLLLLFFFFALLFAALLALLFALALLLLLLLFALLFALLLLFALLFALLAFALLALLALLLLLLLLLLLFALLLFALLFFFAFAALLLLLALFFFFFAAALLALLALLLLLALLLFALLFALLFFFALLLLLLFALLLFALFFFFAALLLLLLLLFALLFFFFALLLFALLFALLLFALLLFFFFALLLLLLFALLLLLFALLLFA LLFF LLLAALLF LLLL 2022022022022022022022022020202002022220220220220220220220220202202202220220220220202202220200202222022022022202220222020220202202022220202222222002222222202222202200200 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

PHOTO CONTEXT MAP
NTS1

63 MAHON
AVENUE

C
O

N
TE

X
T     A

E
R

IA
L V

IE
W

2.1

8



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

CONTEXT PLAN
1

C
O

N
TE

X
T     C

O
N

TE
X

T M
A

P
2.2

9

63 MAHON
AVENUE



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

C
O

N
TE

X
T     SH

A
D

O
W

 STU
D

Y
2.3

10

DECEMBER 21     10:00 am

DECEMBER 21     12:00 pm

DECEMBER 21     2:00 pm

MARCH 21     10:00 am

MARCH 21     12:00 pm

MARCH 21     2:00 pm

JUNE 21     10:00 am

JUNE 21     12:00 pm

JUNE 21     2:00 pm



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

C
O

N
TE

X
T     SITE

 V
IE

W
S

2.4

11



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

C
O

N
TE

X
T     V

IE
W

 STU
D

Y
2.5

12DESIGN BRIEF ALCUIN COLLEGE FALL 2020

PREVIOUS DESIGN     (PRESENTED SEPTEMBER 16, 2020)

REVISED DESIGN (CURRENT AS OF OCTOBER 21, 2020)



7

DESIDESIDEDEDEDEDEDEDEDESISDESSDESIDESIDESIDDEESDESISDEDESIDDESDESID SEDE GGGGGGGN GNN N N N NN BN N NNNN BN BBGGNGGN NN N N BNNGNNNNGN BGNNNN BNN BN GNGGGNGNNNNGG BBG RRRRRRRIEFRIEFRIEFRIEFRIEFFFRIEFIEFRRIEFRRRIEFRIEFRIEFEFRIEFRR EFFFRRRIEFEFFRR FFEFFFEFRRRR EFFRR FEFFFRR EE - AA- A- A- AAALCUCULCUILCUCUCUCUIUUUUIUUUUUUILCULCUILCUICUICUUIUUUUUIIICUILCUUIUUUILCUUUUUUUIUIUUUUUIUUUUIUUUUUUUUIUUUUUU N CON COCON CON COCOCCCCOCCN CON COCOCCNN CON CON CON CON C CCOCCCCOCOCON COCOOOON CON CON CON CON CON CON COCCON CON CON COCCCCCN CC CCCCCCN COCON CON CCNN CCOOCCN CCCCC LLEGLLEGGGLLELELLEEELEELEGEELELLLLLLEGLLELLEGLLLEGLELLLLEEELEGGGGGGGGGLLLLEGLLEGLLLLEGLLELEGLELLELLEGGGGGLLEGLLEGLLEGLLLELEELLEGLLEGGGGGGGLLLLEGLEGLEGGLLLLLEEGGGLEGLEGLLEEGLEGELEGLELEGLELLEGEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE -EEEE -EE -EEEE - EEE E -E - EE - E - EEE -E -E -E - EE -E -E - E --- FFFFAFAFAFAFAAAFALLALLALAFFAAAAFALLLLFALFALLLLFALLLFFFAAAFALLAFAFALLFALLALLFALLALLLLFALLLFFFFFAFAFFALLFALLAFAFALLLLLL 0202020202000002022222222202202000002002222222222222202020022222222200022222200020222222222202222222002222020202222200020222200202200222 222 22 22 2222222 220 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

777777777777777

C
O

N
TE

X
T     E

LE
VA

TIO
N

S
2.6

13

MAHON AVE

FORBES AVE W
 1ST STR

E
E

T
W

 1ST STR
E

E
T

E
SPLA

N
A

D
E

2N
D

 ST W
2N

D
 ST W

3R
D

 ST W
3R

D
 ST W

MAHON AVE

VANCOUVER 
HARBOUR

EAST CONTEXT ELEVATION (MAHON AVE)
1



8

DDDEDEDEEEEESESIESESIESISISSIDDEESESSSSIIDDESSSIDESIDESESISDEEDDE ISISIID SSSIDDE IE IIESISSISIES G BGN BGN BGNGNGNGN BGN BGGNGNNGNGN BN BGN BGN BBGN BGN BBG BGGGN BGGN BGNGGN BGN BGN BGNGGNGN BN BGN BBN BBBBBGGGN GGN BGNNGN BBBBNN BBBN BGN BG BGGGN BN BN GN BGN BNN BGN BGN BGNNN BG BGGN BGNN BN BGGGGGN BNGN BGG BGGGGN BG BGGN BGGG RIEFRIEFRIEIERIERIERIRIERIERIEEFEFEFRIERIEFRRIERIEEEFEFFRIEFFFRIEFFRIERIERIERRRRIEIEFEFRIERIERIERIEFFRIEEFRIEEEEFEFFFRIERIERIEIEIRIEEFRIEFEFRIEFFFRIEFRRIERIEFFFFFIEFRIERRIERIERIERIERRIERIEIRIERIERIERIEERIEEFEFRIER EEEFFFRRIEEERRR ERR EFIEEEFIEIEEEFFRR ERIEEEEFFIEE - A- A- AAAA- A A- AAAAA- A--- -  AAAAALCUICUICLCUILCUICUICUCUICLCUILCUILCLCLCCLCCLCCCL N COOCON CON CON CON COCN COCOOOOOOOOCOCOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOON COCCOOOCOCOOOOOOOCOOOCOCOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOCOOOOLLLLLLLLLLLELEEEELELLEGLLEGLEGLLEGLLEGLLLLLLEELEGLLEGLLEGLLEGLEGLLLLLLLELEEEGGEGGEGLLEGLLEEGGLLEGGGGGGGLLEGLEGGLLEGGGGGGGLLLLLEGLLL GLLEGGLLLLLLEGLLEGGGGLLLLEGLLEGEGLLEGGLLEGLLLEGLLLEGLLLLEGLL GGLL EEGGLLLLEGLLEGLLEGLEGG - EEE -EEE --EEE EEEEEE - -EEEEEEEEEE - EEEEEEE EEE EEEEEEEEEE EEEEE -EEEE - EEEEEE - E EEEEEEEEE -EEEEEEE  E FFFFAFAAAFAFFAFALLLLLLALLLFALLALLFALLALLLLALLLLLFFFFAFAAAAAALLALLFALLLLLLLLLLFFAFAFAAFALAAAAALLLLLLLFFFFAAAA LLFAFAFAAAAFALLALLAFALLLLLFFFAFAAAAFALLLFALLLLFFFAFAAAFALLLLLFFFAAAFAFALLLLFALFFAA LLLLLFFALLFALLFAAA LLLLFALLFALFALLLLALLALFF LLAL 222 22202202202202020202222022022222222222022022202222220202202222202022222020222222222222222220222202022022222 222 2222 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

888888888888888888888888888888

14

M
A

H
O

N
 A

V
E

FO
RBES AVE

W 1ST STREET

ESPLANADE

C
H

E
STE

R
FIE

LD
 A

V
E

W 1ST STREET

SOUTH CONTEXT ELEVATION (ESPLANADE)
1



DDEESDESDESDESDDESESSEESISDESESSSISSSIESSSDEDESIDESDESDDDDDEEEDESDEDESEEEESESESSISIDESDESDDDEDESESIIDESIDESEESESIDESEDESEEESDESSDESIDESIDESDESDDEDEESDEESISSSSDDESDEEDESESESSSDDEEEEEESSSSSSSIDDEEEESSEEESSIDDEE IDESIEEEEEESSDEEEESDESDDEEEESSDDDEESEDDDEEES GGNGGNNNN BGN BGN BN BN BNGNGGNGGGGNGNGNGNNNNNNN BBGN BN BN BBBGGG BGN BN BGGNGNN BN BGGGNGGN BGN BGGGGGGNGGNGGNGGNNNN BB BGGGGGGNGNNNNNGN BGGGNNGNGNNGNNGN BGGGGNGNGGNGNGNNGGGGGNGNN BGGNGGGGNNNNGNNN BBGGGGGGNNNGNNN BNGGGGGNGNNGNGNN GGGGNGNNGNNGGNNGNGN RRRIERIERIEFIEFEEEFEEEFFFFFFEFRRIEEEFFFR EFFFRIEFEEFEFFFFFFEFFFEEFEFFFEFFFRIEEEEFFFFFEEEFFFFEFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFEEFFFFERIEFFEFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF -- - AAAAAA-- - -- --  A- ------- AAALCULCUUIUCUCULCUUUIUUIUIUUUUIUIUIUILCUIUICUUUUIIIUUIUIUUUUUUUUUIUUUUUUIIIUUUUUUIUUIUUIIUUUUUIUUUUIIU NNNNNN CNNNNNN CCN CNNN CCCOON COOOOOOOOONNNNNNNN CN CCN CN CCCCOOOOOOONNNNNN CCN CN CCCOOOOONNNN CCN COOOOOOOONNNNNNNN CCN CCOOOOOONNNNN CNNNNN CCCCN CCCOOOOOOONNNNNNN CNN CN COOOOONNNNNN CN CN COOOONNNNNN CN CCCOOOOOOOONNNNNNNN COOOOONNNNNNNN CCOONNN CN CCCOCOOOONNN COOOON CCOOONNNNN CCCCCCCOOOON CCCOONN CCOOOCCCCOOOOOOOOLLLLLLLLLLLLEEGEGEGGEGEGEGEGEGEGGEGLELLEEEGGGGGGLEGLLLLLEEEGEGEGEGGGGLEGGLLLLELLLLEGEEEEGEGGEGGGGEGEEGEGGEGEGEGGGGLLLEEGEGGEGGLEGLL EEGEGGGGGGGLLEGGGEGGGEGGGGGEEGLLEGGGGLEEEGLEGLLLLEGGLEEGLLELLEEGEEEEEEE -E -E E EEEEEE E -E EEE E E -EEEEE -EE -EEEEEEEEEE - EEEEEE -E -EEEEEE -EEEE -EE -EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE EE EEEE EEEEE E FAFAFAAFAFALFAFALLFALLLLLLALLLFAFAFAAFAFALFALLFALLLLLFA LALLFALLALLALLLFALLALLFALLLLLFFALLLLFALLLLLLLLALLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL 222222200000002020202222222202002022022022202022020000202222202220220000022020222222020202000020220222222200200020202222222202202202222020222222202200020202222222200022202022202202202000002222020022220220002222222000222222000202220220020000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 15

MAHON AVE

ES
PL

AN
AD

E
FORBES AVE

W
 1

ST
 S

TR
EE

T

2N
D

 S
TR

EE
T 

W

3R
D

 S
TR

EE
T 

W

SOUTH WEST CONTEXT ELEVATION (FORBES AVE)
1



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

SSFF SSMM

7927.66 736.50

SF SM SF SM SF SM

4120.05 382.77 4120.05 382.77 0.00 0.00

915.57 85.06 915.57 85.06 0.00 0.00

218.02 20.25 218.02 20.25 0.00 0.00

596.83 55.45 596.83 55.45 0.00 0.00

5850.46 543.53 5850.46 554433..5533 00..0000 00..0000

SF SM SF SM SF SM

475.85 44.21 475.85 44.21 00..0000 0.00

5624.42 522.53 0.00 0.00 5624.42 522.53

278.92 25.91 279.68 25.98 -0.76 -0.07

144.44 13.42 144.44 13.42 0.00 0.00

6523.62 606.06 899.96 83.61 5623.66 522.45

SF SM SF SM SF SM

6468.61 600.95 0.00 0.00 6468.61 600.95

286.55 26.62 286.55 26.62 0.00 0.00

145.20 13.49 145.20 13.49 0.00 0.00

6900.37 641.06 431.76 40.11 6468.61 600.95

SF SM SF SM SF SM

2656.50 246.80 0.00 0.00 2656.50 246.80

3864.52 359.03 3863.98 358.98 0.53 0.05

287.16 26.68 289.52 26.90 -2.36 -0.22

92.96 8.64 92.96 8.64 0.00 0.00

6901.13 641.14 4246.46 394.51 2654.67 246.63

SF SM SF SM SF SM

5514.14 512.28 0.00 0.00 5514.14 512.28

338.67 31.46 284.11 26.39 54.56 5.07

483.16 44.89 483.16 44.89 0.00 0.00

117.72 10.94 117.72 10.94 0.00 0.00

6453.69 599.57 884.99 71.28 5568.70 517.35

SF SM SF SM SF SM

110.44 10.26 110.44 10.26 0.00 0.00

110.44 10.26 110.44 10.26 0.00 0.00

SF SM SF SM SF SM

32739.70 3041.62 12424.07 1154.23 20315.64 1887.38

8822%% 22..556633

TTOOTTAALL

GGFFAA EEXXCCLLUUSSIIOONN

SITE COVERAGE FSR

RROOOOFF  TTOOTTAALL

TTOTAL DEVELOPMENT
NNEETT  AARREEAA

NNEETT  AARREEAA

MECHANICAL

GGFFAA EEXXCCLLUUSSIIOONN

WALL

TTOOTTAALL  LLEEVVEELL  33

RROOF

NNEETT  AARREEAA

ALCUIN

STAIR 1

NNEETT  AARREEAA

TTOOTTAALL  LLEEVVEELL  22

LLEVEL 4
GGFFAA EEXXCCLLUUSSIIOONN

HAVAAL

STAIR 1

PATIO

TTOOTTAALL  LLEEVVEELL  44

ROOFTOP AMENITY

WALL

LLEVEL 3
GGFFAA EEXXCCLLUUSSIIOONN

ALCUIN

STAIR 1

WALL

LLEVEL 2
GGFFAA EEXXCCLLUUSSIIOONN NNEETT  AARREEAA

TTOOTTAALL  LLEEVVEELL  11

SSITE

TTOOTTAALL

LOBBY + VESTIBULE

ALCUIN

STAIR 1

WALL

LLEVEL 1
GGFFAA EEXXCCLLUUSSIIOONN NNEETT  AARREEAA

PARKING

MECHANICAL

STORAGE

CIRCULATION

TTOOTTAALL  PPAARRKKAADDEE

GGFFAA EEXXCCLLUUSSIIOONN NNEETT  AARREEAA

TTOOTTAALL  AARREEAA

AARREEAA  SSUUMMMMAARRYY

PPARKADE

L1 AREAS
NTS2

L3 AREAS
NTS4

ROOF AREAS
NTS6

P1 AREAS
NTS1

L2 AREAS
NTS3

L4 AREAS
NTS5

STA
TISTIC

S     A
R

E
A

 SU
M

M
A

RY
3.1

16



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

5850.46 543.53 5850.46

6525.00 606.19 898.20 83.45 5626.80 522.75

6899.62 641.00 431.85 40.12 6467.77 600.88

6899.60 640.99 4244.91 394.37 2654.69 246.63

6386.55 593.33 555.33 38.05 5831.22 541.74

110.44 10.26 110.44 10.26 0.00 0.00

11 11

5 11

RREQUIRED 16 PROPOSED 22

SHORT TERM 9 SHORT TERM 9

SECURE 6 SECURE 11

SHORT TERM 7 SHORT TERM 7

SECURE 2 SECURE 2

REQUIRED 24 PROPOSED 29

VEHICLE PARKING

BICYCLE PARKING

TTOOTTAALL  BBIICCYYCCLLEE

LEVEL 4 LEVEL 4

LEVEL 1-3

PARKING SUMMARY

PPAARKADE
PPAARRKKIINNGG  SSPPAACCEESS

RREEQQUUIIRREEDD PPRROOPPOOSSEEDD

LEVEL 4

PARKADE

OFF-SITE

TTOOTTAALL  VVEEHHIICCLLEE

LEVEL 1-3 LEVEL 1-3

132 WEST
ESPLANADE

63 MAHON
AVENUE

PARKING

The current parkade design supports 11 vehicle parking stalls including 10 standard stalls and 1 accessible stall. 
This is in alignment with the current provisions outlined in the CD 684 Zone. The parkade is a secure controlled 
access area and the 11 spots will be used primarily during the day by Alcuin staff. To support the 4th storey and 
any additional parking requirements from the school an additional 11 parking spaces have been acquired at 132 
West Esplanade (Impark Lot 1275) approximately 450m away from Alcuin College. 

The parkade also supports a secure bike storage room that offers 12 bicycle storage racks. Charging outlets 
for electric bicycles will be provided for a minimum of one outlet for every two bicycle stalls. Additional bicycle 
parking will be accommodated in the hardscaped areas near the front of the building where bicycle racks provide 
16 short term bicycle parking spots.  PARKADE LAYOUT

NTS1

ADDITIONAL PARKING
NTS2

STA
TISTIC

S     PA
R

K
IN

G
 SU

M
M

A
RY

3.2

17



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

PROJECT INFORMATION

PROJECT ADDRESS: 63 MAHON AVENUE

LOWER LONSDALE

NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

PARCEL IDENTIFIER: 030-111-218

LEGAL ADDRESS: LOT ‘D’ BLOCK 161

DISTRICT LOT 271

ZONING: COMPREHENSIVE DEVELOPMENT 684 ZONE

LOWER LONSDALE ZONE 3 (LL-3)

OCP DESIGNATION: MIXED USE LEVEL 4A (HIGH DENSITY)

OWNER: ALCUIN COLLEGE

JURISDICTION: CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER

OCCUPATION TYPE: A-2

CONSTRUCTION TYPE: NON-COMBUSTIBLE

TYPE OF WORK: NEW CONSTRUCTION

SCOPE OF WORK: SECONDARY SCHOOL

FIRE PROTECTION: SPRINKLERED

APPLICABLE CODES: 2018 BC BUILDING CODE, DIV B, PART 3

NUMBER OF FLOORS: 5 STOREYS

DENSITY: 2.56 FSR

LOT COVERAGE: 82%

PROPOSED SETBACKS: FRONT (E) REAR (N) SIDE (W) SIDE (S)

1’-5 ” 2 ” 5 ” 10 ”

HEIGHT: 96’-0” [29.26 m]

TOTAL GFA = 32739.70 SF (3041.62 M2)

TOTAL EXCLUSIONS = 12424.07 SF (1154.23 M2)

TOTAL NFA = 20315.64 SF (1887.38 M2)

NOTE: REFER TO AREA SUMMARY FOR DETAILED GFA AND FSR BREAKDOWN

ZONING AMENDMENT REQUESTS

FSR: Increase maximum FSR from 1.2 (1.9) to 2.6
CD-684 (3) 1.2 is the maximum FSR for CD-684 while 2.6 is the max FSR for LL-3

LOT COVERAGE: Lot Coverage above second storey to exceed 35%:

BUILDING HEIGHT: Increase Building Height to 70’
6A04 (4) Maximum Building Height for LL-3 Zone is 50’

STA
TISTIC

S     ZO
N

IN
G

3.3

18



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

ALFREX "GRAY SILVER"

ALPOLIC "PEX PEWTER METALLIC"

MT-02 - LIGHT GREY METAL WALL PANEL, VERTICAL ORIENTATION, VARYING RANDOM WIDTHS

MT-04 - LIGHT GREY METAL WALL PANEL

MT-01 - MEDIUM GREY METAL WALL PANEL, VERTICAL ORIENTATION, VARYING RANDOM WIDTHS

MT-03 - MEDIUM GREY METAL WALL PANEL

MT-07 - MEDIUM GREY PAINTED METAL WALL DOOR

MT-05 - "ALCUIN" BLUE,  METAL WALL PANEL

MT-06 - LIGHT GREY ,  METAL WALL PANEL TO MATCH LIGHT GREY "PEX PEWTER METALLIC"

GL-01 - CURTAINWALL GLAZING, TO MATCH LIGHT GREY "PEX PEWTER METALLIC"

GL-02 - STORE-FRONT GLAZING, TO MATCH LIGHT GREY "PEX PEWTER METALLIC"

GL-03 - CURTAINWALL GLAZING, CAPLESS, TO MATCH LIGHT GREY "PEX PEWTER METALLIC"

GL-04 - WINDOW SPANDREL, TO MATCH LIGHT GREY "PEX PEWTER METALLIC"

WD-01 - WOOD SOFFIT, 5.5" WIDE PLANK

CO-01 - CONCRETE WALL, ARCHITECTURAL FINISH

CO-02 - CONCRETE COLUMN, ARCHITECTURAL FINISH

SP-02 - METAL PANEL, TO MATCH LIGHT GREY "PEX PEWTER METALLIC"

ALCUIN COLLEGE
63 MAHON AVENUE
PROPOSED EXTERIOR MATERIAL PALETTE (REVISED)
OCT 21-2020

ALPOLIC "PEX PEWTER METALLIC" MATCH

SP-01 - 2-TONE PAINTED METAL SHADING FINS
GRADATIONS OF "ALCUIN" BLUE

D
E

SIG
N

     M
A

TE
R

IA
L SA

M
PLE

 
4.1

19



D
E

SIG
N

     B
U

ILD
IN

G
 E

LE
VA

TIO
N

S
4.2

20

EAST ELEVATION
1



21

WEST ELEVATION
1



22

SOUTH ELEVATION
1



23

NORTH ELEVATION
1



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

SITE PLAN
1

D
E

SIG
N

     SITE
 PLA

N
4.3

24



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

D
E

SIG
N

     B
U

ILD
IN

G
 PLA

N
S

4.4

25

P1 PLAN
1



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020 26

L1 PLAN
1



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020 27

L2 PLAN
1



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020 28

L3 PLAN
1



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020 29

L4 PLAN
1



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020 30

ROOF PLAN
1



D
E

SIG
N

     B
U

ILD
IN

G
 SE

C
TIO

N
S

4.5

31

NORTH-SOUTH SECTION
1



32

WEST-EAST SECTION
1



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

LA
N

D
SC

A
P

E
     R

E
N

D
E

R
E

D
 PLA

N
S

5.1

33



34



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020 35



36



LA
N

D
SC

A
P

E
     G

R
A

D
IN

G
 PLA

N
5.2

37



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

LA
N

D
SC

A
P

E
     PLA

N
TIN

G
 PLA

N
S

5.3

38



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020 39



LA
N

D
SC

A
P

E
     IR

R
IG

A
TIO

N
 PLA

N
S

5.4

40



41



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

LA
N

D
SC

A
P

E
     D

E
TA

ILS
5.5

42



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020 43



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020 44



DESIGN BRIEF - ALCUIN COLLEGE - FALL 2020

CNV Street Tree Master Plan 

1.1

1.2

1.3

CNV Street Tree Master Plan 

1.4

1.5

The Natural Solution

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

CNV Street Tree Master Plan 

1.10

1.11

1.12

45



PROJECTION AT NORTH-WEST CORNER REDUCED
L4 SET-BACK 5FT FROM L3
PLANTING AT L3 ADDED

GRAPHIC MURAL ADDED

CONTRAST BETWEEN METAL
PANEL COLOURS SOFTENED

MASSING AT STAIR CORE REDUCED

PROJECTION AT NORTH-WEST CORNER REDUCED
L4 SET-BACK 5FT FROM L3
PLANTING AT L3 ADDED

CONTRAST BETWEEN METAL
PANEL COLOURS SOFTENED

MASSING AT STAIR CORES REDUCED

GRAPHIC MURAL ADDED

NORTH ELEVATION - PRESENTED AT ADP MEETING SEPT .16 - 2020 NORTH ELEVATION - REVISIONS INCLUDED IN CURRENT PRESENTATION OCT. 21 - 2020

NORTH-EAST ELEVATION - PRESENTED AT ADP MEETING SEPT .16 - 2020 NORTH-EAST ELEVATION - REVISIONS INCLUDED IN CURRENT PRESENTATION OCT. 21 - 2020



L4 SET-BACK 5FT FROM L3

PLANTING AT L3 ADDED

CONTRAST BETWEEN METAL
PANEL COLOURS SOFTENED

MASSING AT STAIR CORES REDUCED

OUTWARD LEANING FACADE
MADE PLUMB

INCREASED GLAZING/TRANSPARENCY
AT EAST-FACING BAYS

CONTRAST BETWEEN METAL
PANEL COLOURS SOFTENED

PROJECTION AT NORTH-WEST CORNER REDUCED
OUTWARD LEANING FACADE 
MADE PLUMB

SOUTH ELEVATION - PRESENTED AT ADP MEETING SEPT .16 - 2020 SOUTH ELEVATION - REVISIONS INCLUDED IN CURRENT PRESENTATION OCT. 21 - 2020

WEST ELEVATION - PRESENTED AT ADP MEETING SEPT .16 - 2020 WEST ELEVATION - REVISIONS INCLUDED IN CURRENT PRESENTATION OCT. 21 - 2020



3392 MARINE DRIVE
WEST VANCOUVER, BC  V7V 1M9
CANADA

P 604.925.5170
F 604-925-5176

WWW.LAMOUREUXARCHITECT.CA
BRAD@LAMOUREUXARCHITECT.CA

PROJECT

THIS DRAWING AS AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE IS THE PROPERTY OF 
LAMOUREUX ARCHITECT INCORPORATED AND MAY NOT BE 
REPRODUCED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT'S PERMISSION.
ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING IS FOR USE ON THIS 
SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND SHALL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE 
WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE ARCHITECT.
CONTRACTORS SHALL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL 
DIMENSIONS, DATUMS, AND LEVELS ON THE JOB AND LAMOUREUX 
ARCHITECT INCORPORATED SHALL BE INFORMED OF ANY 
DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON THE DRAWING.  

DO NOT SCALE THESE DRAWINGS

PROJECT # 1902

DATE AUGUST 2020

CHECKED BY BL

DRAWN BY

DEVELOPER

CONSULTANTS

DRAWING

0'-1/8" = 1'-0"

SHEET A105

ARCHITECT

SCALE NORTH

KM

ALCUIN COLLEGE
63 MAHONE AVENUE
NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

L4 PLAN
LEVEL 4

ALCUIN COLLEGE (4 STOREY)     -     DEVELOPMENT PERMIT SUBMISSION     -     CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER     -     SUMMER 2020

L4 PLAN - FOURTH LEVEL
0-1/8" = 1'-0"1

2

A301

2

A301

1

A301

1

A301

1

A204

1

A202

2

A203

2

A201

2

A302

2

A302

2

A302

2

A302

1

A205

BB

CC

DD

EE

AA

3

3

4

4

5

5

2

2

1

1'-0"

TO
 P/L

15'-1 5/8"

TO
 P/L

17'-10"
29'-3"

26'-10"
19'-3"

39'-7 1/2"

TO P/L

17'-0" 24'-4" 17'-9" 10'-2 1/8"

TO P/L

1'
-0

"

TO
 P

/L

17
'-

10
"

29
'-

3"
26

'-
10

"
19

'-3
"

15
'-1

 1
/2

"

TO
 P

/L

39'-7 1/2"

TO P/L

17'-0" 24'-4" 17'-9" 10'-2 1/8"

TO P/L

ELEVATOR

LOBBY

L4-01
111.82 SF

EVENT SPACE

L4-02
4413.48 SF

MENS WC

L4-04
198.11 SF

WOMENS WC

L4-05
219.39 SF

STAIR 1

L4-ST1
275.51 SF

STAIR 2

L4-ST2
183.38 SF

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

76.00'EL

OUTDOOR PATIO

L4-03
62.10 SF

BUILDING BELOW

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 B
E

LO
W

BUILDING BELOW

ROOFTOP PLANTING
ROOFTOP GARDEN

L4-06
317.97 SF*

ROOFTOP PLANTING

D
N

D
N

ROOF

78.50'

ROOF

77.33'

ROOF

76.00'

GUARDRAIL 60" A.F.F.
E.L. 81.00'

PARAPET EDGE 2'-6" A.F.F.
EL. 78.50'

5 5/8" 1'-2" 13'-5" 7'-3 3/8" 9'-8 5/8" 6'-5" 17'-2" 9" 5" 8'-11" 7"7" 7'-3" 7'-5 5/8"

8'-3 7/8"

23'-1 3/4"

45'-8 1/8"

30'-2 3/4"

7'-10 1/8" 10'-7" 1'-0" 6'-2" 2'-5" 1'-0" 5 5/8"

11'-5 1/2"

TO P/L

13'-1 3/8" 81'-7 1/4" 2'-8 1/2"

TO P/L

2 3/8"

TO
 P/L

5'-4"
15'-4 1/8"

3'-6"
45'-9 7/8"

3'-6"
12'-8 1/4"

9'-0"
5'-0"

8'-11"

TO
 P/L

16'-9 5/8"

TO
 P/L

107'-4 1/2"

9'-8 3/8"

TO
 P/L

19'-5 3/4" 10'-0" 6'-3 1/2"

TO P/L

16'-9 1/2" 11 1/2"

1'-6
"

8'-11 1/8"

PARAPET EDGE TBD A.F.F.
EL. 78.50'

JULY 17, 20201

ISSUES

ISSUED FOR DP CNV BL
AUGUST 25, 20201 ISSUED FOR COORDINATION BL

FOR COORDINATION
20-10-15

�����/#4+0'�&4+8'
9'56�8#0%178'4��$%��8�8��/�
%#0#&#

2�������������
(�������������

999�.#/174'7:#4%*+6'%6�%#
$4#&".#/174'7:#4%*+6'%6�%#

241,'%6

6*+5�&4#9+0)�#5�#0�+05647/'06�1(�5'48+%'�+5�6*'�2412'46;�1(�
.#/174'7:�#4%*+6'%6�+0%14214#6'&�#0&�/#;�016�$'�
4'241&7%'&�9+6*176�6*'�#4%*+6'%6	5�2'4/+55+10�
#..�+0(14/#6+10�5*190�10�6*+5�&4#9+0)�+5�(14�75'�10�6*+5�
52'%+(+%�241,'%6�10.;�#0&�5*#..�016�$'�75'&�16*'49+5'�
9+6*176�6*'�94+66'0�2'4/+55+10�1(�6*'�#4%*+6'%6�
%1064#%6145�5*#..�8'4+(;�#0&�$'�4'52105+$.'�(14�#..�
&+/'05+105��&#67/5��#0&�.'8'.5�10�6*'�,1$�#0&�.#/174'7:�
#4%*+6'%6�+0%14214#6'&�5*#..�$'�+0(14/'&�1(�#0;�
&+5%4'2#0%+'5�#0&�8#4+#6+105�5*190�10�6*'�&4#9+0)���

&1�016�5%#.'�6*'5'�&4#9+0)5

241,'%6�� £�äÓ

&#6' Ƃ1�1-/�ÓäÓä

%*'%-'&�$; 	�

&4#90�$;

&'8'.12'4

%1057.6#065

&4#9+0)

ä¿�£Én¸�r�£¿�ä¸

5*''6 #���

#4%*+6'%6

5%#.' 0146*

��

#.%7+0�%1..')'
���/#*10'�#8'07'
0146*�8#0%178'4��$%

.��2.#0
�6��{

#.%7+0�%1..')'�
��5614';������������&'8'.12/'06�2'4/+6�57$/+55+10�����������%+6;�1(�0146*�8#0%178'4�����������57//'4�����

127�)25�&216758&7,21

.��2.#0���(1746*�.'8'.
����������	����

��
����������0�

(;,7�75$9(/�',$7$1&(

Ó

ƂÎä£

Ó

ƂÎä£

£

ƂÎä£

£

ƂÎä£

£

ƂÓä{

£

ƂÓäÓ

Ó

ƂÓäÎ

Ó

ƂÓä£

Ó

ƂÎäÓ

Ó

ƂÎäÓ

Ó

ƂÎäÓ

Ó

ƂÎäÓ

£

ƂÓäx

$$

%%

&&

''

##

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�	���

61
�2�.

��	�������

61
�2�.

��	����
��	���

��	����
��	���

��	�������

61�2�.

��	��� ��	��� ��	��� ��	�������

61�2�.

�	
��
�

61
�2
�.

��
	�
��
�

��
	�
��

��
	�
��
�

��
	�
��

��
	�
��
��
��

61
�2
�.

��	�������

61�2�.

��	��� ��	��� ��	��� ��	�������

61�2�.

�6Ƃ/",

.1$$;

.����
Ç£°{ä�-�

'8'06�52#%'

.����
{£xÈ°xx�-�

91/'05�9%

.����
Ó{Ç°�ä�-�

/'05�9%

.����
ÓäÓ°�n�-�

56#+4��

.��56�
�Óxä°ÎÇ�-�

56#+4��

.��56�
£xÓ°xÇ�-�

�
�Ƃ �
Ƃ�
-�Ƃ�/

2412'46;�.+0'

2412'46;�.+0'

�����	'.

��	������� �	��� ��	������� �	�������

��	����
��	�������

�	���
��	�������

�	���
��	�������

������

�	���������	���������	��������	�������

�	�������

��	�������

��	��������

��	�������

176&114�2#6+1

.����
ÈÎ°än�-�

$7+.&+0)�$'.19

$
7
+.
&
+0
)
�$
'
.1

9

411(�18'4*#0)

$7+.&+0)�$'.19

&4122'&�%'+.+0)�#$18'

6+.6'&�).#<+0)

&
4
1
2
2
'
&
�%
'
+.
+0
)
�#
$
1
8
'

�1�9�£Ç]�ÓäÓä�

+557'5

�--1���",��*�
 6 $.
Ƃ1�1-/�Óx]�ÓäÓä� �--1���",�
"",�� Ƃ/�" $.

L4 SET-BACK 5FT FROM L3 - 5.3FTPLANTING AT L4 ADDED

MASSING AT 
STAIR CORES
REDUCED

PROJECTION AT
NORTH - WEST CORNER REDUCED

BLUE OUTLINING
REVISED FOOTPRINT

RED OUTLINING
PREVIOUS FOOTPRINT

NET FLOOR AREA REDUCTION
AT L.4 = 169 SF

L4 PLAN - PRESENTED AT ADP MEETING SEPT .16 - 2020 L4 PLAN - REVISIONS INCLUDED IN CURRENT PRESENTATION OCT. 21 - 2020







Attachment 4





MEMO 

DATE: September 1, 2020 

PROJECT NO: 04-20-0243

PROJECT: Alcuin College Update 

SUBJECT: Transportation Update 

TO: Ryan Deakin 

Havaal Real Estate Group 

PREPARED BY: Luke Kenny, B.Sc. 

REVIEWED BY: Daniel Fung, M.Sc., P.Eng. 

1. INTRODUCTION
Havaal Real Estate Group (herein referred to as the ‘applicant’) is proposing to add a fourth storey,

which will comprise 592 sqm GFA of assembly use, as an update to an approved scheme that will

relocate Alcuin College to a new site at 300 West Esplanade within the City of North Vancouver. The

applicant has retained Bunt & Associates Engineering Ltd. (Bunt) to provide transportation planning

and engineering consulting services in support of the proposed update to the original scheme.

The fourth storey proposed use will be comprised of assembly floor space and will be made 

available for use by community groups (big brothers/sisters, elderly groups, Squamish nation, etc.) 

and for occasional business meetings.  

Strata Bylaw will ensure that use of the assembly area will not coincide with school operating hours, 

and therefore the planned school parking facilities will be available for use by visitors to the 

assembly area. Priority access to the on-site parking will still be retained for school staff in the 

limited instances that they remain on-site beyond 5 p.m., as well as for visitors with accessible 

parking requirements. As discussed later on, a further 11 off-site parking spaces have also been 

secured for users of the proposed assembly area. In total, the new fourth storey will have access to 

22 parking spaces, which compares to a Zoning Bylaw requirement for 5 parking spaces. 

Noting the above, the City of North Vancouver (City) has asked for an update to the transportation 

study. Based on discussion between Bunt and the City, it is understood that the City requires an 

update memorandum that would serve as a cover holding to the original Transportation Assessment 

Study (dated April 27, 2016). The general Terms of Reference were agreed with the City via email on 

August 20, 2020 (see Appendix A) and included the following: 

Attachment 5



 

Alcuin College Update | Transportation Update | September 1, 2020 2 

S:\PROJECTS\DF\04-20-0243 Alcuin College Update\5.0  Deliverables\5.4 Other\04-20-0243_Alc_College_MEM_V02-01.docx 

A review of the parking needs anticipated for the additional use; 

A review of available street parking on the street frontages within the same parking area 

outlined within the last report submission;  

Calculation of the trip generation estimates associated with the proposed use; and 

A review of anticipated loading practices. 

 

In addition to this, cycle parking requirements have also been reviewed. This memorandum 

assumes that no changes to the approved scheme with regards to the access requirements or the 

design of the building, aside from the addition of the fourth storey. 

2. VEHICLE PARKING 

2.1 Bylaw Requirements 

This section details the vehicle parking requirements previously approved for the school facilities, 

followed by a review of the Zoning Bylaw to establish the parking requirements for the assembly use 

accommodated within the additional fourth storey that is proposed. 

2.1.1 Approved Scheme 

All factors relating to the original scheme, including the planned parking supply, remain equal to 

the prior approval. The following is included for context only. 

For the approved scheme, the City’s Zoning Bylaw required a minimum of 22 vehicle parking stalls 

to support the development of school facilities across three storeys. This requirement was reduced 

to a total of 11 vehicle parking stalls, as set out in Division V (CD-684 (7), 300 West Esplanade) of 

the City’s Zoning Bylaw. This reduction was supported through the following data and measures: 

Mode split data, which showed a 44% auto mode split, indicates that the 24 staff and faculty 

members planned to support the school facilities would require only 11 parking stalls; 

Allowable vehicle parking reductions as a result of providing additional secured bicycle parking 

(this reduction was previously permitted as per Section 908 (10) of the Zoning Bylaw, but has 

since been removed); 

Implementation of further Transportation Demand Management measures; and 

Implementation of Alcuin College policy that does not provide parking for students. 
 

2.1.2 Updated Scheme 

The City’s Zoning Bylaw was reviewed in order to determine the minimum parking requirements for 

the proposed assembly use. Table 2.1 summarizes the applicable Parking Bylaw requirements and 

the minimum number of parking stalls required. 



 

Alcuin College Update | Transportation Update | September 1, 2020 3 

S:\PROJECTS\DF\04-20-0243 Alcuin College Update\5.0  Deliverables\5.4 Other\04-20-0243_Alc_College_MEM_V02-01.docx 

Table 2.1: Parking Bylaw Requirements 

LAND USE PARKING BYLAW 
REF. 

FLOOR AREA PARKING REQUIREMENT 
RATIO 

REQUIRED STALLS 

Assembly Figure 9-3(D) 592 sqm GFA 1 space per 115 sqm 5 

     

 

A minimum of 5 additional parking stalls are required for the proposed assembly use in accordance 

with the Zoning Bylaw.  

2.2 Vehicle Parking Supply 

Discussed previously, a total of 11 on-site vehicle parking stalls will be provided to satisfy the 

parking requirements of the approved school facilities. Implementation of Strata Bylaw will ensure 

that use of the assembly area will not coincide with school operating hours, and therefore the 

planned school parking facilities will be available for use by visitors to the assembly area. Priority 

access to the on-site parking will still be retained for school staff in the limited instances that they 

remain on-site beyond 5 p.m., as well as for visitors with accessible parking requirements. 

In addition to this, a further 11 off-site parking stalls will be leased at an off-site parking facility 

operated by Impark at 132 West Esplanade (Lot 1275). These parking spaces will be designated as 

reserved 24/7 for Alcuin College’s exclusive use. 

As each individual space becomes available, Alcuin College will lease these spaces with all 11 

spaces projected to be procured by October 1, 2021. If more spaces beyond these initial 11 are 

required, Impark will be able to further lease spaces as they become available. These details are 

confirmed in a letter from Impark to the applicant, dated August 18, 2020, which is contained at 

Appendix B. 

Therefore, a total of 22 vehicle parking stalls will be available for use with the new assembly area, 

representing a surplus of 17 stalls compared with the minimum bylaw requirement of 5 additional 

parking spaces. 

2.3 Proposed Pick-up/Drop-off Service 

The applicant has secured a designated transportation van that will operate pick-up/drop-off (PUDO) 

services for activities associated with the assembly use. A copy of the receipt confirming payment of 

a deposit for this vehicle is included at Appendix C. 

The PUDO service is intended to operate by collecting members of the various community groups 

from their individual residences before dropping them off at the assembly space, with the return 

journey once again dropping members off at their individual residences. 



 

Alcuin College Update | Transportation Update | September 1, 2020 4 

S:\PROJECTS\DF\04-20-0243 Alcuin College Update\5.0  Deliverables\5.4 Other\04-20-0243_Alc_College_MEM_V02-01.docx 

The provision of a PUDO vehicle will further work towards reducing the anticipated parking demand 

and trip generation associated with individuals who would otherwise travel to and from the site via 

private vehicles. 

When not in use, the applicant will park the PUDO vehicle off-site within a parking stall at the 

Impark facilities, leased in addition to the stalls purposefully rented for the assembly use. 

2.4 On-Street Parking 

Although sufficient on-site and off-site parking has been secured to accommodate the forecast 

parking demand for the new assembly area, an update to on-street parking demand surveys 

undertaken as part of the previous submission has been completed. 

As part of the approved scheme, Bunt conducted an on-street parking demand spot count (dated 

October 15, 2015) to identify the amount of existing available parking within a 1-2 block radius of 

the site. This exercise was previously completed to establish if there would be sufficient on-street 

parking capacity to accommodate the anticipated PUDO demand of the school. 

The previous analysis indicated that there would be a demand for 10 parking spaces and 38 parking 

spaces during the AM and PM peak hours respectively to accommodate school PUDO demand. The 

on-street parking surveys showed that this demand could be accommodated with 53 on-street stalls 

available during the AM peak and 47 stalls available during the PM peak hour. 

This memorandum provides an update to these surveys, focussing on the PM peak hour (3 p.m. to 4 

p.m.) and evening period (7 p.m. to 8 p.m.). These periods account for peak school and assembly 

parking demand respectively. The surveys, which were completed by the City on July 30, 2020, 

included a slightly wider study area, which extended approximately 400m from the site, i.e. still 

within walking distance. Using this new data, it was possible to draw comparisons between parking 

demand in 2015 and 2020. Usefully, this also provides an indication of whether or not there have 

been any notable changes as result of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

The updated counts, which included a total of 214 on-street parking stalls, reported that 163 stalls 

(76%) and 160 stalls (75%) were occupied during the afternoon and evening peak hours respectively. 

The spot counts therefore demonstrated that 51 spaces and 54 spaces remained available during 

the respective survey periods. The July 2020 spot count results for the afternoon and evening peak 

hours can be viewed in Exhibit 2.1 and Exhibit 2.2 respectively. 

This is a similar result to the 2015 surveys where 53 stalls were unoccupied during the PM peak 

hour (no evening peak surveys were undertaken). While the afternoon peak hour spot counts verify 

that the conclusions of the previous transportation report (i.e. anticipated school PUDO demand can 

be accommodated locally on-street), they also demonstrate that there would be considerable 

available capacity on-street to accommodate any unlikely overspill associated with the assembly 

use.  



cçêÄÉë=̂îÉ

t=bëéä~å~ÇÉ

t=Nëí=píêÉÉí

t=OåÇ=píêÉÉí

t=PêÇ=píêÉÉí

j~Ü
çå

=^
î É

`Ü
Éë

íÉ
êÑ

áÉ
äÇ

=
^ î

É

içå
ëÇ

~ä
É=̂

îÉ
åì

ÉpÉ
ãá

ëÅ
Ü=̂

î É

_

^
` a

g
f

b

c

d

h i

l

j

m

k

o

n

oÉÑK qçí~ä=
pé~ÅÉë

m~êâáåÖ=
píêÉëë

^ V RSB

_ NU PVB

` V UVB

a T QPB

b U NMMB

c Q TRB

d T OVB

e U UUB

f QQ UQB

g NV UQB

h Q NMMB

i R NOMB

j NR RPB

k OV TSB

l U UUB

m NP NNRB

n P NPPB

o Q ORB

e

[URB=ëíêÉëë
RMJURB=ëíêÉëë
YRMB=ëíêÉëë

páíÉ



cçêÄÉë=̂îÉ

t=bëéä~å~ÇÉ

t=Nëí=píêÉÉí

t=OåÇ=píêÉÉí

t=PêÇ=píêÉÉí

j~Ü
çå

=^
î É

`Ü
Éë

íÉ
êÑ

áÉ
äÇ

=
^ î

É

içå
ëÇ

~ä
É=̂

îÉ
åì

ÉpÉ
ãá

ëÅ
Ü=̂

î É

_

^
` a

g
f

b

c

d

h i

l

j

m

k

o

n

oÉÑK qçí~ä=
pé~ÅÉë

m~êâáåÖ=
píêÉëë

^ V STB

_ NU SNB

` V NMMB

a T QPB

b U TRB

c Q TRB

d T MB

e U RMB

f QQ UOB

g NV UQB

h Q NMMB

i R NMMB

j NR SMB

k OV UPB

l U NORB

m NP TTB

n P NMMB

o Q ORB

e

[URB=ëíêÉëë
RMJURB=ëíêÉëë
YRMB=ëíêÉëë

páíÉ



 

Alcuin College Update | Transportation Update | September 1, 2020 7 

S:\PROJECTS\DF\04-20-0243 Alcuin College Update\5.0  Deliverables\5.4 Other\04-20-0243_Alc_College_MEM_V02-01.docx 

3. CYCLE PARKING 
Well managed, secure, accessible, and covered bicycle parking will be provided as part of the 

development. Table 3.1 summarizes the short-term and secure bicycle parking requirements for the 

development, both for the proposed assembly use and the approved school facilities. 

Note that ‘secure’ spaces are long-term parking that protect against and from inclement weather, 

whereas short-term spaces are for “visitor” parking. 

Table 3.1: Bicycle Parking Supply Requirements and Provision 

LAND USE 
FLOOR 
AREA 

BYLAW 
REFERENCE 

BYLAW RATIO 
BYLAW 

REQUIREMENT 
PROVIDED 

Short-
Term Secure Short-

Term Secure Short-
Term Secure 

School 15,791 sqft 
(1,467 sqm) 

Fig. 10A-02 (D) – 
Civic Uses 

6 spaces 
per 1,000 
sqm GFA 

1 space 
per 250 
sqm GFA 

9 6 9 11 

Assembly 
6,372 sqft  
(592 sqm) 

Fig. 10A-02 (D) – 
Assembly Uses 

6 spaces 
per 500 
sqm GFA 

1 space 
per 250 
sqm GFA 

7 2 7 2 

TOTAL 16 8 16 13 

 

Short-term bicycle parking requirements will be met, while a surplus of 5 secure bicycle parking 

spaces will be provided. 

4. TRIP GENERATION 
A trip generation analysis for the proposed form of development was conducted to determine the 

increase in vehicle trips resulting from the fourth storey assembly use. In order to derive suitable 

vehicle trips rates, the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual (10th Ed.) 

was interrogated. 

Although ‘assembly use’ is not included as one of the surveyed land uses in the online database, it 

is understood that the facilities will be predominantly offered to community groups. Therefore, 

surveyed ‘Recreational Community Center’ sites (Land Use Code: 495) have been considered the 

most appropriate estimator for vehicle trips associated with the proposed assembly use. The only 

available location parameter was ‘General Urban/Suburban’. 

Trip rates were extracted for the PM peak hour only, given that the community uses would be 

available during evening periods only, and are meant to be reflective of an evening period from 5 

p.m. onwards. Importantly, there would no overlap in PM peak vehicle trips with the school uses 

which are expected to occur from 3 p.m. to 5 p.m. 

Table 4.1 presents the vehicle trip rates as well as the corresponding future site-generated vehicle 

trips of the assembly use based on the proposed floor space of 6,372 sqft (592 sqm). 



 

Alcuin College Update | Transportation Update | September 1, 2020 8 

S:\PROJECTS\DF\04-20-0243 Alcuin College Update\5.0  Deliverables\5.4 Other\04-20-0243_Alc_College_MEM_V02-01.docx 

Table 4.1: Vehicle Trip Rates and Trip Generation (Assembly Use Only) 

 
MORNING PEAK AFTERNOON PEAK EVENING PEAK 

IN OUT 2-WAY IN OUT 2-WAY IN OUT 2-WAY 

Vehicle Trip Rate - - - - - - 1.09 1.22 2.31 

Vehicle Trips - - - - - - 7 8 15 

          

 

It can be seen that the proposed assembly use is likely to generate a total of 15 two-way vehicle 

trips during the evening peak hour. With the provision of PUDO service, it is expected that the 

potential vehicular trip generation of the site would be reduced even further. 

For completeness, the anticipated vehicle trip generation of the school facilities has been extracted 

from the original Transportation Assessment Study and is presented in Table 4.2 below along with 

the total site trip generation as well. 

Table 4.2: Total Site Vehicle Trip Generation 

LAND USE 
MORNING PEAK AFTERNOON PEAK EVENING PEAK 

IN OUT 2-WAY IN OUT 2-WAY IN OUT 2-WAY 

School – Staff 10 0 10 0 10 10 - - - 

School – Students 62 62 124 63 63 126    

Assembly - - - - - - 7 8 15 

TOTAL 72 62 134 63 73 136 7 8 15 

5. LOADING 
The City requested that the transportation update provide information on how the site would 

accommodate loading requirements associated with the assembly use. 

The applicant has confirmed that loading is likely to be infrequent given that most furnishings 

associated with the assembly use will be permanent. However, any loading activity that does occur 

will be directed to use the east-west laneway to the north of the development, which is designated 

as a commercial lane. A service door from the development will be accessible directly from the 

alley. 

The City has informed the applicant that loading activity at this location will be permitted, as long 

as the remaining useable lane width is at least 3m when a vehicle is stopped to load or unload. This 

is in accordance with Section 501 of the Zoning Bylaw: 

“Except as otherwise provided in the Bylaw or when necessary to avoid conflict with traffic or to 

comply with the law or the direction of a Peace Officer or traffic control device, no person shall 

stop, stand or park a vehicle: 



 

Alcuin College Update | Transportation Update | September 1, 2020 9 

S:\PROJECTS\DF\04-20-0243 Alcuin College Update\5.0  Deliverables\5.4 Other\04-20-0243_Alc_College_MEM_V02-01.docx 

[…] (8) on a lane, except commercial vehicles while actually engaged in loading or unloading and 

then only when parked in such a manner as to leave on one side of the vehicle more than 3 metres 

of the usable travelled portion of such lane unobstructed for the free movement of vehicular traffic” 

Following a review of the CityMap (an online tool provided by the City), the distance between 

property lines to the north and south of the laneway is approximately 6.35m. The largest vehicle 

expected to service the site would be a single unit truck, which typically requires a width of 3m 

when unloading. As a result, it is expected that the remaining available width in the lane would be 

in the order of 3m, as requested by the City. 

6. SUMMARY & CONCLUSIONS 
The following provides a summary of the findings presented in this memo: 

The fourth storey proposed use will be comprised of assembly floor space and will be made 

available for use by community groups and for occasional business meetings; 

Strata Bylaw will ensure that use of the assembly area will not coincide with school operating 

hours, and therefore the 11 on-site parking spaces planned for the school will be available for 

use by visitors to the assembly area during the evening period; 

A further 11 off-site parking spaces have also been secured at a local Impark facility; 

In total, the new fourth storey will have access to 22 parking spaces; a surplus of 17 stalls 

compared with the minimum bylaw requirement of 5 parking spaces for the assembly area; 

The provision of a PUDO vehicle will further work towards reducing the anticipated parking 

demand and trip generation associated with individuals who would otherwise travel to and from 

the site via private vehicles; 

On-street parking demand surveys completed by the City in July 2020 reported that 163 stalls 

(76%) and 160 stalls (75%) were occupied during the afternoon and evening peak hours 

respectively. In total, 51 spaces and 54 spaces remained available during the respective survey 

periods. In the unlikely event that the assembly area parking demand exceeds supply, there is 

available parking capacity within walking distance of the site. These results also confirm that 

the parking assessment completed for the original scheme remains valid and school PUDO 

could be accommodated; 

The proposed assembly use is likely to generate a total of 15 two-way vehicle trips during the 

evening peak hour; and 

Loading activity is likely to be infrequent given that most furnishings associated with the 

assembly use will be permanent. When it occurs, loading will take place within the commercial 

lane to the north of the site. A minimum of 3m width will remain available when a vehicle is 

stopped to load or unload. 



 

 

 

APPENDIX A 
Terms of Reference



 
Daniel Watson, MSc (Eng) | Transportation Planner 
Planning & Development 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

Street Block Side

Number 
of 

spaces

Lower Lonsdale 
Onstreet parking 

strategy

300 W
Esplan
develo



Mar-17
12:00 19:00 PM

West 1st 200 Block (Chesterfield to Semisch) North Side 17 >85% >85%  

West 1st 200 Block (Chesterfield to Semisch) South Side 15
51 - 
85%

51 - 
85%  

West 1st 200 Block (Semisch to Mahon) North Side 12 >85% >85%
West 1st 200 Block (Semisch to Mahon) South Side 13 >85% >85%

West 1st 300 Block North Side 4 0 - 50%
51 - 
85%

West 1st 300 Block South Side 7
51 - 
85% >85%

West 2nd 200 Block North Side 19 >85%
51 - 
85%  

West 2nd 200 Block South Side 44
51 - 
85%

51 - 
85%  

West 2nd 300 Block North Side 9 0 - 50% >85%

West 2nd 300 Block South Side 18 0 - 50%
51 - 
85%

Chesterfield 
Ave 100 Block East side 4 0 - 50%

51 - 
85%  

Chesterfield 
Ave 200 Block East side 3 >85% >85%  
Mahon Ave 100 Block East side 5 >85% 0 - 50%

Mahon Ave 100 Block West side 4
51 - 
85% 0 - 50%

Mahon Ave 200 Block East side 8 >85% 0 - 50%
Mahon Ave 200 Block West side 8 >85% 0 - 50%
Mahon Ave 300 Block East side 7 0 - 50% >85%  

Mahon Ave 300 Block West side 9 >85%
51 - 
85%  

Semisch Ave 100 Block West side 8 >85% >85%

<image001.jpg> 

Daniel Watson, MSc (Eng) | Transportation Planner
Planning & Development





 

 

 

APPENDIX B 
Letter from Impark



Aaron Prochnau CCPFM
Account Manager 

300 – 601 West Cordova St. Vancouver, B.C. V6B 1G1 Canada
C 604.763.8347 | O 778.371.0380 
aaron.prochnau@reefparking.com | REEF PARKING 



St Alcuin College 
Developer Information Session: 300 w esplanade, North Vancouver

November 2020 
6 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. 

Hosts:  
Brad Lamoureaux
Stella Ablett 
Ryan Deakin 
Dan Duval

Moderator:
Taj Chohan 

Professional Colleagues on Behalf of St Alcuin College:
Lamoureux Architecture Inc. 
Bundt & Associates Inc.
Connect Landscape Architecture Inc. 

City of North Vancouver: 
David Johnson, Planner 

The Meeting: 

This Developer Information Session (DIS) was held in a format in line with the City of
North Vancouver guidelines for virtual information sessions and met all required 
notification requirements.

The peak attendance for the meeting was 183 participants. 

The ambiance of the evening was warm and engaged, even when expressing questions 
or comments the demeanor was respectful. Many attendees were nearby residents, and
local community members. Community members represented residents, local business 
owners and school parents. Hosts and colleagues appeared to listen closely to 
questions and concerns before responding.

Attachment 6



 

Meeting Format: 

1. Moderator Introduction 
2. Rules of engagement included: 

a. respectful communication at all times
b. all participants were muted until their turn to speak 
c. all questions or comments were given a 3 minutes time constraint in order

to ensure all parties were given the opportunity to speak 
d. questions and comments would only be opened up after the applicant was 

provided a chance to present the details of the project

3. Applicant / Project Introduction (Dan Duval)

4. Alcuin video presentation ( https://youtu.be/151SemNZUrs ) 

5. Proposal Specifics (Brad Lamoureux) 
a. general descriptions
b. description of permitted uses 
c. view studies 
d. privacy studies
e. landscape architecture overview 
f. comparative analysis

6. 1st Poll taken (129 votes/ 90% of attendees participated, approximately 6:30pm) 
a. 87% YES
b. 9% NO 
c. 5% Impartial

7. Question & Answer period 
a. See below

8. 2nd Poll taken (118 votes/ 92% of attendees, approximately 7:45pm)
a. 92% YES 
b. 7% NO 
c. 2% Impartial



 

Summary: 

How was it held? 

The Developer Information Session was held on November 12th at 6:00pm. This was based on
the framework provided by the City of North Vancouver Planning department for virtual 
information sessions. The session was hosted using Zoom as the digital platform of choice.  

How many participated/attended (do not include the attendees names, addresses or 
contact information in your summary)? 

There was a peak attendance of 183 participants from the community. 

Summary of key topics discussed and comments  

Positive Comments/ Support 
● Improvement of neighbourhood
● Community benefit for:

○ The students and staff of Alcuin College 
○ Local business owners 
○ Non-profit community groups 
○ Local residents  

● Beautification of empty lot / existing streetscape 
● Addition of community amenity space is welcomed
● Thoughtful building design incorporates

○ Appealing aesthetic 
○ Increase privacy for children and neighbours 
○ Sound dampening for children and neighbours 
○ Energy efficiency 

● Poll Results
○ 92% of the audience voted in support of the project



 

Comments/ questions that required clarification 

Views 

We have conducted two view studies. One was taken from the south property line of 311 E 1st
facing south to provide representation from future balconies. The other was taken from the
street on Mahon Avenue intersecting the alley in order to provide a representation from the 
Quay West building (please see attached drone flight location). Upon visiting the ADP for the 
first time, concerns were raised by the panel about preserving view corridors to the best of our 
ability, most notably for 311 E 1st Street. Although we had already given consideration to 
neighbours' views, our architect and landscape architect went back to the drawing board. We 
then re-attended the ADP with a much more thoughtfully designed building that further improved
view corridors, as well as made the view upon the proposed building itself much more visually 
pleasing. This was achieved by reducing the massing of the building by narrowing the structure 
through implementation of more intelligently designed stair columns that contain 4th storey 
massing completely interior, by reducing floor area and cutting angles at building corners, by 
introducing a northern facade 4th storey balcony for the sole purpose of planting trees and 
suspended vegetation with a width just feasible enough to maintain them and not for human
use, by creating the concept of a north facade abstract artistic cladding with a live green wall
feature to greatly enhance the alley, and by adding a great deal of visually appealing and 
functionally sound dampening/privacy enhancing green screening around the 3rd storey 
perimeter. Both view studies, attached, were then given a comparative analysis to demonstrate 
the improvement of view corridors. Furthermore, new renderings were created to provide a 
visual representation of the improvements. The views of 311 E 1st from the 4th storey and 
below stand to benefit from drastic improvement. The previous application would have the many
residents from south facing storeys 1-4 looking directly across the alley at a bare institutional
wall. The reimagined design creates an interesting streetscape with a ceremoniously envisioned 
alley brought to life by the artistic cladding and live vegetation. All mentioned units will also still 
maintain SE or SW view corridors as they would have otherwise. In fact, ADP requested 
revisions improve these lower storey view corridors comparative to the previously approved 3 
storey school design. Storey 5 of 311 E 1st will also maintain SE and SW view corridors, yet
now view ample live vegetation due South. Both SE and SW view corridors for the 5th storey
have been improved by the mentioned revisions following ADP direction. Storeys 6 and 
Penthouse of 311 E 1st will continue to experience full 200 degree views from SE to NW, 
experiencing panoramic downtown Vancouver views from above the proposed school. The 
Quay West building’s views remain relatively unaffected. The proximity of the building and the 
angled design of the building’s balconies to capture southern views provide maintenance of all 
southern views of the harbour and Downtown Vancouver. Storeys 5 and below will be
unaffected between the approved application and the proposed application. The 6th storey will



 

experience approximately 30 degrees of westerly views interrupted by the proposal, yet still 
maintain vast southern harbour and Downtown Vancouver views. The penthouse will maintain 
full panoramic views over top of the proposal. All storeys will maintain a mountain view corridor 
through the alley. It is important to note that the drone fly location from Mahon Avenue displays 
views that will be greatly improved when actually standing on balconies to the west, and
extremely superior views at units oriented further south in the building. As perspective moves
West and South, SW views of Stanley Park and the Lions Gate Bridge expand. During the DIS, 
we offered to have our architectural photographer attend specific balconies to prove real life 
view maintenance. We are confident that by doing so, we will accurately depict that the of 30 
degrees of westerly view interruption is limited to only two units, and will show that it only 
interrupts the views of those units from the south end of Lions Gate Bridge westerly, yet still 
maintaining views from Downtown to Stanley Park and the mountains. We have not yet been
granted a formal opportunity to attend to prove the far superior view maintenance to our 
appropriate streetside drone flight location.  

Traffic

It was a primary objective of ours to improve traffic by several mechanisms. The use of the 
proposed space will not increase traffic in the daytime as it will be used by the children attending 
the school. Sequential use is proposed outside of school hours and never overlapping. This has 
been explicitly dictated by strata rules. We worked closely with Bunt and Associates, the traffic 
consultants who assisted with the original approval. The school use bylaw typically requires 19
stalls, however a variance for a reduction to 11 on site stalls was awarded during the 3 storey
approval. Bylaw dictates a necessity for 5 available stalls for the assembly use outside of school 
hours. Although parking for the proposed additional use is sufficiently covered by currently 
approved on site stalls in accordance with bylaw given that the use is sequential, we still found 
room for great improvement that will be benefitted by both uses all hours. We procured 11 
additional off site stalls at 132 W Esplanade. We were given a choice between the use of stalls
at the Impark lot, and those of a slightly closer Wespark lot. We determined it prudent to use the
Impark lot at a slightly greater distance as not to promote crossing of the trucking route on 
Forbes and Esplanade. A rationale for doing so has been provided to the ITC. We also 
purchased a passenger van in order to provide car pooling service to community members most 
in need. Furthermore, we added more electrified bike stalls. We are within immediate vicinity of 
the largest transit hub on the North Shore and anticipate extensive use of the network by 
teachers, students, and patrons. A very large percentage of the current student and faculty
population already take public transit, as it is highly encouraged by Alcuin. Lastly, the majority of



 

preliminary assembly use inquiries have come from nearby residents and businesses, many of 
whom have indicated that convenience for walking to the site is an attractive feature of the 
proposed community offering. Bunt and Associates provided a report revision, taking these 
factors as well as updated traffic logistics into consideration. They determined that the proposal 
will not add any additional traffic burden to the area. The report was presented to the ITC, and
was subsequently supported. School pickup/drop off traffic remains unchanged, as was already
approved by the City of North Vancouver. School staff are required to take a traffic management 
course to ensure fluency in appropriate conduct. The continuance of these aspects were 
presented successfully to the ITC. With the proposed sequential use, the maximum capacity of 
the building remains unchanged from the original approved design. 

Privacy / noise

A comparative privacy study was conducted between the approved 3 storey design and the 
proposed 4 storey design. The design of the 4th storey proposal was created with improvement 
of privacy and the mutual promotion of respectful enjoyment of property by surrounding 
residents and school patrons alike. Currently, the proposal contains a school yard on the 3rd 
storey open air deck with direct sightlines and sound penetration to surrounding residents. We
opted to propose canterlievering the 4th storey over the majority of the approved open air deck,
coupled with green screening and improved sound dampening efforts in order to protect all 
party’s privacy. The careful selection of natural sound deadening materials were implemented to 
achieve greater performance of lessened acoustical transfer. Natural materials that are visually 
pleasing to the surrounding residents were chosen, that also enhance privacy. Consequently, 
the same materials were considered as a dual purpose to enhance the mental well being of the 
children, as was indicated as a matter of importance by the ADP. The comparative view study,
attached, provides a visual representation of over 100 students using the currently approved
roof deck. The same population of people remains in the rendering of the 4 storey design with 
enhanced privacy, though they cannot be seen due to the implementation of new materials. 
Alcuin students use their rec area rain or shine, and the 3rd storey roof deck will be used as a 
school yard daily by default if not improved upon. By adding the 4th storey and having created 
stratification for the exclusive use of Alcuin students during school hours, it allows for the same
daily programming to be contained indoors the majority of the time. The roof deck will still be
used, but not nearly as often as daily. When used, it will be more appropriately contained as 
described. When the indoor area is used alternatively, and usually, activity will be completely 
contained, thereby enhancing privacy and lessening noise in all circumstances.  

Parking



 

Parking has been doubled as described in the section regarding traffic. We now have a total of 
22 available stalls, comparative to the previously approved 11 stalls. Hence, Alcuin now has 22 
stalls rather than 11 stalls (+100%), and sequential community use now has use of 22 stalls 
rather than the bylaw requirement of 5 stalls (+440%). Bunt and Associates has overseen our 
efforts to reduce parking burdens through implementation of additional available stalls,
increased electrified bike stalls, and the addition of a car pool vehicle. Recent spot counts were
updated to conclude that our proposal increases parking availability and lessens burden on 
surrounding residents and businesses. Questions have been raised by nearby residents about 
parking, pick up, and drop off within the cul-de-sac at 64 Mahon Avenue. As dictated in the 
traffic management plan, no such activity is permitted. A pick up/drop off zone has already been 
allocated by the City and remains unchanged. We propose to pay for residents only parking 
signage below E 1st Street within the cul-de-sac, if the City of North Vancouver deems
appropriate.  

Hours of operation 

Hours and use are to remain unchanged from the 2017 approval. Alcuin always contemplated 
use of the roof deck as a common space after 3pm, on weekends, and during summer. The
intent is to more appropriately contain the intended use and provide further benefit to the
students and community. The hours of operation will remain within CNV bylaw parameters. 
Furthermore, use of the space will be governed by Alcuion’s charter, which is more stringent 
than bylaw requirement. 

Disorderly conduct / safety 

Disorderly conduct will not be tolerated at all. Furthermore, measures will be taken to prevent
such activity. Alcuin’s charter of conduct will enforce respectful use of the space at all times, 
whether during class or during community use. It is of utmost importance to Alcuin that 
reputation standards are upheld, and that promotion of respect and inclusiveness remains 
paramount. A representative member will be in attendance at all hours of use. An adjacent 
resident indicated that there have been repeated incidents on the block requiring police
intervention. We plan to assist the well being and safety of the neighbourhood. We will be an
additional set of eyes, with security protocol, added to the block. We also have a relationship 
with local RCMP for school liaison, and have been in contact with them about using the 4th 
storey space to further promote safety education and community inclusiveness. Through 
positive interaction, law enforcement presence will increase, in addition to our own added efforts 
to promote safety. The vacancy of the site, as well as that of the adjacent northern sites, is likely 
detrimental to undesirable conduct. The more positive community use of the space that occurs,
the less opportunity there will be for crime to occur undetected.



 

Loitering 

The school is intended to accommodate middle and high school students. The current design 
does not give the students a variety of contained space to enjoy outside of their classrooms.
The students will be dissuaded from crossing the trucking route unless for purposeful activities
and commute. Being teenagers, it is expected that they will undoubtedly look for covered 
privacy near to, yet outside of the school classes, during their intermittent free time. We expect 
to contend with them taking refuge from the elements on Mahon Avenue under the cover of the 
front entrance and at the entrance of the parkade ramp. By adding the 4th storey 
unprogrammed space, we are providing a much more suitable variety of space for the students 
to socialize within on site. The outdoor covered deck becomes an inviting and private urban
oasis. The proposed indoor space will become another inviting area to converse that is 
contained on site. Our ability to prevent student loitering adjacent to residences vastly improves, 
as does the safety of the students by not being tempted to cross the trucking route or to situate 
themselves near in and out parking traffic. Loitering during community use will be discouraged 
ongoing by our always on site representative staff members. 

Safety on Forbes/Esplanade corner

This concern has been raised many times. It is a busy and therefore inherently dangerous 
corner. Our improved building design/functionality, increased parking and carpool availability, 
and maintenance of our traffic management plan aim to promote safety with this specifically in 
mind. If the City of North Vancouver would like us to take part in any additional efforts to 
promote safety of this corner we are pleased to contribute.

Increased building expenses / covered roof deck 

An adjacent resident from Quay West was curious if the elaborate design of the 4th storey, 
cantilevered over the 3rd storey patio is more expensive than alternatively placing the 4th storey 
at the 3rd storey level and providing a roof deck on the 4th storey. The answer is yes, absolutely
it is much more costly to design the proposal the way that we did. Cost was not our primary
consideration when livability of nearby residents and functionality for school patrons is a 
contending issue. For the multitude of reasons previously described that focus on both privacy 
and safety, we opted for a more costly design to prioritize the enjoyment and safety of our 
community.  

Will the amenity space be sold



 

The amenity space will not be sold. It is being made a reality through contribution by parent 
participation. Stratification will occur for joint ownership and operation by the Alcuin/Parent 
partnership. The only provision for sale contractually permitted is for Alcuin to increase share 
ownership of the strata lot over time, in part or in whole. It is contemplated that Alcuin will solely  
own the entire building, and in the meantime they maintain a controlling share.

Why not use current available community spaces 

There are several nearby rental amenities in the Lower Lonsdale area. Alcuin has rented these 
locations in the past for particular events such as graduation. However, co-founder 
Stella Ablett  described the perpetually increasing difficulty of availability and costs associated 

with gaining access to these spaces. Alcuin College is a non-profit foundation. In addition, 
tuition is reduced in instances according to a family’s economic circumstance. The financial 
burden for using spaces frequently, especially with rates already risen and expected to rise with 
inflation, is prohibitive. Most importantly, using external rental facilities limits the variety of
ongoing uses. The 4th storey proposal is intended for everyday use and enrichment of student’s
lives. Being able to offer it as a lesser cost, or no cost, option for community amenity use that 
meets a different demographic than those currently offered is a result of the synergy between 
Alcuin having ongoing ownership use of the space combined with our core values of community. 

Wedding / type of use 

Many questions have been directed regarding the use of space for weddings and alcohol
consumption. The proposed 4th storey has not been designed to appropriately host weddings in 
the way that nearby event rental spaces have been. The proposal does not contain a kitchen, a 
bar, or a designated reception space. It is designed to accommodate a wider range of 
community uses that lend more to seminars, workshops, and outreach programming. In fact, it is 
designed to replicate the use of education during school hours, after hours, without excessive 
change or set up. Most importantly, inappropriate alcohol consumption does not align with
Alcuin’s charter or beliefs. An example was made that we will not rule a celebration of love out 
simply based on the word wedding, however, it will be looked at critically on a case by case 
basis, as all community requests will be. Absolutely all community uses will have to align with 
Alcuin’s charter of use and strong community values. Events requesting alcohol consumption in 
any context will be required to make their own independent inquiry to the CNV after preliminary 
vetting by Alcuin, with approval or denial to be determined municipally. Nearby residents should
anticipate uses that have been already asked and approved by us as candidates, such as:
child/adult/seniors fitness, immersive toddler story time, continuing education, language 
development, arts instruction, small business satellite flex space for seminars, non-profit 



 

sharing, etc. None of these community events, no matter what the topic, will be permitted to 
become unruly, and will be selected on a basis of that not being a possibility to begin with. 

Why wasn't this part of the original application 

The building was originally designed to accommodate up to 6 storeys similar to the surrounding
buildings, and a 4th storey was initially designed. The foundation and systems of the building 
were initially designed for highest and best use, and remain over engineered even for 4 storeys. 
Being a non-profit, compromises were required by Alcuin College throughout initial budgeting 
and implementation. One of the compromises was at both student’s and nearby resident’s 
expense, to only provide an open air school yard and public space. It was not ideal but the only 
option within means at the time. Then, great intentions from many minds came together. The
school has a core value of community involvement.  The parent population is very actively 
involved in the school and the community, both by activity led by the school and also by 
independent endeavour and mindset in many instances. Since 2017, several parents have 
combined efforts to creatively achieve feasibility of the space. Nearly every school has a 
gymnasium for enrichment of student’s education, the school’s necessity for functions, and they 
almost always open their doors periodically for community engagement. Our parents
enthusiastically yet methodically developed a plan that appropriately meets all needs, plus
provides an even greater opportunity for community benefit. Parents then committed the 
necessary resources to supplement as angel investors, thereby providing Alcuin College a
feasible path to inclusion of such a crucial space, while simultaneously doing a great service for
the City in which we reside and participate. It is not an afterthought, but it is a well thought out
plan that took an incredible amount of collaboration, the creativity of providing a community 
benefit to assist, and a fair amount of time to perfect.  

Summary of how issues have been considered and solutions incorporated into the 
programming or design of the development proposal. 

Most of the concerns expressed throughout the information sharing process to date had been 
contemplated by the aforementioned foresight, consultancy, and through the helpful guidance of 
municipal advisory panels and staff. Community engagement prior to the DIS also guided us to 
commit to a high standard for enhancement of materials, privacy, safety, operation 
considerations, etc. During the DIS some very insightful observations were brought to our 
attention. We have continued to work with community members to discover how we can further
address ideas. On December 10th we are also commencing the first of many virtual ‘Tea &
Chat’ community meetings hosted by Alcuin College to provide an ongoing platform for 
surrounding community members to engage and collaborate with us, aside from we being 



 

available ongoing on a daily basis for discussion. We’re an open book but we’d like to also 
encourage formal instances of opportunity to promote engagement. We love to hear from the 
community. The idea of the Tea & Chat platform to not only serve as a platform for community 
engagement during construction, but also to continue during operation so that we can continue 
to engage the public, and to provide continual assurance that we are responsible and
accountable.

Environmental  
● We are considering solar panels to enhance. We will certainly now prepare for them by 

installing necessary infrastructure during the build, in response to a community 
member’s comments during the DIS. 

● Investigating alternate carbon reduction initiatives (CARBON CURE)

Clarification of information regarding Laco petition 

Clarification has been provided to several community members independently upon request, to 
local government and staff, and to those attending the DIS. The petition has since been 
removed by change.org for violation of their terms of use concerning misinformation. We feel
that we have appropriately responded to dispel inaccuracies and confusion, and wish to focus
on the positivity of the project for the school and the community rather than to continue to 
entertain mistruth and malicious activity by the repetition of addressing the specific content. The 
majority of discontent with this application arose from this malicious petition. Once accurate 
information was shared, the majority of those have since expressed retraction, indifference, or 
have taken the opportunity to collaborate with separate ideas. We have personally responded to 
every single person that has contacted us to request information or details.



 

Virtual DIS - Signs / Notices 

Signs on Site 
Signs were placed on Forbes ave and Mahon Ave in accordance with guidelines provided by 
the CNV planning department. Time stamped photos were taken.

North Shore News 
North Shore News advertisements were done in accordance with the guidelines provided by the 
CNV planning department.  

Notice of DIS
Handouts were provided to local residents as indicated on the map provided by the CNV 
planning department. Additionally a copy of the handout was provided to Strata of nearby 
residential buildings as access to units was prohibited due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Strata 
acknowledged in email that the handout was distributed successfully to all residents by the 
appropriate deadline. Time stamped photos were taken of hand deliveries.  

Comment Sheet
Comment sheets were collected from residents over the 2 week period following the virtual DIS. 
Comment cards have been included with this package in accordance with the guidelines 
provided by the CNV planning department. In total 84 comment sheets were sent to us directly. 
All 84 received are in support and 0 are in opposition. Comments for suggested improvement 
have been documented and are being explored.  

Attachments

● Comment Sheets  
● View Study 311 E 1st Street 
● View Study Quay West 
● Privacy Study
● Signage Verification
● NS News Verification 
● 40m DIS Notification Verification 

Continued inquiry can be made at alcuin@montaignegroup.ca. We will promptly arrange 
interaction by phone, email, virtually, or distanced in person. 



Good Neighbor Letter: 



DIS Handout:



DIS Signage: 
Forbes 

 

Mahon:

 



North Shore News: 
Nov 4th, 2020 

Nov 11th 2020 



Alcuin Renderings 



Mahon Ave View Study 

 



Mahon Ave View Study 

 



311 E 1st View Study

 



Location of Drone Shots for Mahon Ave View Studies

 



 Privacy Study 

 



People populated without privacy as per approved

People populated with privacy as per proposal 

 



2/19/2021

1

Public Hearing 
presentation for 
63 Mahon Avenue
Bylaw No. 8819

Presented March 1, 2021
Development Planning

Introduction
For Council’s 
consideration, a proposed 
rezoning application to 
amend the current CD-
684 Zone to add an 
additional floor on top of a 
previously approved 
private school.

2



2/19/2021

2

Background
The previous application 
was approved by Council 
on February 6, 2017.  
• Two full storeys and 

one partial storey;
• At the time it did not 

include an indoor multi-
use space.

• The applicant now 
wishes to achieve this 
by adding an additional 
floor to the building.

3

Background
• Building Permit 

application based on 
previous Council 
approval has been 
applied but permit is not 
issued.

• Some initial site work 
has started.

• Should the additional 
floor be approved, the 
applicant will revise BP 
application to include  
the top floor.

4



2/19/2021

3

Location

5

Land Use and Zoning

OCP Designation
• Mixed-Use Level 4A (MU4A)
• 2.60 FSR base
• Up to 6 Storeys can be 

considered
Zoning
• CD- 684 (per Council 2017 

approval)
• 1.90 FSR max.
• Height can be up to 50 feet 

per LL-3 base Zone.
• 2017 approved building 

height is 43.7 feet.

6



2/19/2021

4

Context

7

Proposal
Most of the building would 
not change, including: 
• same underground 

parking level and the 
first two floors;

• same off-site frontage 
improvements

8

M
ahon Ave

Lane



2/19/2021

5

Proposal
• Slight modifications to 

the outdoor space on 
the third level through 
landscaping finishing, 
which would now be 
covered by the 
proposed fourth floor.

• The interior space on 
the third level would  
remain the same.  

9

M
ahon Ave

Lane

Proposal
• The proposed fourth 

floor is intended to be 
used as a multi-use 
space for the school 
during school hours.

• After school hours the 
space can still be 
used by the school, 
but is also available to 
the wider community.

10

M
ahon Ave

Lane



2/19/2021

6

Proposal
The school intends to 
use this space for school 
gatherings such as:
• Graduation
• Science Fairs
• Active space
• Assemblies

11

Proposal
The proposed uses for 
the public is focused on 
the community to 
encourage:
• Continuing Education
• Seniors activities
• Art Exhibitions
• Meeting space for local 

Non-Profit groups and 
local businesses

12



2/19/2021

7

Proposal
The applicant has 
reached out to local 
groups and offered this 
space for them to use 
during after-school 
hours, free of charge:
• Big Brothers and Big Sisters
• Scouts
• North Shore Community 

Resources
• Squamish Nation
• Canadian Iranian Foundation

13

Community 
Benefits

• No requirement for the applicant to offer a 
community benefit in this application.

• Should the application move forward, the applicant 
is willing to secure the commitments being offered in 
an agreement to formalize the details, including:
– Terms; and
– Criteria to ensure fairness and community access

• This commitment would be formalized and secured 
through a Community Use Agreement, which the 
City is a party to.

14



2/19/2021

8

Transportation and 
Parking

• Site is adjacent to a main truck and bus route through 
the City.

• Adjacent to the AAA bike network where an extension of 
the separated bike lane was secured as part of the 
previous approval.

• Access to Mahon from Esplanade will be closed off to 
provide a safer pedestrian and cycling path.

• On-site parking for 11 vehicles is in the underground 
parking lot.  It also has space for secured bike parking, 
mechanical and LEC connection rooms.

15

Transportation and 
Parking
• The Zoning Bylaw requires a 

minimum of 5 more parking 
stalls for the top floor.

• An additional 11 parking 
stalls is proposed to help with 
parking with the additional 
floor space.

• Off-site location at 132 West 
Esplanade is secured 
through a long-term lease 
(440m away from the site).

16

(Insert graphic from 
drawings)



2/19/2021

9

Transportation and 
Parking
• The applicant has also  

secured a vehicle to help 
transport those between the 
school and this parking lot.

• A requirement to secure the 
off-site parking can be 
incorporated in the 
Development Covenant that 
will be registered on title. 

17

(Insert graphic from 
drawings)

Transportation and 
Parking

A revised Transportation Study was submitted to look at 
specifically reviewing the changes made to the previous 
approval.
• The maximum school enrolment of 200 students has not 

changed.  
• The additional floor space would be used by the school 

during school hours and not available for outside use.
• Pick-up and drop-off plan would not change.
• Deliveries to the site would not affect the normal use of 

the school, and staff is satisfied that a variance to a 
loading bay be granted.

18



2/19/2021

10

Transportation and 
Parking

• The Zoning Bylaw supports off-site parking to be 
counted as part of the parking total for locations within 
121.9 metres (400 feet) of the subject site.

• The proposed location is outside this distance and does 
not meet the requirement.  A variance to the Zoning 
Bylaw for the 5 additional parking stalls for the added 
floor space is required.
– Supported due to the location of the site being close to several 

Public Transit routes and the Lonsdale Seabus Terminal and bus 
loop.  

– A shuttle bus will be able to transport people to/from the school 
to other areas of the City.

19

Zoning

The proposal requires an amendment to the current CD-
684 Zone by:
• Increasing the allowable building height from 50 feet to 

64.9 feet.
• Increasing the allowable density from 1.90 FSR to the 

OCP base of 2.60 FSR.
• Lot coverage above the second storey.

No amendment to the permitted uses is required – the 
intended use of the proposed top floor meets the assembly 
use that is already listed in the Zone.

20



2/19/2021

11

Advisory 
Committees

Integrated Transportation Committee
• Presented the application and the Transportation Study 

on September 9, 2020.
• The proposal was supported.
• Suggested a role of an “traffic and parking coordinator” 

to manage parking demand on site including 
communication with potential community users of limited 
street parking in the area, and that users find other 
means of getting to the site other than private vehicles.

21

Advisory 
Committees
Advisory Design Panel
• Presented the application twice to the Panel.

– September 16, 2020 the Panel asked the applicant to return.
• Reduce the size of the building at the north end to improve the sightlines from the 

building to the north;
– October 21, 2020 where the Panel gave unanimous support to the 

application.
• Improvements to the proposal from the first review:

– Improvements to screening views to and from the east side of the 
outdoor section of the third floor by adding landscaping to screen the 
views and soffit material to dampen noise;

– Top corners of the proposed floor were shrunk to improve views from 
the northern property; and

– Vines on the north side of the building were added to soften the look 
from the northern property.

22



2/19/2021

12

Community 
Consultation

• The applicant held their Virtual DIS on November 
12, 2020 following a notification process in 
accordance with City recommendations.

• An estimated 183 people attended with most of 
those attending in favor of the proposal, citing the 
following reasons:
– Provides the school with a flexible space for student activities 

and events;
– Finding space to conduct these activities has been difficult in the 

past; and
– There is high demand for this space from community and cultural 

groups for low cost meeting and gathering space. 

23

Community 
Consultation

• Staff separately received a number of letters in 
opposition to the proposal, identifying:
– The type of users of the proposed additional floor 

outside of school hours would bring unwanted noise 
to the neighbourhood;

– Proposed scale of the building would be too big for 
the site; and

– Anticipated traffic would further disrupt an already 
busy area.

24



2/19/2021

13

Community 
Consultation

• A private company (Laco Holdings) has submitted its 
own community engagement and transportation study 
report on the proposal;

• The report outlined concerns that echo similar 
comments heard from those who opposed the 
proposal.

• Staff have communicated to Laco Holdings and their 
consultants regarding our concerns on the process 
undertaken by Laco Holdings and issues that were 
included in the report, including:

25

Community 
Consultation

• Lack of clarity on who is conducting the survey and lack of 
full detail regarding the proposal on their survey;

• Did not outline where additional information on the 
proposal could be found – i.e. the City’s Let’s Talk 
webpage or City project planner;

• Did not outline what the information being asked of the 
respondent would be used for; and

• A significant error in the materials suggesting the 
proposal’s height is similar to a 9 storey building.

26



2/19/2021

14

Staff Response

Public feedback on the application has assisted 
staff in its evaluation of this application: 
• Overall, OCP/use is supportable – staff are only 

assessing the incremental impact of the additional floor.
• Staff is satisfied with the applicant’s effort in mitigating 

any massing and related private view impacts.
• There is a high demand of such a space and can be put 

to good use – Community Use Agreement to secure 
access is recommended.

• Off-site parking commitment can be secured through the 
Development Covenant.

27

Staff Response

• The applicant is also interested in collaborating with 
residents in the area and put into practice an “operation 
agreement” to address any concerns regarding noise, 
parking on a continuing basis whenever the school or the 
space is in operation – this is up to the applicant.

28



2/19/2021

15

Conclusion

• The proposed top floor addition is intended to 
provide a multi-use space for students, staff, 
local community and cultural groups as well as 
space for local business meetings.

• Local not-for-profit groups have been offered 
free rent for the use of the space.

29

Conclusion

• Concerns from the neighbourhood about the 
operation of the school and the space, such as 
parking, noise and cleanliness, can be 
addressed through an applicant-driven initiative 
to work with the neighborhood;

• Off-site improvements are unchanged from the 
previous approval and have already been 
secured.

30



2/19/2021

16

31

Thank you.



ALCUIN COLLEGE
63 MAHON AVENUE

PUBLIC HEARING
CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER

MARCH 2021

PUBLIC HEAAARIRARING - ANG AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAALCUINLCUINLCUINLLLLLCLCLCLCUINLCCLCCCUINCUICUINCUIUICUUCUICUIIINLCUINNCUINLCUINCUINCUINLCULCUINLCUINLLCUINCCUINUCUIILCUINCUINLCUINCUINCUINLLC INNLLLLLCCCUINUCUIINNNNNLCCCC NLLLCCC NNNLCCUINNNLCUINCCC NNNNNLLLLLCUINC NLLLC NLLC NNNLLC NN COLLCCOLLCOLLCCOCOCOCOLLECOLLECOLLECOLLECOLLECOOCOLLOLLEGCOLLEGOLLCOOLLEGCOLLLLCOLLCOLLELECOLLEEEEGEGGGGGGEGGGCOLLEGOLLEGCOCOLLCCCOCOLLEGLLCOLLEEEGEGGGGOLLEGOLLEGCCCOCCOOOLLEGOLLOLCOLLEGCOLLEEEGGEGGGOLLEGCCOLLECOOCOLLEGCOLLEEGGGGEGGLLEGGCCOLLECOO EEGGGGGGGGCOLLEGCOLLEGCOLLECOLLEOO EEEEGGGGGGGGCO EEEGGGGGGCCCCCOOOLLEGEEGGGGGCCOLLOOOO LEGGGOO EGGGCCCCCOCCCOOOO LEEEEOLLEGCCCCOOO LEEEEGE - ME ME - MAE - MA - ME - ME - MMAMMMMMMAMAAAAMAAAAE - MAE - M- MAE - MAE - MAMAMMAAAAAAE - MAE - MMMMMMMAAAAE - MMMME - MAAAAAE - MMMMMAMAAAAAAMAE - MMMMMAAEE - MMME - MAEE - ME - MMAAAE - MAE - MMAAAAAAEE  MMMMAMAAEEEEE  MAMMEEEE  MAE MMMAARCH 20RCH 2RCH 2RRRRRRCH 20RCHCH RCHCHCH 20RCH 20RCH CH 20RCH 2RCH 2RCH 20RCH 20RCH 20CH 2RCH 20RCH 2RCH 2022RCH 20RCH 20RCRRRCHCH 20RCHCHRCH 20CHRCH 2CHRCH 20CH 200RCH 20RCH 20RCH 20RCCH 2CH 00RRRCCHCH 20RCH 20H 0RRCH 20RCHRCH 20CCH 20CH CH 2CH 20RCRRRCH 20RCH 20CCH RCH 2CRRCR 00RRRRCRCCRCCHHH 200RCCRCH 2RCRRC 0RRRRCCCCHH RRCCH 2 22222212122212122212112222122211122211

PHOTO CONTEXT MAP
NTS1

63 MAHON
AVENUE

O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
     SITE

 LO
C

A
TIO

N



PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 20221

CONTEXT PLAN
1/32” = 1’-0”1

63 MAHON
AVENUE

O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
     SITE

 C
O

N
TE

X
T

O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
     2 .5  STO

R
E

Y D
E

SIG
N

 (2017)

PREVIOUS DESIGN (2017)
2.5 STOREY BUILDING1

*IMAGE COURTESY OF STUDIO B ARCHITECTS



PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
     4 STO

R
E

Y D
E

SIG
N

 (2020)

PROPOSED DESIGN (2020)
4 STOREY BUILDING1

PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
     4 STO

R
E

Y D
E

SIG
N

 (2020)

PROPOSED DESIGN (2020)
4 STOREY BUILDING1



PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
     4 STO

R
E

Y D
E

SIG
N

 (2020)

PROPOSED DESIGN (2020)
4 STOREY BUILDING1

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 D

E
SIG

N
     A

D
P PR

O
C

E
SS



B
U

ILD
IN

G
 D

E
SIG

N
     A

D
P PR

O
C

E
SS

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 D

E
SIG

N
     A

D
P PR

O
C

E
SS

ELEVATOR

LOBBY

L4-01

111.82 SF

EVENT SPACE

L4-02

4413.48 SF

MENS WC

L4-04

198.11 SF

WOMENS WC

L4-05

219.39 SF

STAIR 1

L4-ST1

275.51 SF

STAIR 2

L4-ST2

183.38 SF

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

76.00'EL

OUTDOOR PATIO

L4-03

62.10 SF

BUILDING BELOW

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 B
E

LO
W

BUILDING BELOW

ROOFTOP PLANTING
ROOFTOP GARDEN

L4-06

317.97 SF*

ROOFTOP PLANTING

D
N

D
N

ROOF

78.50'

ROOF

77.33'

ROOF

76.00'

GUARDRAIL 60" A.F.F.
E.L. 81.00'

PARAPET EDG
EL. 78.50'

5 5/8" 1'-2" 13'-5" 7'-3 3/8" 9'-8 5/8" 6'-5" 17'-2" 9" 5" 8'-11" 7"7" 7'-3" 7'-5 5/8"

8'-3 7/8"

23'-1 3/4"

45'-8 1/8"

30'-2 3/4"

7'-10 1/8" 10'-7" 1'-0" 6'-2" 2'-5" 1'-0" 5 5/8"

11'-5 1/2"

TO P/L

13'-1 3/8" 81'-7 1/4" 2'-8 1/2"

TO P/L

2 3/8"

TO
 P/L

5'-4"
15'-4 1/8"

3'-6"
45'-9 7/8"

3'-6"
12'-8 1/4"

9'-0"
5'-0"

8'-11"

TO
 P/L

16'-9 5/8"

TO
 P/L

107'-4 1/2"

9'-8 3/8"

TO
 P/L

19'-5 3/4" 10'-0" 6'-3 1/2"

TO P/L

16'-9 1/2" 11 1/2"

1'-6
"

8'-11 1/8"

PARAPET EDGE TBD A.F.F.
EL. 78.50'

G BELOW

FROOF

78.50'

L4L4L44 006066L4L4 06

1111
FFROOOFOROROOOOFF

L4 SET-BACK 5FT FROM L3 - 5.3FTPLANTING AT L4 ADDED

MASSIN
STAIR C
REDUCE

PROJECTION AT
NORTH - WEST CORNER REDUCED

BLUE OUTLINING
REVISED FOOTPRINT

RED OUTLINING
PREVIOUS FOOTPRINT

ROOFTOROOFTOPOOFTOROOFTOPTO  PLANTINGLAANTING PLANTINGPLANTINGN ROOFTOROOFTOOOFTOPOOFTOPROOFTOROR PLANTIN PLANTINGPLPLANTINNTROOFTOPROOFTOPOOOFTOPOO  PLANTINGPLANLANTINGNTING PLANTINGN ROROOOFTOROOFTOOFTOPOFTOPOFTOPOOO  PLANTINGPLANTPLANTINGLANTINLANT NGNT G
ROOFTOP GARDENROOFTOP GARDENOOFTOP GARDENROOFTOP GARDENROOFTOP GARDENOFTOP GARDEROOFTOP GARDEOOROOFTOP GARDENOOFTOP GAROFTOP GARDENAARFTOP GARARDDOOFTOP GARDENOOOFTOP GAR ENFTOOPOOFTFTOFTOP

ROROOFROROOOOFFTOOOOFTTTOOPOPOPPTTOOOP PPPLANTINGLANTANNNTINGINP N INGG ROOFTOPROOFROOFTOPROOFTOPOFFTOPOFTOO  PLANTINGPLANTINGPLANTINPLANTINGLAAN INGPLANTINGPL NTTINGGGGGGGGGGGGG

FFFFFFFRROROROOFOOFOFOOFROOFFOOOOFOORROOOFRRROOO

777777777777.3333'.33'33'.33'.33'33'33''333'.3

3313311331331

L4-06L4-0L4L44-004-06066LL4L4-L4-00666L4 66L444-

17177717771177117 9.97.977..977977 ****SSFSF*F**SF*F*SFF
FFFFFFROORROOOOOFOOOOFOFROOFROOROOOOOFR FRRROOOOFF

77776676767667776677676.00'.00'000000''.00'00'.00'00000.. 0

FFFROOFRROOFROOOOOOOORROOOOOF



PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 D

E
SIG

N
     A

D
P PR

O
C

E
SS

PREVIOUS DESIGN     (PRESENTED SEPTEMBER 16, 2020)

REVISED DESIGN (CURRENT AS OF OCTOBER 21, 2020)

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 D

E
SIG

N
     V

IE
W

S



PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 D

E
SIG

N
     A

LC
U

IN

PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 D

E
SIG

N
     A

LC
U

IN



PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 D

E
SIG

N
     SU

PPO
R

T

PPPUBLIPUBLICPUBLICPUBLICPUBPUBUBUUUPUBLICPUBLICPUBLICPUBLICPUBPUBLICPUBLICCCPUBLICPUBLICPPPUBUPUBLIPUBL CUUUUBPUBLICPUBPUBLICPUUUUUPUBPUBLICPUBLICPUUUBUUUPUPUUPPUUPUBPU L CCPUUUB HHEHHHHEHEEARIEARIHEARIEARIEARIEAEARIEAEAREARIEARIARIEAREARIEARIEARIHHEHEEAEEAEAEARIARRHEAEEARHEHEARHEARIARHHEARRARE IEE RHEEAH R NG - ANGNG - ANG - ANG - AGGGNG - ANG - ANGNNGNGGGGG AGGGGGNG -GNGGNGGNGG LCUINLCUINLCUINLCUINLCUINLCUINLCUINCUINUINUIUINUUUUUUIININUINUINUINUUINUUUUIINUIUUUINNUUUUINUUULCUINUU NUINNNUINUUUU COLLEGCCOCOLLECCOLLCOLLCOLLECOCOLLEGCOLLOLLEOLLEGOLLCOLLEGOLOLLEGLLCOLLEGCOLLLEGLELLCOLLCOLLEEECOLLEGGCOLLEGGGGGGCOLLEGCOLLEGCOLLEGCCOLLEGCOLLEGEEGGGGGGCOLCOLLECOLLLLELOLLEGCOLLEGGOLLEGCCCOLLLLEGGCCCOLLLCC GC LEGLEGCOO LELCCO LEGCOLLEGC LELEC L GL EEEEEEE MMMMMMMM - MM- MAMAE - MAE - MAAMAAAE - MAE - MAE - MAEEE MMM- MME - MAE - MAE - MAEEEEEE - MMAE - MAE - MAEEE -E - M- ME - AEE -E RRRCRCRCCCCCCCCHCHCHCHHHHH 20HH 20HH 2 222222220H 20H 20H 200RCRCRCRCCCCCHH 2200RCCCCCH 20HH 2H 22CH 2H 200CCCCHCH 2RCCH 2RCCHHR 200CHHC 2220C 2RCH 20212122222121212121211

MAHON AVE

FORBES AVE W
 1ST STR

E
E

T
W

 1ST STR
E

E
T

E
SPLA

N
A

D
E

2N
D

 ST W
2N

D
 ST W

3R
D

 ST W
3R

D
 ST W

MAHON AVE

VANCOUVER 
HARBOUR

EAST CONTEXT ELEVATION (MAHON AVE)
1

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 D

E
SIG

N
     B

U
ILD

IN
G

 H
E

IG
H

T



PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 D

E
SIG

N
     4TH

 FLO
O

R
 A

D
D

ITIO
N

PUBLIC H

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 D

E
SIG

N
     PU

B
LIC

 E
N

G
A

G
E

M
E

N
T



PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 D

E
SIG

N
     3R

D
 FLO

O
R

 PA
TIO

PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 D

E
SIG

N
     3R

D
 FLO

O
R

 PA
TIO



PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 D

E
SIG

N
     PR

IVA
C

Y

PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

PROPOSED DESIGN (2020)
4 STOREY BUILDING1

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 D

E
SIG

N
     PR

IVA
C

Y



PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

D
N

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

ELEVATOR

PROPERTY LINE

5'-0"
9'-0"

12'-8 1/4"
3'-6"

45'-9 7/8"
3'-6"

15'-4 1/8"
5'-4"

3

3

4

4

5

5

2

2

1

4'-5"5'-7"19'-5 3/4"

1'-0"

TO
 P/L

17'-10"
29'-3"

26'-10"
19'-3"

15'-1 5/8"

TO
 P/L

1'
-0

"

TP
 P

/L

17
'-

10
"

29
'-

3"
26

'-
10

"
19

'-
3"

15
'-

1 
1/

2"

TP
 P

/L

39'-7 1/2"

TO P/L

17'-0" 24'-4" 17'-9" 10'-2 1/8"

TO P/L

39'-7 1/2"

TO P/L

17'-0" 24'-4" 17'-9" 10'-2 1/8"

TO P/L

2 3/8"

TO
 P/L

8'-11"

TO
 P/L

100'-2 1/4"

11'-5 1/2"

TO P/L

13'-1 3/8" 73'-7 1/4" 8'-0" 2'-8 1/2"

TO P/L

9'-8 3/8"

TO
 P/L

106'-3 3/4"

17'-10 1/2"

TO
 P/L

6'-3 1/2"

TO P/L

29'-5 3/4"
M

E
C

H
.

LOBBY

L4-01

111.82 SF

EVENT SPACE

L4-02

4413.48 SF

MENS WC

L4-04

198.11 SF

WOMENS WC

L4-05

219.39 SF

STAIR 1

L4-ST1

275.51 SF

STAIR 2

L4-ST2

183.38 SF

76.00'EL

OUTDOOR PATIO

L4-03

62.10 SF

BB

CC

DD

EE

AA

D
N

L3 ROOFTOP DECK BELOW

BUILDING BELOW

BUILDING BELOW

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 B
E

LO
W

OUTDOOR PATIO

L4-06

317.97 SF*

L4 PLAN
1/16” = 1’-0”1

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 D

E
SIG

N
     PR

IVA
C

Y

PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

PROPOSED DESIGN (2020)
4 STOREY BUILDING1

 
P

U
B

LIC
 C

O
N

C
E

R
N

S     R
E

-ZO
N

IN
G



PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

 
P

U
B

LIC
 C

O
N

C
E

R
N

S     B
U

ILD
IN

G
 H

E
IG

H
T

PROPOSED DESIGN (2020)
4 STOREY BUILDING1

PREVIOUS DESIGN     (2.5 STOREYS)

 

PUBLICPUBLICPUBLICUBP HEARIHEHEH ARIHE NG - ANG NG - AG - AG - A- A- A- A- A- A- AG - AAALCUILCLCLCLCLCUINCUINCUINLCCUILCLCCCLCLCLCCC N COLLEGCOCOLLEGCOLLEGCCOLLECOLLECOLLEOCOLOCOLLLLEOCOLLELLCOLLEGLLELLLLELEECOLLLCOLLCOLLLL EEEE E - MA- E - - MAEE E -E -- RCHRCHRCHHH 20H 20H 20R H 20202121212111211211

132 WEST
ESPLANADE

63 MAHON
AVENUE

ADDITIONAL PARKING
NTS1

PARKING LAYOUT
NTS2

 
P

U
B

LIC
 C

O
N

C
E

R
N

S     PA
R

K
IN

G

PARKING SUMMARY

VEHICLE PARKING  REQUIRED  PROVIDED      

ON-SITE STALLS   16   11
OFF-SITE STALLS   N/A   5
                      
TOTAL VEHICLE PARKING 16   16

BICYCLE PARKING   REQUIRED  PROVIDED      

SHORT TERM   23   18
SECURED    8   12
                      
TOTAL VEHICLE PARKING 31   30



PUBLIPUBLIPPUBLIUBUBLIBPUBLICPUBLICPUBLICPUBLICUBLICUBLICPPPPUUBLICUUUBBUBLICUBLICPUBLPUPUPUUU LICCPPUPUUUUPUBLICPUBLICPUBLICUBLICPPUBLICPUPUUUUBLICB IUBLICPPUBLICPUUUPUBLICUPUBLICPUBLICUBLICBPUBLICPUBLICPUUBBB CCPPPP BPPUBP CPU CU HEARIHEARHEARHEARHEAREARHEARHEARHEARIHEA IIEEHEHEARHEARHEARHEARIHHHEARIARHEARIHEARHEARIHEARIHHEARHEHEEAEHEAHEARHEAARARRHEARHEARHEARHEARIHHEAREEHEARIARHEARRHEARIHEHEHEHEAAHEARIHEARIARIHEARIARIHHEAARH RARIH AAARIHH RRIIHHHEARIHEAR NNNG -NG -G NG NGNNNG -G AG -NGG - G -G - - A- AG - AANNNGNGNNNGGGGG AANNGNNG - AA- ANG GNG - ANGNGNNGG -G -GNG NGG GNG  - ANNNNGNGGNNGGGG ANNGGNNNNNNGG ANNNNNNGG  AANNNNNNGGG CUINLCUINLCUINLCUINLCUINCLCUILCULCCLCLCLCCLC COLLCOLLECOLLCOLLECOLLECOLLEGOLLEGOOLLEGCOOOLOLOLOLCOLLLLLECOLLEGLLEGOLLEGOLLEGCOLLLEOLLEGOLCOLLEOOLLEGOOOOOLLOLLOLLCOLLLECOLLEGOLLEGLLEGLLEGCOLLEGGOLLEGOOLOL EEGGGGLLEGLLEGOOOLLEGLCOLLEGLLEGOLLEGGLLLLEGLLEGGOLLEGGCOLLEGLLLLEGGCOLLEGOOLLL GOOOOLLOOOLLLLEGOOOLLELLEGLOOLL EGGGGGEE - M- MAE - MM- MMMME MME - MAMAE - MAEEEEEEE - MA- M-- MME MMAAE - MAE - MAAAMAE -EEEE - MA- M- ME - MMMMAE - MAE - MAEEEEE -- MMMMMMAE - MAE - MAEEEEEE - M-- M- MMMMMAEE MME - MAEEE MMMMEEE MAMAE - MAE MMAAEE ME  EEE MAAARCH 20RCH 2RCRRCCCRCRCRCH 2RCH 20CH 20H 20CH 202RCH 20RCH 20RCH 20RCH 20RCH 20RCH 2RCRCRCCCCCCRCCHH 20RCH 20RCH 20RRCCH 20RCRCCCRCRCRCH 2RCH 2RRCCRCH 2CCCRCHRC 2222RCH 2020RCCH 22020CC 2122111121222111212121212212112111

M
A

H
O

N
 A

V
E

FO
RBES AVE

W 1ST STREET

ESPLANADE

C
H

E
STE

R
FIE

LD
 A

V
E

W 1ST STREET

SOUTH CONTEXT ELEVATION (ESPLANADE)
1

 
P

U
B

LIC
 C

O
N

C
E

R
N

S    B
U

ILD
IN

G
 H

E
IG

H
T

PROPOSED DESIGN (2020)
4 STOREY BUILDING1

 
P

U
B

LIC
 C

O
N

C
E

R
N

S    R
E

-ZO
N

IN
G



PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

 
B

U
ILD

IN
G

 D
E

SIG
N

     PU
B

LIC
 E

N
G

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

 604.360.8656  alcuin.ca   community@stalcuincollege.com

Dear Neighbours,
On behalf of Alcuin College, I am pleased to 
announce that on November 2, we broke 
ground on our new building at 63 Mahon Ave.

Alcuin is an independent , non-
denominational, non-profit K-12 school.  
Founded in 2012, we have been based at St. 
Andrew’s Church hall, St. Georges & 11th. A 
proud North Vancouver educational institution, 
for eight years our students have been active 
in our community. You may have seen them 
performing acts of kindness on Smile Day, or 
on field trips at City Hall, the Polygon Gallery, 
the City Library, or local businesses. 

Our teachers, students and parents have 
dreamed of and been working hard for a 
“forever home”. The Mahon site, formerly an 
auto repair shop, is the perfect setting to thrive 
and continue contributing to our community. 

Existing zoning allows a four-story building. 
Based on our finances, the initial approved 
application was for 2 1/2 stories. Thanks to 

current parent support, we now seek city 
approval for 3 1/2 floors. 

We’re excited to announce that the new 
floor will be a Community Hub. Available to 
community members for cultural and private 
activities after school hours, it will also serve, 
free of charge, non-profit groups like Big 
Brothers, Big Sisters, and the Squamish Nation. 

To learn more, you’re invited to a virtual open 
house November 12, 6-8 p.m. Register at alcuin@
montaignegroup.ca. I hope to welcome you then 
and answer your questions. In addition, I will be 
available to meet with interested neighbours 
and community members in regular online Tea 
& Chats over the coming months. A City public 
hearing on our application will be held early 2021. 
Architectural plans can be found at letstalk.cnv.
org/63-mahon-avenue or alcuin.ca. 

Everyone at Alcuin College looks forward 
with great anticipation to being part of this 
special neighbourhood. 

 • Proposed 3033 square metre, 31/2-storey building
 • Proposed amendment consistent with the site’s OCP designation
 • Building form starting lower than the building to the north, stepping down 

to Esplanade Avenue
 • Total capacity 200 students
 • Generous landscaping and covered entrance at Mahon ground level
 • Proposed covered garden terrace for all-weather outdoor use features 

a north-facing green wall screen, privacy planters and small trees, and 
presentation platform

 • New floor amendment supported by Alcuin’s parent partners
 • Community Hub offered free of charge for periodic use to community 

groups such as North Shore Community Resource Society, Big Brothers, 
Big Sisters, and to the Squamish Nation for cultural or community activities

OUR NEW HOME

Warmly, 
Stella Ablett, Head of School  
community@stalcuincollege.com

PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

SITE PLAN
1/16” = 1’-0”1

 
P

U
B

LIC
 C

O
N

C
E

R
N

S     PA
R

K
IN

G
 +

 A
C

C
E

SS



PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

 
P

U
B

LIC
 C

O
N

C
E

R
N

S     SH
A

D
IN

G

PREVIOUS DESIGN     (PRESENTED SEPTEMBER 16, 2020)

REVISED DESIGN (CURRENT AS OF OCTOBER 21, 2020)

PUBLIC HEARING - ALCUIN COLLEGE - MARCH 2021

 
P

U
B

LIC
 C

O
N

C
E

R
N

S     SH
A

D
IN

G

PREVIOUS DESIGN     (PRESENTED SEPTEMBER 16, 2020)

REVISED DESIGN (CURRENT AS OF OCTOBER 21, 2020)

































eoff Woodfield 
554 Ivy Avenue 
Coquitlam, BC 

CEO 
Avantu Water 
www.avantuwater.com 







January 20, 2021 

Mayor Linda Buchanan 
City of North Vancouver 
mayor@cnv.org 
604 998 3280 

BY MAIL 

RE: " Planning Review and Neighbourhood Input on Development Proposal at 63 Mahon Avenue 
(300 West Esplanade, Zone CD-684), City of North Vancouver  

Dear Mayor Buchanan: 

Further to my email of Dec 18, 2020 ... attached is the report referenced. 

Richard White of RWPAS Consulting and Sheryl Rivers of Sheryl Rivers Consulting took over the 
Independent Survey work from Pooni Group. They will be familiar to you and Sheryl lives in the 
neighbourhood (Eslha7an Village). 

 The neighbour responses show an overwhelming opposition to the addition of an "Event Centre" on top of 
the St Alcuin School. 

We are happy to answer any questions you may have. 

Sincerely 

Wally Berukoff 
President 
Laco Holdings Ltd. 

CC  Councilor Angela Girard 
Councilor Tony Valente 

 Councilor Tina Hu 
Councilor Holly Back 

 Councilor Don Bell 
 Councilor Jessica McIIroy 

Page 1 of 24



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Review and Neighbourhood Input on Development Proposal at 63 
Mahon Avenue (300 West Esplanade, Zone CD-684), City of North Vancouver 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

January 20, 2021 

Page 2 of 24



 
Planning Review and Neighbourhood Input on Development Proposal at 63 
Mahon Avenue (300 West Esplanade, Zone CD-684), City of North Vancouver  
 
 
Main Report – 1-13 

The subject proposal is being evaluated by the City of North Vancouver (CNV or City) at the 
present time and may be the subject of an Official Community Plan (OCP) amendment for a 
height increase and a variety of zoning amendments to add uses and provide for this new height 
and increased building floor area and the possibility of development agreements to attempt to 
ensure neighbourhood compatibility. 
 

Appendix I - Comments from Change.org online petition 

A total of 430 signed in opposition to the text amendment before the petition was taken down, 
Additionally Laco has received 23 letters of opposition from neighbours. 

 

Appendix II - Emails regarding DIS 

Laco has protested what it believes to be a faulty developer neighbourhood notification process 
re the 63 Mahon Ave text amendment. City Council & Senior Staff will be well aware of the 
improper notice which Laco has outlined to them by email & letter. To date, there has been no 
response from City Hall re this improper developer neighbourhood notification process.” 

 

Appendix III - Emails from www.63mahon.com website survey 

A total of 89 surveys were completed online & hardcopy from December 24, 2020 to January 9, 
2021, by local residents, including adjacent Squamish Nation Mission IR #1. 80 were against 
the proposal and 9 were for it. 
 

Appendix IV - ISL Engineering and Land Services Ltd. – Technical Memorandum 

Survey respondents have expressed concerns about the upcoming traffic and pedestrian 
congestion and the confusion that may occur with the introduction of the Event Centre, as well 
as, the School previously approved. 
 
An additional study has been prepared for Laco to investigate the cumulative impact of recent, 
approved and proposed development of the top floor Event Centre. 
 
 

Page 3 of 24



1

Planning Review and Neighbourhood Input on Development Proposal at 63 Ma-
hon Avenue (300 West Esplanade, Zone CD-684), City of North Vancouver  

Introduction and Purpose  

Thank you for this opportunity to review the proposal for additional development at 63 
Mahon Avenue. The subject proposal is being evaluated by the City of North Vancouver 
(CNV or City) at the present time and may be the subject of an Official Community Plan 
(OCP) amendment for a height increase and a variety of zoning amendments to add 
uses and provide for this new height and increased building floor area and the possibil-
ity of development agreements to attempt to ensure neighbourhood compatibility. 

Your company, Laco Holdings Ltd., is a neighbouring property owner currently holding a 
building permit and constructing a mixed-use rental residential building 6 metres to the 
north of the 63 Mahon site. RWPAS Ltd. was asked to help clarify the City rules, regula-
tions and procedures for this amended neighbouring proposal. Richard White is the 
Managing Director of this Land Use and Real Estate advisory company and he has 
more than 40 years experience in the City of North Vancouver providing land use and 
development advice to City Councils and more recently to a wide variety of government 
agencies and private and not for profit land owners on the North Shore and elsewhere, 
primarily in the Metro Vancouver region. In 2013-14 he worked for a Private School in 
the City of North Vancouver and helped them to obtain approval for a two phase addi-
tion, increased height and an additional floor area, 

Sheryl Rivers of Rivers Consulting was also contracted on the recommendation of 
RWPAS. She is a Communications and Business professional and Squamish Nation 
member, who was born and raised in this immediate area and has worked for the Na-
tion in the past. 

The Authors have checked with City Staff and we understand that Council approval is 
necessary, but that City Policy supports the changes to a large extent. The purpose of 
this report is to provide our client and perhaps, City Council and Staff additional per-
spective on this proposal based on both previous City decisions, a land use planning 
and transportation analysis and current neighbourhood attitudes.  

Page 4 of 24



2

Please feel free to share this report with others and we will be pleased to provide addi-
tional commentary if the development application proceeds.  
 
A development application at this stage can be withdrawn by the applicant and if not, 
City Staff are required to report to Council for adjudication. Typically in the City, a first 
report will give Council options on the processing or rejection of a proposal.    
 
 
Contents of Report 
 
This report contains a land use and transportation planning review, a summary of infor-
mation from internet surveys, other community input that you and we have obtained and 
extended responses to this development proposal from the broader community and, 
most recently, from a more tightly focused neighbourhood survey. 
 
Specifically, we provide brief sections on the Existing and Proposed Zoning, the Neigh-
bourhood Planning and Land Use Context, Review of the Process to date, Sections on 
the two surveys that have been conducted through the Internet, a section of Input from 
Squamish Nation residents across Forbes Avenue to the west, samples of written com-
mentary from the neighbourhood requested from the second neighbourhood focused 
survey, and a revised traffic study for the immediate neighbourhood of 63 Mahon which 
has unique traffic and parking challenges. 

Review of Existing CD 684 Zoning and Amendment Proposal 
 

Page 5 of 24



 3 

Early in 2017, NVC Council adopted an amendment to the zoning for 63 Mahon (then 
300 West Esplanade) requested by Alcuin College (AC) now described as Comprehen-
sive Development 684 Zone. I understand that AC is a not-for-profit society. It operates a 
private school in CNV presently. In 2020, AC made a further application to amend the 
CD-684 zoning for the site. Work is proceeding on the site based on the approved zoning 
as permitted by the City. 
 
 
New Uses Proposed 
 
A review of published City Policy, reveals that none of it is particularly on point in sup-
port of the likely use and height proposal. Changes are needed to create neighbourhood 
support or Council approval and this report has been prepared as a summary of that re-
view. 
 
In support of the applicants desire to build a private school at this location, the City has 
currently limited the use of the site in the City’s CD-684 zone to “Assembly Use” as de-
fined in the City’s Zoning bylaw:  
 
Assembly Use” means a Use providing for the assembly of persons for religious, 

charitable, philanthropic, cultural, or private educational purposes; includes churches, 
auditoriums, youth centres, halls, and private schools.  
 
This Permitted Use, has typically been employed to define the uses allowed on church 
properties in the City — for instance the Private School Alcuin College currently oper-
ates and is located in a Church Hall property. Other than Catholic Church related ele-
mentary and Secondary Schools almost all CNV properties allowing “Assembly Use” 
are churches and ancillary uses. Private Schools have rarely established in the City — 
the most prominent exception being Bodwell College, a residential school on Harbour-
side Drive. 
 
The City is currently being asked to consider approving additional floor area on a new 
top floor that will also cover the open area (green roof/recreation are) approved in CD 
684 for the current roof top area. The City’s typical practice for an open area largely 
covered by a roof, is to consider the space floor area and added to the floor area calcu-
lation.  
 
The new top floor itself is being proposed as a Hall that will be available for community 
use — a typical church hall associated with a Principal Church Use is referenced in the 
“Assembly Use” definition. The uncertainty of the applicant’s plans for the range of other 
uses of this spectacularly located view property, has added to the neighbourhood con-
cern. 
 
An important distinction between this new Hall proposal and a Church Hall is that we 
understand that the Hall, in addition to free community use, will be marketed for a 

Page 6 of 24



 4 

variety of commercial uses not commonly associated with Churches or Private Schools 
for that matter.  
 
The Hall will be an expensive addition to this project and, with free use being offered 
and probably guaranteed through legal agreements with the City, the commercial rental 
component will have to be very successful and actively used to support the free uses 
proposed, as well as, the School’s administrative overhead and upkeep.  
 
A definition of the City’s recommended new uses for this top floor space is not available 
at the present time.  
 
The proximity of the Hall to the Squamish Nation’s long established, single family hous-
ing and to the new apartments immediately to the east (25 metres) and still under con-
struction to the north (6 metres) has been a primary concern expressed in the virtual 
CNV meetings and correspondence.  
  
The City will be able to limit the range of uses for the Hall through restricted use cove-
nants. 
 
Height 
 
The height of the building has been contentious as well. Unfortunately, the plans earlier 
available to the public show the building height at 96 feet, adding to this concern. For 
whatever reason, the plans show building height above a geodetic (sea level related el-
evation) describing the entrance level at approximately 21 feet. In any event, the pro-
posal is to add the Hall structure above the outdoor play area and access thereto.  
 
Recently City Council has reduced extra height being proposed for a mixed-use devel-
opment application in the City and in that same period rejected an application to amend 
the OCP to allow additional floors of rental residential for a mixed-use proposal already 
approved on East 13th in the City. 
 
Height is regularly a concern in the City, particularly over the last many years on most 
applications to increase height in Lower Lonsdale. 
 
Neighbourhood Planning and Land Use Context 
 
The CNV OCP indicates that this property (designated Mixed-Use Level 4A) is in the 
Lonsdale Town Centre and that the Height is flexible through rezoning and that “in con-
sidering increases in building heights, attention will be given to view impacts, contextual 
relationships and the liveability or use of the buildings”. This text is contained on 
“Schedule A Land Use” of the OCP.  
 
All of the immediately adjacent Mixed Use Level 4A properties are designated 16 me-
tres (52 Feet). Contextually as well, this property is a transition to the Squamish Na-
tion’s established single family neighbourhood (most homes are 7-8 metres, and the 

Page 7 of 24



 5 

residential designations that predominate uphill are lower than the proposal, suggesting 
lower density and height and less impactful uses should be preferred from a contextual 
point of view. 
 
It is important to note that new development recently occupied or now under construc-
tion was approved by the City after adoption and in the context of the 2017 approval of 
the current CD-684 zoning: additional uses, and greater density of development are 
now being proposed than owners in 2017-2021 period would have expected. Approvals 
like the current 0 setback from the lane to the north might not have been allowed with 
the additional active use being proposed and in the context of so many new residences. 
 
The site is also at an awkward corner from a transportation and vehicular access per-
spective, particularly important since it is unlikely that many students attending this 
school currently, and in the future, will arrive on foot from the immediate neighbourhood.  
 
A separate transportation analysis has been prepared for the application in the context 
of the neighbouring uses the large majority of which are new since the original rezoning 
adoption.  The traffic analysis reveals additional concerns about safety, access and ve-
hicle movements. We have included some excerpts from the transportation report that is 
also attached (Ref: Appendix IV)  
 
Process to date 
 
Prior to our involvement in this neighbourhood review, you posted an opportunity for in-
terested readers to comment on this proposal. Partial results of this public survey, which 
was taken down by the website host, are summarized in the following section.  
 
Subsequently and after the developer led information session, RWPAS was hired for 
the purposes previously described. (Staff will be reporting on that CNV required event). 
We proposed a second more neighbourhood based community engagement process. 
This type of community engagement has been made more difficult by Provincial re-
strictions on activities like door knocking and in-person meetings.   
 
Two arms-length firms were contracted: one to do a survey on the City side, and one on 
the Mission Reserve with the idea that both could be collated to form a good summary 
of the neighbourhood attitude to the proposal. Once again, this process is incomplete. 
The long established Planning and Community Engagement firm, that we encouraged 
to be hired on the City side, resigned from the contract after some input was received — 
City Staff have pointed out that that survey incorrectly identified the height of the build-
ing which is based on a “geodetic” datum — also explained above under the heading 
Height. 
 
Rivers Consulting (RC) has carried on with surveys and interviews within the Squamish 
Nation’s long established, single family area. RWPAS and Rivers both are attempting to 
use the information collected initially in this Neighbourhood to complete an accurate pic-
ture of neighbourhood response.  

Page 8 of 24



 6 

 
The subsequent four sections are a summary of this work to date. Some strata corpora-
tions are asking for meetings with us and that work is underway, virtually, primarily 
through RC. We have decided to report now since City Staff are prepared to carry this 
additional information forward in their upcoming Council report which is planned in the 
very near future we understand. 
 
First Public Survey (Ref: Appendix I) 
 
The following section has been prepared by R. Clark Consulting who has been working 
with Laco Holdings to understand the impact and process associated with this proposed 
change to the development already approved. We asked him to summarize the early 
part of the application process before we were involved: 
 
“Laco Holdings (owner of the directly upslope property on 1st St), submitted a letter of 
support to the Dec 5th  2020 City Council Public Hearing on the original St Alcuin School 
proposal. Subsequently you started construction based on the original proposal s ap-
proval. Laco became aware of the Event s Center” text amendment in the spring of 
2020. As it substantially increased density, height & traffic on the 63 Mahon property, 
Laco commenced a survey of the affected neighbourhood as well as established a 
Change.org (Ref: Appendix I) website to track neighbourhood sentiment. A total of 430 
signed in opposition to the text amendment before the petition was taken down, Addi-
tionally Laco has received 23 letters of opposition from neighbours. The neighbourhood 
has also sent many emails directly to City Council & Staff opposing the approval of the 
Events Center”. 

  
Laco has protested what it believes to be a faulty developer neighbourhood notification 
process re the 63 Mahon Ave text amendment. City Council & Senior Staff will be well 
aware of the improper notice which Laco has outlined to them by email & letter. To date, 
there has been no response from City Hall re this improper developer neighbourhood 
notification process.” (Ref: Appendix II) 
 
 
2nd Survey: CNV and Squamish Nation Neighbourhood Input (Ref: Appendix III) 
 
A total of 89 surveys were completed online & hardcopy from December 24, 2020 to 
January 9, 2021, by local residents, including adjacent Squamish Nation Mission IR #1.  
 
There were 5 questions included in the survey and they are broken down as follows: 
 
Question #1-Did you receive information about the rezoning proposal in the mail (from 
the City of North Vancouver)? 
30 = Yes 
56 = No 
1 = Undecided 
3 = Incomplete Section 

Page 9 of 24



 7 

 
Question #2-Did you attend the Virtual Developer Information Session held on Novem-
ber 12, 2020? 
3 = Yes 
85 = No 
1 = Undecided 
1 = Incomplete Section 
 
Question #3-Do you support this proposal? 
7 = Yes 
81 = No 
1 = Undecided 
1 = Incomplete Section 
 
Question #4-Do you think the proposed height is appropriate for this location? 
7 = Yes 
82 = No 
0 = Undecided 
1 = Incomplete Section 
 
Question #5-Do you think an event space is appropriate for this location? 
12 = Yes 
77 = No 
1 = Undecided 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10 of 24



 8 

Summary of the Two Surveys 

 
 
 

Page 11 of 24



9

A sample of written commentary from the 11 comments received by the neighbourhood 
are: ( Ref: Appendix III) 

“I have no issue with the school being there, but my concern is doubling its size, and 
adding the 150 person venue, could easily double the amount of vehicle traffic of stu-
dents going to and from school everyday, and traffic related to non-school events in the 
150 person venue, in an area already congested traffic area.  I believe this traffic con-
gestion will also add to further impact and traffic issues at the surrounding intersections 
of Forbes & 3rd, Chesterfield and West Esplanade, Mahon and 3rd, and Lonsdale & 
West Esplanade.” By GRH 

“My concern for the proposed development at 63 Mahon is in regards to the parking that 
is planned.  Only 11 stalls on site, and 11 more stall off site is insufficient for a school 
and an event space of 150 people.  While we may hope that people would take public 
transit, the truth is that many people will not, for multiple reasons (health, weather, late 
hours, long commutes, etc).  Street parking is already utilized to a great extent by the 
current businesses and residents in the area.  I believe it is naïve to think that 22 park-
ing stalls (11 of which are half a kilometer away) will be enough for this project, and that 
this will have a detrimental impact on the neighbourhood, as well as cause future con-
tention.”  By CA 

“3-The event center is not necessary at all, as the owner Stella Ablett in public hearing 
in Dec 2016 had said, we rent space at the North Shore Neighborhood House gym, as 
well as Memorial Gym we’re also active at John Braithwaite Community Centre, or 
Harry Gerome, and we also go to things like Griffins Boxing and out the Deep Cove 
Kayak and so it is very much our vision that the students learn to live in the community 
and enjoy the recreation there and its not restricted to the old idea of perhaps only play-
ing in your school basketball team for example. 7-Fire Access issues are also concern-
ing.  A shuttle bus is proposed for the Event Centre & will yet another vehicle on 
clogged streets.  We foresee endless circling of cars in our quiet residential neighbor-
hood.” By AM 

“Do not support the new proposal.  Increasing the building size from 2.5 to 4 stories 
does not accurately reflect the actual increase that more than doubles the height of the 
building!  I question the intent of the original development plan when this type of change 
is requested.  I support the concerns (noise, parking) of the neighbours in that area re-
garding the addition of ‘event space’.  A combined total of 22 parking spaces seems in-
adequate for 150 person event space.  The CNV should not be creating a new zoning 
definition for event space at this point in the process.” By BN  

This is simply unacceptable.  I live in the very close neighbour to this new development 
and there are some obvious reasons for this not to be approved:  This will block major 
views of the ocean, bridge and mountains for many nearby residents – affecting the 
value of their homes.  Traffic is already a huge problem in this area and with a proposed 
‘event/meeting’ space, this will only add to the traffic that builds up around this area.  

Page 12 of 24



10

Parking, again already tight and limited, adding further demand and traffic will simply 
make parking in this area impossible.  I strongly suggest that you and your representa-
tives do not allow this further addition to this development to take place and instead, 
commit to approving and proceeding with the original proposal.” By AL 

“We Soussan and Jerry 1806-188 Esplanade E, North Vancouver, BC, are not support-
ing the proposal for increasing height of the building 63 Mahon Avenue let alone the 
event space on top.  Lower Lonsdale and especially Esplanade Avenue is already 
flooded with too many condos.  There are too many people, dogs, too many cares, 
bikes, heavy trucks, traffic issues, and not enough parking that is already unbearable for 
the community.  Please stop adding more condos and bringing more population to the 
lower Lonsdale area.  The City of North Vancouver kept adding to the density of all 
condo buildings, already ruined the Lower Lonsdale, please don’t make it worse.”  By 
SG 

“I am against doubling the height of this building and changing the plan.  I have to won-
der if the designers were being fully transparent when they submitted the original and 
approved rezoning application in February 2017?  Had neither the firm nor the college 
not given thought to an event space that would double the height of the building prior to 
submission?  Why would they wait until excavation has commenced before submitting a 
further rezoning application?”  By RW 

“Following are my comments:  As a local resident, I do not feel the additional FSR and 
Height being requested will improve the contextual fit of the project into the surrounding 
neighbourhood.  While the design calls for 4 storeys only, the actual height is equivalent 
to a 9 storey building…..much higher than the surrounding existing buildings, and any of 
the new adjacent buildings on Esplanade.  The building façade rises straight up from 
the street and contributes little to the pedestrian experience, beyond the shadowing and 
blocking views of the north shore mountains.  The additional floor area requested is to 
host special events for up to 150 guests, in addition to the staff and students….yet is 
providing only 11 additional parking spaces, almost ½ km away.”  By JG 

“We moved to North Van shortly after this development was approved.  We were made 
aware of it and the subsequent request for more density and multi use space through 
the media but there were still many pieces of information missing regarding the develop-
ment so I wrote to the Mayor and Council stating that while this development didn’t im-
pact us immediately, we aren’t in support of it due to needing some more information re-
garding the event space, alcohol on the site, parking and traffic.  More importantly, there 
had been community consultation and a decision had been reached and now the re-
quest for higher building height and activity that would potentially affect the views of 
nearby residents, more traffic on the street during the evenings and weekends, and 
more noise in the residential areas adjacent to the development.  There are other spe-
cial event venues nearby.”  By IW 

Page 13 of 24



11

Eslha7an village, or Indian Reserve #1 is mainly occupied by elders and families from 
the Squamish Nation.  Many of the surveys were completed by hard copy and were de-
livered to their door.  There are several elders that reside directly across the street from 
the School and are very concerned about the traffic and parking impacting 1st & Forbes 
especially and the already dangerous corner.  They are also concerned about noise 
from late night events that would happen and feeling the sense of being in a fishbowl 
with the top level facing the reserve.  Many shared their continuous frustrations about 
never being consulted properly about developments such as homeless shelter, expan-
sion of 3rd street, St. Thomas Aquinas reconstruction, as well as, issues with parents, 
trains on esplanade and other other developments surrounding their village over the 
past decades.  They feel that proper and meaningful consultation should have & always 
be a priority. 

A sample of written commentary from the comments received by on of the elders in the 
neighbourhood are: 

“The developer has applied to make significant changes that will seriously impact the 
parking at the Mosquito Creek Marina as well as West Esplanade on the Mission re-
serve and the Urgent and Critical Care Centre at 221 Esplanade.  Alcuin college has 
applied for an addendum to the original proposal.  That being to apply for an ‘events’ li-
cense allowing them to host events for up to 350 people? With a liquor license up..up till 
10:30 or 11?  Not just college events. But for anyone wanting to pay to use the facilities 
this could mean noise..drinking, littering..etc etc..plus it is right across from the Urgent 
and Critical Care Unit at 221 Esplanade..which has only 4 parking spots in front..this will 
impact us all..we have lots of problems with the new STA school..parking. speeding in 
our area..cars wer parking in Glenn and Linda’s driveway..she can tell you about the 
problems we face..The construction company was also very sneaky and low key..no 
consultation with us..they felt their sign was sufficient..this is what Alcuin is doing being 
sneaky.”  By DM 

Revised Traffic Study  

Laco had prepared a Traffic study for its development at 311 West 1st Street currently 
under construction. A similar piece of work was prepared for the City by consultants 
working for the 63 Mahon applicants. The developments share the lane that separates 
them along with one other 2 level building to the west on West 1st Street at Forbes Ave-
nue.  

Survey respondents have expressed concerns about the upcoming traffic and pedes-
trian congestion and the confusion that may occur with the introduction of the Event 
Centre, as well as, the School previously approved. 

Page 14 of 24



 12 

An additional study has been prepared for Laco to investigate the cumulative impact of 
recent, approved and proposed development. (Ref: Appendix IV) 
 
The following are some excerpts from the Traffic Study: 
 
“In summary, the following items were found with the review of the development docu-
ments for the proposed school development at 63 Mahon (300 West Esplanade): 
  

• The methodology for the school trip generation surveys were unclear; however, 
it was found that the trip rates calculated were similar to the ITE Trip Gen 
Manual. 
 

• The pick-up / drop-off capacity of the nearby on-street parking was estimated 
and it was determined that there would be insufficient available on-street park-
ing capacity (36 vs 38) to accommodate pick-up activities during the PM peak 
hour and some concerns are raised for the proposed pick-up locations. 
 

• Some issues and comments were noted for the on-site parking assumptions 
such as the auto mode share assumptions and the student parking. 

 

• Pick-up and drop-off in the laneway on the north side if the site may generate 
vehicle conflicts with the main site access for the site on the north side of the 
proposed development. 

 

• Turning path for access / egress vehicle from the access on the north side of the 
laneway should be verified to ensure unobstructed free movement can be pro-
vided during drop-off and loading activities. 

 

• Some existing and proposed TDM measures (to reduce the parking requirement) 
may not be effective solutions to reduce demand or cause additional issues in 
the neighborhood such as drop-off and pick-up away from the school, restriction 
on student driving, bus passes for students, traffic coordination during the drop-
off / pick-up times, and paid parking for staff / facility. 

 

• The trip generation rates used to estimate the trip generation for the proposed 
assembly land use may not be the most representative of the actual trip gener-
ation for the proposed site (similar to an event centre), and may have underes-
timated the generated trips, directional split and parking demand for the site. 

 

• It was noted that without proper enforcement or encouragement, the proposed 
additional off-site parking and shuttle bus for the assembly land-use may not 
be well utilized and nearby on-street parking may be impacted by increased 
demand during the evening. 

Page 15 of 24



 13 

Summary 

 
The foregoing report and attachments is intended to be useful to you if the development 
application at the 63 Mahon private school site, for additional uses, floor area and 
height, currently proposed, proceeds. It has been prepared to summarize neighbour-
hood reaction and technical analysis and you should feel free to send to City Council.  
 
As noted previously, unless withdrawn, a development application submitted to CNV 
must be forwarded to Council for consideration. We have determined with assistance 
from other advisors and, most importantly, the public, that most are adjusted to the arri-
val of the new private school in the coming months (some construction preparations 
have been permitted and are underway) but not to the additional vaguely described 
uses in a large addition on the top of the school. 
 
Reviewed from the point of view of the City’s OCP, “considering increase in building 
height, attention will be given to view impacts, contextual relationships and the liveability 
or use of the buildings.” The large majority of neighbours responding to surveys (close 
to 9 of 10) believe the added uses and height will be detrimental and that Council 
should not let the project proceed. 
 
This review has been prepared to describe briefly and clearly the problems and impacts 
that are expected by the neighbours of this Event Centre proposed to being appended 
to the approved school. Long time residents in the adjacent Eslha7an Village and 
nearby in the City as well as those that have recently arrived in the immediately adja-
cent apartments, expect to be negatively impacted if this development is further consid-
ered.  
 
 

Page 16 of 24



APPENDIX IV  

ISL Engineering and Land Services Ltd. – Technical Memorandum 

 

 

 

 

Page 17 of 24



•
•

Page 18 of 24



Page 19 of 24



Page 20 of 24



Page 21 of 24



•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

•

•

•

•

•

Page 22 of 24



•

•

Page 23 of 24



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Page 24 of 24



Ā

Ā

Ā



Good afternoon Ryan,

We write in response to your recent inquiry regarding the updated plans for 
the proposed new school at 63 Mahon Avenue, North Vancouver. The 
location of the proposed new school is situated within the Traditional 
Territory of the Squamish Nation. These lands have been used and occupied 
by the Squamish Nation since time immemorial. The Squamish Nation 
asserts its claim to title and rights within its traditional territory.

This proposed project was previously referred to the Squamish Nation in 
2016 at which time the project was provided permission to proceed.  We 
understand that the proposed plans which were previously referred to the 
Nation have recently been updated, with the proposed update limited to the 
addition of a fourth storey in the proposed school building.  We have 
completed a technical review of the update, and consider the proposed update 
appropriate to proceed.

Please contact the undersigned if you have any further questions about the 
above.

Huy chexw a,

Peter Baker
Director, Rights & Title

T 604-982-0510
C 604-317-3419
F 604-982-0515
squamish.net







































































From: David Johnson
To: "Amit Parikh"
Subject: RE: re- 63 Mahon
Date: Tuesday, October 20, 2020 8:47:32 AM

Hi Amit,

Thank you for taking the time to write us with your questions and concerns.

The public meeting has been rescheduled to November 12 and is being organized by the developer. 
All the notifications to the event, including registration will be provided by the developer in the
coming days.  Your questions should be answered at this event.  Your message has been saved in our
files to be available for Council reference.

Regards,

David Johnson
Development Planner
City of North Vancouver

141 West 14th Street
North Vancouver, BC
V7M 1H9

(604) 990-4219
djohnson@cnv.org

From: Amit Parikh <> 
Sent: October-16-20 6:36 PM
To: David Johnson <djohnson@cnv.org>
Subject: re- 63 Mahon

Dear David Johnson,

As a resident of the Lower Lonsdale Area I wanted to write this email to voice my concern regarding
this event space at 63 Mahon.

I saw your contact information on a Development Information Session billboard at 63 Mahon but
there is no indication on how I can access the virtual meeting? Can you please let me know the
meeting details as I would like to attend to voice my concerns.

I don’t feel this neighbourhood needs another public event space as it is already quite congested and
it is a quiet residential area. Where will the parking facility be located? How do they plan to control
the noise late at night? What about privacy issues? Won’t this space look directly into the
neighbouring residences? How many people will this space accommodate?

Please take this email as my opposition to this change of use to 63 Mahon and add it to the file.

Thank you

Amit Parikh
409-215 West 1  Street
North Vancouver BC



From: Wally Berukoff
To: mayor@cnv.org
Bcc: Wally Berukoff; Rod Clark; Casey Spreeuw; Sabina Robb
Subject: URGENT - Re- 63 Mahon Avenue
Date: Friday, November 6, 2020 11:03:00 AM
Attachments: image001.gif
Importance: High

Dear Mayor Buchanan:

We write to you with urgent concerns re the Developer Virtual Public Meeting for 63 Mahon
Ave which is scheduled for this coming Thursday November 12th, 2020.

Our 1st concern is Improper Notice to the Neighbourhood for this meeting ...

We have spoken to 5 area residents within the 40 metre Notification Area. Our offices are
right across Esplanade from 63 Mahon Ave & well within the required Notification Area.

As of 11 am today, no one, including ourselves, have received a Notification from the
Developer regarding the Thursday November 12 Developer Virtual Public Meeting. It
would appear that either the Notices were not sent or they are too late for an adequate
Notice Period.

Additionally, we are attaching Minutes from the September 9, 2020 Integrated Transportation
Committee. At this meeting, the Developer, Havaal made a presentation. In response to
the question from a Committee Member ...
Q: What kind of events might be held on the fourth floor?   
The answer came as follows ...
A: Health and fitness activities, graduation ceremonies, cultural events etc. that will be
provided free of charge for certain community events or rentable for private use.

"rentable for private use" ... right from the minutes ... the Developer's Answer.

We would like to point that on the City's "Let's Talk" Page for 63 Mahon the following appears
...

"The intended use of the added fourth floor space is for a shared amenity space between Alcuin
College during school hours, and for community, cultural groups and events up to 150 people
outside of school hours. As part of the rezoning application, the applicant has offered this space free
of charge to North Shore community and cultural groups to hold meetings and occasional
gatherings. Eleven off-street parking spaces are available on the site in accordance with the 2017
approval, and an additional eleven off-street parking stalls are proposed at a location at 132 West
Esplanade (approximately 450 meters from the site). The applicant has secured a vehicle to
transport those to and from the school site who require it."

No Mention of "rentable for private use" ... a rather glaring Omission don't you think?

Given the lack of Proper Notice re the Developer Virtual Public Meeting & the Omission of
a very salient fact regarding Uses for the Event's Centre ...

We respectfully request that the Developer Virtual Meeting be rescheduled to a date in
late January or February, 2021. This will give time for proper Developer Notice as well as
allow us to appear at an ITC Meeting to inform them of our concerns.

We advised David Johnson, the City Planner for this project, yesterday of these concerns & asked
him for the rescheduling.            To this hour we have not received a response.

With the Virtual Meeting now only 3 business days away ... we are reaching out to City
Council for appropriate action & the immediate rescheduling we are asking for.

Looking forward to your reply as soon as possible.

Thank you,

Page 1 of 



Wally Berukoff

Regards,

Walter H. Berukoff
President

Office     604.980.4858
Fax         604.998.1253

Red Lion Management Ltd.
#306-267 West Esplanade
North Vancouver, BC
Canada, V7M 1A5
www.redlionmgmt.com

This message is intended only for the use of the intended recipients, and it may be privileged and confidential. If you are not the intended
recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, retransmission, conversion to hard copy, copying, circulation or other use of this
message is strictly prohibited and may be illegal. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify me immediately by return e-mail, and
delete this message from your system.
Thank you.

Page  of 



From: "Yan Zeng" <yzeng@cnv.org> 
Date: November 12, 2020 
To: "Michael Epp" <mepp@cnv.org>, 
"Leanne McCarthy" <lmccarthy@cnv.org>, 
"Rod Clark" <>, 
"David Johnson" <djohnson@cnv.org>, 
"Barbara Pearce" <BPearce@cnv.org> 
Cc:  
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL]63 Mahon Ave  
Morning Mr. Clark, 

Thanks for this follow up email. I was glad that we were able to connect on Tuesday and I was able to 
hear directly from you.  

Public input assists staff in evaluating development proposals and we value them highly. Public can 
provide their input to staff throughout the application review process, leading all the way up to public 
hearings where they can speak directly to Mayor and Council. Public information meetings that are held 
by the applicant in one step in the public consultation process. From what I can ascertain, given the 
numbers of people who have registered to attend this evening’s meeting, there is a wide awareness of 
this application as well as of the opportunity to voice one’s opinions. The notification has served its 
purpose. 

You do raise some concerns about the application itself and its impact on the neighbourhood. As staff, 
we generally provide factual information of the proposal as well as the City’s policy framework on our 
website. I can’t comment on the details of this proposal but I can say staff will be listening intently to 
what the public has to say about the proposal. 

Kind regards, 

Yan Zeng 
Manager, Development Planning 
Planning & Development 
City of North Vancouver 

Page 1 of 



From: Rod Clark <>  
Sent: November-12-20 8:27 AM 
To: Yan Zeng <yzeng@cnv.org>; Michael Epp <mepp@cnv.org>; David Johnson <djohnson@cnv.org>; 
Barbara Pearce <BPearce@cnv.org>; Leanne McCarthy <lmccarthy@cnv.org> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL]63 Mahon Ave 

MS Zeng : 

Thank-you for calling me back late on Tuesday afternoon, Nov 10/20. 

We believe the Notification for the Developer Virtual Public Meeting (DVPM) was faulty & did 

not follow the City's stated requirements for Notification for the Developer Virtual Public 

Meetings. 

To summarize our concerns with the Notification for the Developer Virtual Public Meeting 

scheduled for this evening ... 

The North Shore News (NSN) notices do not mention "Events Center" or "Private Use" for this 

Center when this is the sole reason for the application for the Text Amendment. The 

Neighbourhood deserves Full Disclosure on the reasons for the Text Amendment Application & 

this simply did not occur with the NSN notices. 

No Notices for the DVPM were received at West Quay Center - 267 West Esplanade. We 

received the 1st Notice for a DVPM by mail & within the 10 day Notification Period required. 

Why no Notice to a Commercial Building right across Esplanade?  

The Developer claims they hand delivered Notices for the DVPM by hand to the Condo 

Developments in the immediate area. We had extreme difficulty in accessing these Condos even 

through the Management Companies acting for them. We would like to see proof that required 

Notification for the DVPM was done in these Condos. Also, we have spoken directly to more 

Page  of 



than 5 residents in the Neighbourhood & none have received Notice of the DVPM from the 

Developer as required! 

We keep hearing that 75 people have registered for the DVPM & this is somehow indicative of 

required Notice. Many of these registrations are as a result of our own Notices to the 

Neighbourhood & not because the Developer has completed the required DVPM. 

The City's "Let's Talk" web page for this Development does not mention that the "Events 

Center" is rentable for Private Use; We believe this is a glaring Omission & that the 

Neighbourhood deserves Full Disclosure on potential uses for the "Events Center". 

As a result of all of this we feel that improper Notification has occurred & that at the very least a 

subsequent DVPM is required should the meeting this evening proceed, in spite of our protests. 

Our further Concerns with the proposed "Events Center" & the Public Information available to 

the Neighbourhood    include ... 

No Mention in any of the Developer or City Notices that the "Events Center" is to be stratified 

and held under separate ownership. This fact is revealed in the Appendices to the Bunt & Assoc 

refresh of the Traffic Study required for this development. It calls into question the relationship 

between the School & "Events Center". Not an ancillary use as presented but a seperate business 

entirely. 

St Alcuin appears to be suffering declining enrollment. MS Albett, the School Principal, stated at 

the Dec 2016 Public Hearing on the original School application that the school had 90 students. 

Ministry of Education data, freely available, indicates an enrollment of 73 students for 2019 - 

2020. Why pursue a School for 190 with an "Events Center" when enrollment is declining? 

Additionally, at the Dec 2016 Public Hearing, MS Albett stated in response to a question about 

the lack of a gym that the students went to Harry Jerome, Neighbourhood House, John 

Braithwaite Center and City Parks to pursue physical activity. They had no need of a "Events 

Space" as they wanted to reach out into the Community. The addition of a 2 storey "Events 

Center" is thus a major departure from the original case for the School. 

We will continue to be monitoring this Text Amendment Appication closely. We protest the 

improper DVPM Notice. We believe the Neighbourhood, of which we a part, deserves Full 

Disclosure re this development - something sadly lacking to date. 

Thank-you for your earliest attention to these concerns, 

Rod Clark for Laco Holdings 

Page of 



From: john maynard <>
To: To: David Johnson <djohnson@cnv.org>; Cc: Mayor Linda Buchanan <mayor@cnv.org>; Holly Back 
(Councillor) <hback@cnv.org>; Don Bell (Councillor) <dbell@cnv.org>; Angela Girard (Councillor) 
<agirard@cnv.org>; Tina Hu (Councillor) <thu@cnv.org>; Jessica McIlroy <jmcilroy@cnv.org>; Tony 
Valente (Councillor) <tvalente@cnv.org>
Sent: Friday, November 13, 2020, 10:55:19 a.m. PST 
Subject: Re: 63 MAHON AVE. 

As a follow up to my earlier email I would like to provide some follow up information and concerns. 
Last night i attended the virtual information session hosted by the developer of this project. This session 
was well attended and it was apparent to me that many of the attendees were supporters of the project. 
This was not a surprise but I was concerned that most individuals indicating they wanted to ask a
question or make a comment were supporters and many contributors seemed to know the developers 
personally. I indicated I wanted to ask a question and 45 minutes later was asked if i did have a question 
and they were sorry they had just seen my request. Unfortunately i was leaving the meeting at that time.  
I was expecting this to be a meeting supporting the proposal as the developer was the host. What I was 
not expecting was the personal attacks and negative references made to and about Mr. Wally Berukoff. I 
think it was unfair to even bring up his name in such a public forum and to attack him was in my opinion 
unprofessional.  
Mr Berukoff has been a very long term resident of the north shore and has provided many jobs in our 
area. His buildings have also provided rental opportunities for residents. He has legitimate concerns 
about the new proposal for 63 Mahon Ave and I hope these concerns can be reviewed in a fair 
environment. 
Thank you
Dr. John Maynard 
On Thursday, November 5, 2020, 08:46:15 p.m. PST, john maynard <> wrote:

I am writing this email to express my concern about the proposed development at the above address. It is 
my understanding that there was an approval for a private school to be built at this location and now there 
is an amendment to that original plan that would see an event space built on top of the original building. 

My concern for this proposal is twofold. First i am currently working in the building 267 Esplanade Ave 
West and parking is at a premium not only for those working in the building but also for guests of the
business enterprises in that and neighbouring buildings. 

My other concern is for the local residents and the disruptions to their environment. I am looking for 
a quiet location to move to as we plan to downsize in our retirement. We were seriously considering 
renting an apartment in the building currently under construction north of 63 Mahon ( just across the
laneway). We were aware of a school being built very close to this apartment complex and this would be 
acceptable. What would not be acceptable would be a large event space that would not only block any
view resident of the apartment would have but regular noise and close proximity to event attendee's 
would make living in the above mentioned apartments not an option to us and I am sure many others.  

By way if introduction i am a long term resident of North Vancouver. In fact I was born in the old North 
Vancouver General Hospital. I was a Family Physician on the North shore and Chief of staff at Lions Gate
Hospital.  

Thank you for your consideration of my concerns. 

Dr. John Maynard 



From: Boris Weiss <>  
Sent: November-04-20 2:50 PM 
To: David Johnson <djohnson@cnv.org> 
Cc: Mayor Linda Buchanan <Mayor@cnv.org>; Holly Back (Councillor) <HBack@cnv.org>; Don Bell 
(Councillor) <dbell@cnv.org>; Angela Girard (Councillor) <agirard@cnv.org>; Tina Hu (Councillor) 
<thu@cnv.org>; Jessica McIlroy <jmcilroy@cnv.org>; Tony Valente (Councillor) <tvalente@cnv.org> 
Subject: 63 Mahon Avenue 
Importance: High 

Dear David, 

I have separately registered for the upcoming virtual rezoning meeting with respect to this 
development, but would like to voice my concerns to yourself and council prior, with respect to allowing 
for increased density and amended use. We are a business owner located at 267 Esplanade Avenue 
West, North Vancouver and have daily issues with available parking in the neighborhood. Our building 
has limited visitor spots on site, and business guests are already forced to find street parking in the 
surrounding area with difficulty at certain times of the day. Adding increased use and density to the 63 
Mahon location will further create visitor parking issues, along with adding to traffic congestion. Adding 
further event space in the area will adversely affect congestion which 11 additional parking spots will 
not address. In reality, off-site parking locations will not satisfy this. Visitors to 63 Mahon will most 
certainly look for spots in and around the facility first. 

Congestion in lower Lonsdale is at a maximum, and as I’m sure the City plan includes further increased 
residential density, this increased use is not justified. The focus here should be understanding the area’s 
limited resources now and in the future.  

I appreciate your consideration. 

Best regards, 

Boris Weiss
Chief Executive Officer 

Medipure Pharmaceuticals Inc. 
302 - 267 Esplanade Ave. West 
North Vancouver , BC

 

Canada V7M 1A5 
 

O: +1-877-264-0345 

www.medipurepharmaceuticals.com 

This e-mail may contain confidential and privileged information.  If the reader is not the intended recipient, you are hereby 
notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying is strictly prohibited.  If you have received this e-mail in error, please
advise us by return e-mail or by telephone (877-264-0345), and delete or destroy all copies.  Thank you. 



From:
To:
Bcc:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Wally Berukoff
mayor@cnv.org
Wally Berukoff; clark
re- 63 Mahon Ave - DIS Process
Monday, November 23, 2020 12:15:00 PM
DIS notification requirements.docx
image001.gif

Dear Mayor Buchanan,

Sorry to bother you yet again regarding this development however you did mention on our phone
call that there is a very strict process that all developers need to follow in order to get to the public
hearing stage and we feel that was not the case for 63 Mahon.

Attached please find "Guide For Developers - Step 2: Notification Requirements - Developer
Information Session".

 We are hereby Protesting the Lack of these Guidelines being followed for 63 Mahon Ave.

We believe the Notification for the Developer Virtual Public Meeting (DVPM) was faulty &
did not follow the City's stated requirements for Notification for the Developer Virtual Public
Meetings.

To summarize our concerns with the Notification for the Developer Virtual Public Meeting ...

1)The North Shore News (NSN) notices do not mention "Events Center" or "Private Use" for
this Center when this is the sole reason for the application for the Text Amendment. The
Neighbourhood deserves Full Disclosure on the reasons for the Text Amendment Application
& this simply did not occur with the NSN notices.

2) No mention in the NSN ad, the Developer Mailout or the City's "Let's Talk" page that the
"Events Center" is to be stratified & therefore under seperate ownership from St Alcuin. Again
- the Neighbourhood is owed Full & Compete Disclosure.

3) No Notices for the DVPM were received at West Quay Center - 267 West Esplanade. We
received the 1st Notice for a DVPM by mail & within the 10 day Notification Period required.
Why no Notice to a Commercial Building right across Esplanade?

4) The Developer claims they hand delivered Notices for the DVPM by hand to the Condo
Developments in the immediate area. We had extreme difficulty in accessing these Condos
even through the Management Companies acting for them. We would like to see proof that
required Notification for the DVPM was done in these Condos. Also, we have spoken directly
to more than 5 residents in the Neighbourhood & none have received Notice of the DVPM
from the Developer as required!

5) Straight from the Developer's Info Session - the School plus "Events Center" totals 96 ft in
height or more than 8 storeys. This information was not contained in either the NSN
advertisement, Developer Mailout or on the City's "Let's Talk" page.

Page 1 of 3



6) The City's "Let's Talk" web page for this Development does not mention that the "Events
Center" is rentable for Private Use; We believe this is a glaring Omission & that the
Neighbourhood deserves Full Disclosure on potential uses for the "Events Center".

Quoting from the attached Guide for Developers - Step 2 Notification Requirements - DIS ...

"Please provide Planning Division staff with your draft mail-out for approval before sending."

"Please provide Planning Division staff with your draft newspaper ad for approval before
sending."

Someone at City Hall would have to have approved the Mailout & Newspaper ad beforehand.
Why were the glaring errors which we have noted not addressed & corrected?

As a result of all of this we feel that improper Notification has occurred & that at the
very least a subsequent DVPM is required.

Our further Concerns with the proposed "Events Center" & the Public Information available to
the Neighbourhood include ...

At the Dec 2016 Public Hearing, MS Ablett stated in response to a question about the lack of a
gym that the students went to Harry Jerome, Neighbourhood House, John Braithwaite Center
and City Parks to pursue physical activity. They had no need of a "Events Space" as they
wanted to reach out into the Community. The addition of a 2 storey "Events Center" is thus a
major departure from the original case for the School.

St Alcuin appears to be suffering declining enrollment. MS Ablett, the School Principal, stated
at the Dec 2016 Public Hearing on the original School application that the school had 90
students. Ministry of Education data, freely available, indicates an enrollment of 73 students
for 2019 - 2020. Why pursue a School for 190 with an "Events Center" when enrollment is
declining?

We protest the improper DVPM Notice & ask for another Developer Virtual Public
Meeting that has Proper Notice to the Community as outlined in the City's own
Guidelines for same. We believe the Neighbourhood, of which we a part, deserves Full
Disclosure re this development - something sadly lacking to date.

Thank-you for your earliest attention to these concerns,

Regards,

Walter H. Berukoff
President

Office     604.980.4858
Fax         604.998.1253

Page 2 of 3



Red Lion Management Ltd.
#306-267 West Esplanade
North Vancouver, BC
Canada, V7M 1A5
www.redlionmgmt.com

This message is intended only for the use of the intended recipients, and it may be privileged and confidential. If you are not the intended
recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, retransmission, conversion to hard copy, copying, circulation or other use of this
message is strictly prohibited and may be illegal. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify me immediately by return e-mail, and
delete this message from your system.
Thank you.

Page 3 of 3



From: "Yan Zeng" <yzeng@cnv.org> 
Date: November 30, 2020 
To: "David Johnson" <djohnson@cnv.org>, 
"Rod Clark" <>, 
"Leanne McCarthy" <lmccarthy@cnv.org>, 
"Michael Epp" <mepp@cnv.org> 
Cc: "Wally Berukoff" <wberukoff@redlionmgmt.com> 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL]Re: [EXTERNAL]Meeting re 63 Mahon Ave 
Thank you for the email Mr. Clark. All your previous emails and written communications outlining your 
concerns have been received by staff. The application is still under review, the place for staff to make 
any statements or recommendations is in our report to Council. 

Best regards, 

Yan Zeng 
Manager, Development Planning 
Planning & Development 
City of North Vancouver 

From: Rod Clark <>  
Sent: November-27-20 11:11 AM 
To: Yan Zeng <yzeng@cnv.org>; Michael Epp <mepp@cnv.org>; David Johnson <djohnson@cnv.org>; 
Leanne McCarthy <lmccarthy@cnv.org> 
Cc: Wally Berukoff <wberukoff@redlionmgmt.com> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL]Re: [EXTERNAL]Meeting re 63 Mahon Ave 

MS Zeng : 

Thank - you for the reply below, however, we would like acknowledgement of our Monday Nov 

23 email which outlined specific concerns with the Notification for the Developer Virtual Public 

Meeting re 63 Mahon. 

I copy that email directly below ... 

We appreciate that you are busy & are asking only that your stated Guidelines wrt Developer 

Notification are followed. 

Page 1 of 7



Thank-you, 

Rod Clark for Laco Holdings 

Dear MS Zeng: 

Attached please find "Guide for Developers - Step 2: Notification Requirements - Developer 

Information Session". 

We are hereby Protesting the Lack of these Guidelines being followed for 63 Mahon Ave. 

We believe the Notification for the Developer Virtual Public Meeting (DVPM) was faulty & did 

not follow the City's stated requirements for Notification for the Developer Virtual Public 

Meetings. 

To summarize our concerns with the Notification for the Developer Virtual Public Meeting ... 

1)The North Shore News (NSN) notices do not mention "Events Center" or "Private Use" for this

Center when this is the sole reason for the application for the Text Amendment. The

Neighbourhood deserves Full Disclosure on the reasons for the Text Amendment Application &

this simply did not occur with the NSN notices.

2) No mention in the NSN ad, the Developer Mailout or the City's "Let's Talk" page that the

"Events Center" is to be stratified & therefore under separate ownership from St Alcuin. Again -

the Neighbourhood is owed Full & Compete Disclosure.

3) No Notices for the DVPM were received at West Quay Center - 267 West Esplanade. We

received the 1st Notice for a DVPM by mail & within the 10 day Notification Period required.

Why no Notice to a Commercial Building right across Esplanade?

4) The Developer claims they hand delivered Notices for the DVPM by hand to the Condo

Developments in the immediate area. We had extreme difficulty in accessing these Condos even

through the Management Companies acting for them. We would like to see proof that required

Notification for the DVPM was done in these Condos. Also, we have spoken directly to more

than 5 residents in the Neighbourhood & none have received Notice of the DVPM from the

Developer as required!

5) Straight from the Developer's Info Session - the School plus "Events Center" totals 96 ft in

height or more than 8 storeys. This information was not contained in either the NSN

advertisement, Developer Mailout or on the City's "Let's Talk" page.

Page 2 of 7



6) The City's "Let's Talk" web page for this Development does not mention that the "Events

Center" is rentable for Private Use; We believe this is a glaring Omission & that the

Neighbourhood deserves Full Disclosure on potential uses for the "Events Center".

Quoting from the attached Guide for Developers - Step 2 Notification Requirements - DIS 
... 

"Please provide Planning Division staff with your draft mail-out for approval before sending." 

"Please provide Planning Division staff with your draft newspaper ad for approval before 

sending." 

Someone at City Hall would have to have approved the Mailout & Newspaper ad beforehand. 

Why were the glaring errors which we have noted not addressed & corrected? 

As a result of all of this we feel that improper Notification has occurred & that at the very 
least a subsequent DVPM is required. 

Our further Concerns with the proposed "Events Center" & the Public Information available to 

the Neighbourhood include ... 

At the Dec 2016 Public Hearing, MS Ablett stated in response to a question about the lack of a 

gym that the students went to Harry Jerome, Neighbourhood House, John Braithwaite Center and 

City Parks to pursue physical activity. They had no need of an "Events Space" as they wanted to 

reach out into the Community. The addition of a 2 storey "Events Center" is thus a major 

departure from the original case for the School. 

St Alcuin appears to be suffering declining enrollment. MS Ablett, the School Principal, stated at 

the Dec 2016 Public Hearing on the original School application that the school had 90 students. 

Ministry of Education data, freely available, indicates an enrollment of 73 students for 2019 - 

2020. Why pursue a School for 190 with an "Events Center" when enrollment is declining? 

We protest the improper DVPM Notice & ask for another Developer Virtual Public 
Meeting that has Proper Notice to the Community as outlined in the City's own Guidelines 
for same. We believe the Neighbourhood, of which we a part, deserves Full Disclosure re 
this development - something sadly lacking to date. 

Thank-you for your attention to these concerns & for a reply at the earliest. 

Rod Clark for Laco Holdings 

Page 3 of 7



Sent: Friday, November 27, 2020 at 10:35 AM 

From: "Yan Zeng" <yzeng@cnv.org> 

To: "Rod Clark" <> 

Cc: "David Johnson" <djohnson@cnv.org>, "Michael Epp" <mepp@cnv.org>, "Leanne 

McCarthy" <lmccarthy@cnv.org> 

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL]Meeting re 63 Mahon Ave 

Mr. Clark, 

Thank you for the email and for reaching out to staff. Staff have been really busy with the end-

of-year permitting crunch time with multiple deadlines and yet we strive to provide service to the 

public at the same time. So, I appreciate your patience. 

My team has requested the applicant to provide a detailed report of their notification process. We 

will be scrutinizing this report. 

As with all applications in the city, staff will also undertake a thorough planning analysis of the 

impact of the proposal and how it is advancing the City’s policy goals and objectives for city 

building. 

Again, I thank you for writing and for your patience. Staff are confident to do a fulsome 

assessment of the proposal and make recommendations to Mayor and Council. 

Happy to discuss further in the next two weeks, 

Kind regards, 

Yan 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Nov 20, 2020, at 2:02 PM, Rod Clark <clark@royal.net> wrote: 

Ms Zeng : 

Page 4 of 7



Further to the email chain below ... Mr Berukoff has not as yet received a reply to his 2nd email 

outlining his request for a meeting to discuss 63 Mahon Ave. 

We are raising the issue with you in hopes that such a meeting can be scheduled as soon as 

possible. 

In addition, please find a PDF expressing some concerns with the Notification Process for the 

Developer Virtual Public Meeting. 

We believe that due process was not followed for the Notification & have been assured by 

members of City Council that the process would be followed as outlined in the City's 

Notification Process. Someone at the City would have Ok'd the North Shore News 

Advertisement for the Developer Virtual Public Meeting yet there are obvious errors in that 

Advertisement. 

There were no Notices received at our building right across Esplanade. Nowhere, in any of the 

Notices or on the 

City's "Let's Talk" page re 63 Mahon is the fact stated that the Events Center is to be a separate 

Strata Title. 

We are asking for nothing more than the City's own Notification Process to have been followed 

... 

Please advise as to how this improper Notification is to be addressed. Additionally, when Mr 

Berukoff can meet with you. 

Thank-you, 

Rod Clark 

From: Wally Berukoff <wberukoff@redlionmgmt.com>Date: November 17, 2020 at 10:37:04 

AM PST 

To: David Johnson <djohnson@cnv.org> 

Subject: RE: re- meeting next week 

Hi David, 

This meeting would strictly be about how the application process for 63 Mahon has been handled 

to date and has nothing to do with Ryan Deakin and my dispute with him. The aim of this 

meeting is to come to some sort of solution that is beneficial to both developments. 

We can meet virtually via ZOOM or in person taking social distancing precautions either at our 

Page 5 of 7



offices or at City Hall. 

Thank you 

Regards, 

Walter H. Berukoff 

-----Original Message----- 

From: David Johnson <djohnson@cnv.org> 

Sent: Monday, November 16, 2020 5:03 PM 

To: Wally Berukoff <wberukoff@redlionmgmt.com> 

Subject: Re: re- meeting next week 

?Hi Wally, 

Just spoke with our Council and we would like to know more about the 'situation' you raised. 

From what we know you have a dispute with Mr. Deakin, which we have no part of, and our 

Council is not recommending a meeting. Perhaps you can clarify. 

Regards, 

David Johnson 

Development Planner 

City of North Vancouver 

604 990-4219 

djohnson@cnv.org 

________________________________ 

From: Wally Berukoff <wberukoff@redlionmgmt.com> 

Sent: November 13, 2020 2:28 PM 

To: David Johnson 

Subject: [EXTERNAL]re- meeting next week 

Hello David, 

I would like to have a meeting with you as soon as possible to discuss resolving the situation 

Page 6 of 7



with 63 Mahon in an amicable way. What days are you free next week? I should advise you that 

I will have my counsel with me and suggest you have the City's in-house counsel with you as 

well. 

Thank you. 

Regards, 

Walter H. Berukoff 

President 

Office 604.980.4858 

Fax 604.998.1253 

[Description: Description: rlm] 

Red Lion Management Ltd. 

#306-267 West Esplanade 

North Vancouver, BC 

Canada, V7M 1A5 

www.redlionmgmt.com<http://www.redlionmgmt.com><http://www.redlionmgmt.com/> 

This message is intended only for the use of the intended recipients, and it may be privileged and 

confidential. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, 

retransmission, conversion to hard copy, copying, circulation or other use of this message is 

strictly prohibited and may be illegal. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify me 

immediately by return e-mail, and delete this message from your system. 

Thank you. 

Page 7 of 7



From: Wally Berukoff
To: mayor@cnv.org
Cc: thu@cnv.org; tvalente@cnv.org; jmcIlroy@cnv.org; dbell@cnv.org; hback@cnv.org; Angela Girard (Councillor
Bcc: Wally Berukoff; Rod Clark; Casey Spreeuw; Sabina Robb; Samantha Potter
Subject: re- 63 Mahon
Date: Wednesday, December 9, 2020 12:25:00 PM
Attachments: 63 Mahon December 9 2020 - Laco Holdings.pdf

image001.gif
DIS notification requirements.pdf
nov 4 NSN.pdf

Dear Mayor Buchanan,

Please find enclosed a formal letter outlining the issues we have with the Developer Information
Session held on Nov 12 2020 regarding the text amendment for 63 Mahon. I have also attached the
DIS newspaper ad which is clearly misleading (four story school) as well as the DIS notification
requirements.

I respectfully ask your advice on how we should proceed.

Regards,

Walter H. Berukoff
President

Office     604.980.4858
Fax         604.998.1253

Red Lion Management Ltd.
#306-267 West Esplanade
North Vancouver, BC
Canada, V7M 1A5
www.redlionmgmt.com

This message is intended only for the use of the intended recipients, and it may be privileged and confidential. If you are not the intended
recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, retransmission, conversion to hard copy, copying, circulation or other use of this
message is strictly prohibited and may be illegal. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify me immediately by return e-mail, and
delete this message from your system.
Thank you.

Page  of 



December 9, 2020 

Mayor Linda Buchanan 
City of North Vancouver 
mayor@cnv.org 
604 998 3280 

BY MAIL 

RE: "Event Center" at 63 Mahon Ave - St Alcuin School/College 

Dear Mayor Buchanan: 

During our phone call on October 29th 2020, you had mentioned to me that there is a very clear process 
that all developers need to follow in order to get to the public hearing stage and we feel that was not the 
case for 63 Mahon. 

We are very concerned that a Public Hearing is to be scheduled, when Developer Information Session 
(DIS) notification issues are outstanding. We brought this to the attention of the senior staff at the City of 
North Vancouver (CNV) on many occasions. We also tried to start a dialogue to point out our concerns. 
However, we received no communication addressing these obvious omissions and errors and yet, in spite 
of this, the DIS still took place. Someone at City Hall would have had to approve the misleading Mailout 
and Newspaper Ad beforehand.  Why were the glaring errors which were noted and brought to their 
attention not addressed and corrected?  There is obviously a complete lack of transparency regarding 
the text amendment and the addition of a fourth floor to the building bringing the proposed new height to 
96 ft. (8 Storeys) 

We are respectfully asking the city staff to adhere to the guidelines put in place by the City, which were not 
followed by the Developer, for 63 Mahon Avenue and therefore, respectfully request another DIS be held 
that is transparent and informative.  The North Shore News (NSN) notices do not mention "Event Centre" 
or "Private Use" when this is the sole reason for the Text Amendment. The Neighbourhood and the City 
deserve Full Disclosure and transparency, on the Text Amendment Application and this did not occur with 
the NSN notices.   

Our concerns with the 63 Mahon Avenue Notification Process for DIS are summarized as follows: 

1. No mention in the NSN ad, the Developer Mailout or the City's "Let's Talk" page that the "Event Centre"
is to be stratified and therefore, under separate title and use from St Alcuin. Again, the Neighbourhood
is owed Full & Complete Disclosure.

2. The Developer claims they delivered Notices for the DIS by hand to the Condo Developments in the
required 40 metre radius.  We would like to have city staff confirm that the required Notification for the
DIS was mailed to the Condos (West Quay 252 Esplanade W). We have spoken directly to more than
5 residents in the Neighbourhood, none of which, received a Notice of the DIS from the Developer as
required!

Page  of 



3. Straight from the Developer's Information Session - the School plus stratified "Event Centre" totals 96 ft
in height or more than 8 storeys. This information was not contained in either the NSN
advertisement, Developer Mailout or on the City's "Let's Talk" page.  Again, glaring lack of
transparency

4. The City's "Let's Talk" web page for this Development does not mention that the "Event Centre" is
rentable for Private Use; We believe this is a glaring omission and lack of transparency.  The
Neighbourhood deserves Full Disclosure on potential uses for the stratified “Event Centre".

Our concerns with the 63 Mahon Avenue DIS Meeting Process are summarized as follows: 

Further to the Developer Information Session which the City of North Vancouver improperly sanctioned on 
Nov 12, 2020. 

1. The Meeting was obviously filled with Parents of the School's Students & thus an extremely poor and
misleading reflection of Community Input.

2. We know of several Community Members who waited patiently in line but were not recognized or
called upon to give opinion or comments before the meeting was concluded.

3. The Issue of Private Use and whether there would be Liquor Licenses is not laid out clearly.  ...

The Developer stance regarding private parties and liquor: 

During the ill conceived, Developer’s Information Session on Nov 12, 2020, the Developer was asked what 
was to stop them from hosting private parties and weddings and their reply was that they had no issue with 
it.  

Given these facts, the Developer Information Session obviously had a complete lack of transparency and 
a tendency to mislead the public from the intent of the text amendment. Another DIS should be held in 
accordance with city policy. Please find enclosed the guidelines presented by the city. 

I respectfully ask your advice on how we should proceed. 

Wally Berukoff 
President 
Laco Holdings Ltd. 

CC Councillor Angela Girard 
Councillor Tony Valente 
Councillor Tina Hu 
Councillor Holly Back 
Councillor Don Bell 
Councillor Jessica McIIroy 

Page  of 



GUIDE FOR DEVELOPERS 

STEP 2: Notification Requirements - Developer 
Information Session (DIS) 

Please be advised of the following requirements regarding Early Development Application Sign, 
Mail-outs, and Newspaper ads, which relate to the Developer Led Information Session (DIS):  

EARLY APPLICATION (BLUE) SIGN STANDARDS

Description: a 4’ x 8’ sign placed by the applicant on the subject property to display information 
about (a) the application (including applicant and City contact information), and (b) if required for 
the application, the Development Information Session; must be designed according to the 
following City guidelines. (Sign Sample attached) 

Size: 1.2 metres by 2.4 metres (4 feet by 8 feet), supported by 2 inch x 4 inch posts on 
each end of the sign. 

Colour: A coloured sign will be developed by staff with relevant text and imagery. Please 
ensure drawings/renderings are of sufficient quality. If a map is included it will 
show adjoining roads and neighbourhood properties and will show a North arrow. 
The subject site will be black.  

Material:  Signs shall be made of a durable material acceptable to the City (e.g. plywood) 
and the paint shall be waterproof, exterior paint. 

Print Size:  Minimum 2 inch letters and the heading shall be 4 inch letters in Helvetica capitals. 

Location:   One sign is required to be erected on the site in a secure manner on each principal 
street fronting the site (ie. a corner lot will have two signs) unless varied by the 
Director, Community Development Department. 

Responsibility: Staff prepares text and confirms installation of signs; the applicant is responsible 
for the cost, preparation, installation, maintenance and removal of the sign.  

Timing: erected a minimum of 10 days prior to the date of the Development Information Session. 

Please provide Planning Division staff with a photo of the installed signs for our records. 

Page  of 



EARLY APPLICATION MAIL-OUT 

Description: a notice delivered by the applicant to the neighbours (40 meter radius), via postal 
walk (Canada Post) or hand delivery, which includes information about the proposal and the 
Development Information Session.  

Responsibility: Overseen by Planning Staff; delivered and paid for by the applicant. (Postal walk 
cost is about 10 cents per household (uses pre-defined postal code boundaries which typically 
exceed the required notification area, so arranging hand delivery to the specified area might be 
cheaper (applicant’s choice). 

Timing: must be delivered to the neighbours a minimum of 10 days prior to the Development 
Information Session  

Please provide Planning Division staff with your draft mail-out for approval before sending. 

EARLY APPLICATION NEWSPAPER AD 

Description: a newspaper ad created and placed by the applicant to advertise the development 
proposal details, and the time/place details of the upcoming Development Information Sessions; 
must provide both applicant and City contact information. Please provide a draft of the newspaper 
ad for staff review and approval. 

Responsibility: Overseen by Planning Staff (content, timing etc), published and paid for by 
applicant. 

Timing: Published in two consecutive newspapers, not less than three and not more than 10 days 
before the Development Information Session.  
(For your convenience, the North Shore News is published on Wednesdays, Fridays and 
Sundays. Please check their deadlines for advertisements). 

Please provide Planning Division staff with your draft newspaper ad for approval before 
sending. 

Page  of 



From: Wally Berukoff
To: mayor@cnv.org
Bcc: Wally Berukoff; Rod Clark; Casey Spreeuw; Sabina Robb
Subject: re- 63 Mahon
Date: Friday, December 18, 2020 12:35:00 PM
Attachments: image001.gif

Dear Mayor Buchanan,

We are reaching out to you directly upon the guidance of Mr. David Johnson
regarding the St Alcuin School/College proposed text amendment to allow a
Penthouse "Events Center" at 63 Mahon Ave.

We wish to inform you that we have retained Pooni Group to complete an
Independent Community Outreach of our Neighbourhood.   

You will be familiar with Pooni Group's work throughout North Vancouver City.

We are expecting the Pooni Group’s report mid-January 2021.

Additionally, we have retained Borg Chan of ISL Engineering to complete an
Independent Transportation Study of our Neighbourhood.   

This work will consist of an independent Peer review of the Traffic work to date as
well as ISL's suggestions for Area Traffic Improvements.

This work will no doubt be beneficial in informing the City's Esplanade Complete
Street Review. We realize the input period for this has closed but are informing you
of this Independent Transportation Study in order that you & staff will have the
opportunity to review it before the final Esplanade Complete Street report.

We anticipate the ISL report also in mid-January 2021.

Both reports will further inform Council & Staff re the addition of an Events Center at
63 Mahon.

These reports are costing Laco a considerable amount. We are respectfully
requesting that the ISL & Pooni work be received & considered by City Council & City
Staff before Mr. David Johnson’s report to Council re 63 Mahon Ave & referral to a
Public Hearing.

Thank-you,

Wally Berukoff
Laco Holdings Ltd

Regards,

Page 1 of 



Walter H. Berukoff
President

Office 604.980.4858
Fax 604 990.9584

Red Lion Management Ltd.
306-267 West Esplanade
North Vancouver, BC
Canada, V7M 1A5
www.redlionmgmt.com

This message is intended only for the use of the intended recipients, and it may be privileged and confidential. If you are not the intended
recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, retransmission, conversion to hard copy, copying, circulation or other use of this
message is strictly prohibited and may be illegal. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify me immediately by return e-mail, and
delete this message from your system.
Thank you.

Page  of 



From: Wally Berukoff
To: mayor@cnv.org
Cc: tvalente@cnv.org; hback@cnv.org; jmcIlroy@cnv.org; thu@cnv.org; dbell@cnv.org; Angela Girard (Councillor
Bcc: Wally Berukoff; Rod Clark; Richard White; Casey Spreeuw; Sabina Robb
Subject: Update re: 63 Mahon Event Centre
Date: Friday, January 8, 2021 12:30:00 PM
Attachments: image001.gif

Dear Mayor Buchanan:

We hope you had a joyous Holiday season & wish you a safe & prosperous 2021.

We are writing to advise you of a change to our contracted Community Outreach in the 63
Mahon Neighbourhood.

As we advised you in late December 2020, Laco had contracted with the Pooni Group for an
independent Community Outreach program in our neighbourhood. The Outreach Program has
commenced with results expected about mid January. The program has been taken over by
Sheryl Rivers of the Squamish Nation. Sheryl is well known to City Council as a member of
the Squamish Band & is a resident in our neighbourhood. She will be completing this
independent Community Outreach Program on our behalf with the same mid January report
completion.

Additionally, please be advised that RWPAS Consulting (Richard White) will be assisting
Sheryl Rivers with the Outreach Program.

We, of course, will share the report with you as soon as it is available & are confident that
this Independent Community Outreach report will inform you of the Neighbourhood's true
feeling about the 63 Mahon Ave "Event Centre" addition to the already approved St Alcuin
School/College project.

Thank-you for your ongoing consideration of our concerns ...

Walter Berukoff
President
Laco Holdings Ltd.

Regards,

Walter H. Berukoff
President

Office 604.980.4858
Fax 604 990.9584

Page 1 of 



Red Lion Management Ltd.
306-267 West Esplanade
North Vancouver, BC
Canada, V7M 1A5
www.redlionmgmt.com

This message is intended only for the use of the intended recipients, and it may be privileged and confidential. If you are not the intended
recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, retransmission, conversion to hard copy, copying, circulation or other use of this
message is strictly prohibited and may be illegal. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify me immediately by return e-mail, and
delete this message from your system.
Thank you.

Page  of 





Hi David, 

I have already looked at all the information provided and remain strongly opposed. 

John 

> On Jan 7, 2021, at 10:17, David Johnson <djohnson@cnv.org> wrote:
>
> Hi John, 
>  
> Thank you for taking the time to send us your feedback on this application.  If you'd like you can take a 
look at the link below that outlines the application for an additional floor. 
>  
> There has been a lot of information being circulated around the City about this application from third 
parties who are opposed to the application and we simply want to ensure that people are getting 
accurate information about the proposal. 
>  
> https://letstalk.cnv.org/63-mahon-avenue 
>  
> Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions. 
>  
> Regards, 
>  
> David Johnson 
> Development Planner, Planning and Development Department
> t: 604.990.4219 | e: djohnson@cnv.org
>
> City of North Vancouver 
> 141 West 14th Street, North Vancouver, BC V7M 1H9
> Reception: 604.985.7761 | www.cnv.org
>
> ________________________________________ 
> From: J & A Anastacio <>
> Sent: January 7, 2021 9:55 AM
> To: David Johnson
> Subject: [EXTERNAL]63 Mahon Avenue - Additional Rezoning Application
> 
> Hello David, 



>  
> Please record my vote as strongly in opposition of this additional application to add a significant height 
to the original plan. 
>  
> It would be a monstrosity and not conform with the adjacent properties and sight lines. 
>  
> Regards, 
>  
> John Anastacio 
> 17 - 222 5th Street East
> North Vancouver, BC
> V7L 1L7













To :Whom It May Concern,
I am totally against the construction of Alcuin College at 63 
Mahon Ave North Vancouver ..
a private for profit college...with 200 students plus teachers 
and only 11 parking spots..
I hear there are plans for student drop off and pick up area ...
This does NOT WORK @ St.Thomas Aquinas private school on 
West Keith Road and Forbes.
Arrogant parents make u turns,parking and or block the 
residents PRIVATE driveways..making residents late for work 
or appointments .they sit IDLING their cars..(polluting the 
environment )while they wait for their able bodied young 
teenagers to be picked up at the doors.
Residents have come close to being broadsided or hit by 
speeding cars travelling in the dangerous “ S “ curve.
Esplanade and Forbes has a similar road curve. 
I understand the developer Lamoreaux Architect of the Alcuin 
College has plans of changing the initial plan of 2 1/2 floors to 
4...as well as other changes.
Adding an late night EVENTS clause with a liquor license 
allowing 150 people outside of school hours .
Local health official Adrian Dix and Dr Bonnie Henry and world 
officials say COVID is going to be around for a very long 



time...and is on the rise...an EVENTS permit makes absolutely 
NO sense ,as there are no events allowed now.
Social distancing at schools is in place now..restrictions have 
put in place for very small household gatherings..this impacts 
our everyday life on so many levels...
.
Covid is spread at small and large events where masks are not 
usually worn ,putting our front line workers at risk
who risk their lives looking after us...
Millions of people have died and we have developers who 
want more people crammed into a tiny area putting more at 
risk ..all for profit..is the money worth it ? this is morally 
wrong...people .
I understand there will only be 11 parking spots..and there is a 
50 units apartment directly behind the college...
Where is everyone going to park...???? my calculations are 200 
students plus teachers at Alcuin College 
PLUS the 50 unit apartment developed by Laco Holdings Ltd 
(averaging 2 people per unit next door could bring perhaps up to 
400 people to the area daily...then the special night events 
The NEW Urgent Critical are unit at 221 Esplanade has only 4 
spots and is an essential service to our community.
What if there were an emergency and the Alcuin College was 
hosting an evening event with crowds of hundred of people 
...this could perhaps result in death of someone trying to get 
into 221 Esplanade across the street from the college...
Where are all these people going to park? Mosquito Creek 
Marina is on Squamish Nation land ,has pay parking for Marina 



patrons , houseboats .staff and businesses .they too have 
special events..
I don’t think they will appreciate their parking lot crammed .
.
I’m guessing the parking lot spots would be taken by the 200 
plus college students and # of teachers ? plus 100 apartment 
dwellers ( Laco Developers.... )would be 300 plus more people in 
the area daily.. with 150 at night..
I envision people parking on our Squamish Nation Mission 
Reserve residential area on Esplanade ..also along Forbes up to 
6th Street as previously mentioned Squamish Nation and all 
surrounding apartment residents have to put up with St Thomas 
private school nightmare as aforementioned ...
We don’t need another private for profit college.
I feel all of the surrounding community both commercial and 
residential should be made aware of this ..
I also feel that developer Brad Lamoueux’s plan of erecting a 
sign with developers name is NOT sufficient and does not 
inform the community of plans and changes that will affect our 
neighbourhood forever...
This is exactly what happened at St Thomas..there was NO 
consultation with surrounding community members...
it was snuck in .with a sign ..just like you are planning on doing is 
trying to do .
Squamish Nation was not consulted on St Thomas and Alcuin ..
People will just look at it as a sign, nothing else...it would have 
no information of what is going on ..
..



To summarize .... this whole college development should be 
scrapped....no permit has been issued ..it’s a very bad idea...
November 12 needs to be postponed as it is fast approaching 
there needs to be info sent out so people have a
chance to be informed.
I also would like to know more about this 50 unit Laco Holdings 
apartment at 267 West Esplanade, is it a done deal ?
This area is already a busy area with seabus traffic..many city 
buses going in and out of the Quay area ...
NO to Alcuin College....I will also be contacting Squamish Nation 
Council .
Regards
D Miranda 
421 West 4th St
North Vancouver 
BC
V7M 1G7 .





 





























Dear Mr Johnson, 

I am a parent at Alcuin College where my daughter Vera who is in grade 8, is very happy. It is a very 
special school in that it provides a lot of individual attention to the students and allows them to learn in 
the way that fits them best.  

As parents, we are thrilled with the plans of Alcuin to build a new school. They have applied for a permit 
to be able to add a fourth floor, which is an important part of the school that will be used by students for 
classes, physical activity and performing arts, year round. We know how important that is for all our 
children's development, and their physical and mental health and well-being. It is also a space where the 
wider Alcuin community can come together for family events and convocations. This redesign is a great 
enhancement, providing a covered area on the third storey that can be used no matter the weather.  

We were surprised and disappointed to see that the developer of the building adjacent to the new school 
is circulating a petition against the adding of a fourth floor to the school. The petition contains a number 
of statements that are factually incorrect.  

I’d like you to be aware of the following points related to the petition that is being distributed: 
- Alcuin College is a non-profit society.
- We are not a "school with a liquor licence".
- After school hours, the space would be available for use at no cost to non-profit community partners,
such as Big Brothers and Big Sisters.
- This floor is to be a community hub, available to all members of the community for yoga/fitness classes,
seminars, and coordinated community events.
- Not only will coordinated activities be governed by municipal bylaw, but they will be vetted by Alcuin’s
high reputation standards.  A charter of conduct will be agreed by any party wishing to utilise the
premises prior to being granted use.
- Privacy and limitation of sound transfer has been enhanced by the design for students and nearby
residents alike.
- There is an architecturally-designed green wall implemented to beautify the north facade, which didn’t
exist in the previously approved design.
- The school has obtained double the amount of parking as previously approved, and this will now lessen
impact for the property at all times, including during school. Pick-up and drop-off are unaffected and will
continue to operate efficiently, as already approved.

I urge you to support the permits for this additional floor. Please do not hesitate to contact me with any 
questions that you may have. 

Sincere regards, 







Good evening.  I heard that the development across the street from my condo has requested permission 
to build an ‘event space’ on top of the school. This is outrageous.  We’re already suffering from the 
approved marijuana store down the street and now this crazy idea.  Come down to the area some time 
and take a look at the parking problems the heavy traffic down 1st Street and the u-turns, double parking 
etc that we already deal with on a daily basis.  We have Sailor Hagors and the rowdy drunks spilling out 
onto the streets every night.  The fact the City allowed a ‘school’ on that lot is farcical… going beyond to 
allow a ‘event space’ is madness.  What do you think that space will be used for?  It’s going to be a night 
club, that’s what. 

Please put a stop to this. 

Respectfully, 

CM Battistel 
270 west 1st Street 













uzi Manery



 
 

 
 

 





We moved to North Vancouver in the late summer of 2016 and have not been previously aware of the 
proposal for a private school at 63 Mahon Avenue that had been approved and there is an application to 
add more space and a new type of use that will extend the hours to what was previously a school only. 
This is a busy area with lots of vehicular traffic, established residential areas, and there are already event 
spaces and public spaces in the area that are available for rent. The additional height needed for the 
proposed add on of event space may block views of residential properties - what they had agreed to is 
now being changed at the expense of the neighbourhood’s residential properties in order to increase 
potential profits for the developer. This additional licensed event space will draw another group of 
crowds to special private and public events that will run in the evenings and weekends. The real question 
that needs to be asked is whether or not this venue is needed and what will its impact be on the 
residential community. 

Licensed venues usually have to provide a certain number of parking spaces for their customers and the 
school is going to have only 11 spaces with, perhaps, another 11 parking spaces belonging to the school 
if school staff and/or school special events aren’t using them and permit the rental facility to use their 
spaces. Eleven parking spaces for up to 150 people plus deliveries of food and liquor and event staff - 
this is a significant amount of people and traffic, and they will be competing for street parking in the 
evenings and weekend hours. These parking spaces will be half a kilometer away, relying on a shuttle bus 
to transport people. Most schools have some evening and weekend events for students and their 
families whether it is fund raising events, student performances, parent meetings, sports day and science 
fair, or school ceremonies - 11 parking spaces will not meet the all the school’s needs let alone those of 
an additional event. The combination of a public event space with a liquor license in a school building is 
not usual, nor does it seem like a comfortable or appropriate fit, and a public event space above and 
beyond school use will extend the hours of use and disturbance to adjacent residential areas in terms of 
traffic, parking, and the accompanying noise of people as they gather and depart from events.  I used to 
manage a non profit privately run community centre with event space so am well aware how disruptive 
outside conversations, activities, and parking can be to residential neighbours. It isn’t intentional noise - it 
is just what happens when 150 people gather and leave at about the same time. 

The question that needs to be asked, however, is whether or not there is a need for this venue in this 
area. There are event venues in the lower Lonsdale area: The Pipe Shop, the Pinnacle Hotel, restaurant 
and pub spaces that undoubtedly accommodate parties and events, and the defunct Cineplex building 
might be an option for a public venue. There are public markets and events in the open areas as well - is 
there is an actual need for more event space in this area? 

I am opposed to the change in height, density and use in this change/additional use application for 63 
Mahon Avenue, based on the information I have been able to find. I don’t think this location is 



appropriate for this additional proposed use and question whether there is a real demand and need for 
another event space. When one property is successful in getting an upzoning, this raises the bar for all 
future redevelopments and the developers will be seeking equal concessions. 

Please listen to the residents of the city with regards to the livability of our communities rather than 
allowing upzonings and uses that may not be compatible with the neighbouring residential properties. 

Irene Wotton 
#3-650 West Keith Road 
North Vancouver, BC V7M 1M6 

Sent from my iPad 















Greetings, 

My daughter was enrolled this year Alcuin College in Grade 5. Her name is Sofia and she is 9years 
old. Sofia has suffered in previous years in Public School because of her Dyslexia. She never felt 
like she fit in, she wanted to disappear while in class. 

Now that she has started at Alcuin, she is a different child. Much happier, her confidence is 
booming and her friendships are solid. I can't say enough about the teaching staff and the care and 
attention given to each student and the small intimate classroom sizes.  

Alcuin is a gift to this community and should be highlighted to the surrounding neighbourhood what 
an asset it will be. 

This school is changing kids lives for the better and providing a safe and supportive environment 
for them to learn in. Anything to encourage a school like this to flourish should be where the 
attention is being put by the municipality. 

Many thanks, 
Julie Nunes 

Julie Bannon Nunes
(she/her)
Jules Post Productions Inc.



























example.”

We (the people living at lower Lonsdale and myself living in the building across from this future 
building) are genuinely concerned with the traffic throughout the Neighborhood but especially 
in the Cul de Sac at the bottom of Mahon at Esplanade as well as the Lane north of the St Alcuin 
site. We have concerns re access to the lane; It’s use for drop-offs in the am & pickups in the 
pm. Parking on West 1st & 2nd in the 200 & 300 Blocks will be directly impacted by the extra 
demand for on street parking generated by the Events Center. We foresee endless circling of 
cars in our quiet residential neighborhood.

Fire Access issues are also concerning. A shuttle bus is proposed for the Event Center & will be 
yet another vehicle on clogged Streets.























Mayor Buchanan and City Councillors, 

This email is in support of Alcuin College's development application 
for a fourth floor addition to 63 Mahon Ave, the site of their new 
school building. 

The proposed fourth-floor amenity space will be greatly used and 
appreciated by classes during the day and has been designed for 
physical activity in all weather - a fantastic benefit in our rainy 
climate. The space will be used during after-school hours (school ends 
at 3pm) for non-profit and local community groups looking for a clean, 
safe space in a central area close to public transit. I worked in the 
non-profit sector for many years and am familiar with the need to find 
safe spaces to deliver community programs, so another option for North 
Vancouver groups will be welcome, in my opinion. 

My son attends the school and we have found it to be a safe, 
inclusive, and welcoming environment for all of its students. I am a 
long-time North Vancouver resident and believe the fourth floor of the 
new building will benefit the school as well as the overall community. 

I am also concerned that there is a change.org petition that is 
disseminating outright falsehoods about the plans, in order to rile up 
opposition in the neighborhood.  This appears to be from a developer, 
who isn't even a real part of the community.  Given the blatant lies 
in the wording of the petition, I do not believe that any signatures 
it gathers should have any impact on the outcome of the decision made 
by council and staff. 

Thank you, 

Dave Clendenan 



As a resident of the City of North Vancouver living on 2nd St West at the corner of Mahon Avenue, I’m 
very concerned about the building of Alcuin College. My neighbours and I wrote to council and attended 
the meeting regarding the first proposal for development of this site. We did not feel our concerns were 
addressed at all. Now an addition is being proposed to the site with a planned event centre. First, this is a 
very busy traffic corner. I can’t see how children can arrive safely at the school. Second, there is very little 
parking on nearby streets now as existing buildings don’t provide enough parking for their residents and 
many people park in the area to use the sea bus or other transit or do business locally. Third, this is a 
residential area and an event centre would cause disturbing noise in the evenings and into the early 
morning hours as well as put further strain on parking in the area. Please don’t allow this proposal to go 
forward. 
Thank you, Janet Creighton, 
303-307 2nd St West,
North Vancouver,BC, V7M1E2

Sent from my iPad 



To Whom It May Concern: 

I write this in support of the 63 Mahon Avenue proposal before you Monday, March 1st. 
A neighbour, I am in no manner affiliated with Alcuin College, and address you in the hope of your swift 
approval Monday.  

Alcuin is a “ good neighbour”: it is educating the future citizens of our community, while building a better 
environment at its present location. When a developer objected to the design, at its own cost, the 
school’s volunteer community amended the plans, increasing the views- and one assumes- the profits for 
the developer. 
About the space: it is to be a school gathering- place and will extend the use to include pro-bono lease by 
non- profits, including the North Shore’s Girl Guides and Big Brother groups, demonstrating both 
planning integrity and community leadership. 

Please consider this proposal ; Alcuin is a very good neighbour, and do we not need more of these? 

B.A. McEwan 
301-138 Esplanade East
V7L4X9

Beverley McEwan 







APPENDIX I  

Comments from Change.org online petition 

Page 1 of 54



Page 2 of 54



Page 3 of 54



Page 4 of 54



Page 5 of 54



Page 6 of 54



Page 7 of 54



Page 8 of 54



Page 9 of 54



Page 10 of 54



APPENDIX II  

Emails regarding DIS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11 of 54



APPENDIX III  

Emails from www.63mahon.com website survey 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12 of 54



Page 13 of 54



Page 14 of 54



Page 15 of 54



Page 16 of 54



Page 17 of 54



Page 18 of 54



1 message

Fri, Jan 8, 2021 at 11:30 PM<>
To: "samantha@poonigroup.com" <samantha@poonigroup.com>

Page 19 of 54



1 message

Fri, Jan 8, 2021 at 9:50 AM<
To: "samantha@poonigroup.com" <samantha@poonigroup.com>

����������������������

Happy Friday! 

�����������������������������������������������	����������������	�

�����������	������������

�������	�������
������

���������	�������������
���������������������������������	
���������	������

������	��������������	����	�
��������������	�����������	�������������

������
����������	������������

�
�
�����������
��
�	�������	��	�����������

���	��	�	��
���������
��
�������������������	�������������������������	��
��������������	����

������
�������������������	�����
����	����	��	�	������	��������
���

�����

� �������	�	���������
�����	�������
����������������	��	����	��������

� ���	������
���������������	��	������������
������������������	�	�����	��	���������������������
�

��	�����	����		������������������	�����������	�������������	�������	�������������
��������	�

	����	�����������
���������������
���������	���������	������

� ���		����	����������������
��
����������	�����������������
��
�	�������������������	
��������	�����

�������������������		��������
����	��
�����������	������

� 	������������������������������������������������	���������������������		��������	��
��������
������

������	��������
�		�
���

��	��������	����	����������������������
��	��������	�����������������	�	����������������������	

������
�������������
�����������	�����������������

�����������
���������������������������


��
�	���

����
����������	��������������������	��������	��	������������	�����	��	����	������
������	������������	

��������������������������������	�	�������

Page 20 of 54



1 message

Fri, Jan 8, 2021 at 9:39 AM<
To: samantha@poonigroup.com

Dear Samantha,

I'm writing to you today to communicate my utmost concern and disapproval against the Alcuin School's development 
application for the extra building level (meeting and event space). This would subsequently double the height from what
was originally approved back in 2017. Originally 13.3m, the new proposal now sits at 29.26m.

This is simply unacceptable. I live in the very close neighbour to this new development and there are some obvious
reasons for this not to be approved:

- This will block major views of the ocean, bridge and mountains for many nearby residents - affecting the value of their
homes.

- Traffic is already a huge problem in this area and with a proposed 'event/meeting' space, this will only add to the traffic
that builds up around this area.

- Parking, again already tight and limited, adding further demand and traffic will simply make parking in this area
impossible.

I strongly suggest that you and your representatives do not allow this further addition to this development to take place
and instead, commit to approving and proceeding with the original proposal.

I hope to hear from you with the news that myself, and the residents of this neighbour wish to hear. If not, we will need to
take matters further. 

Page 21 of 54



Page 22 of 54



1 message

Wed, Jan 6, 2021 at 5:58 PM<>
To: "samantha@poonigroup.com" <samantha@poonigroup.com>

Hello Samantha,

My name is Azar Mohsenipour and I am writing to express my biggest concern against the Alcuin school’s development
application for the extra floor (meeting and event space) which would add the height more than twice (from 13.3m to
29.26m) as it was approved in 2017.

There are so many reasons for this application to be disqualified;

1-I bought my apartment at 277 -1st street West in 2018 knowing that I could live my soon retiring time in a quiet area and
have the beautiful water view from my apartment.

2-We already are suffering from too much noise and traffic in this area, and anyway the school shouldn’t be allowed to
change its original approved plan after over 4 years to make more money at our cost.

3-The event center is not necessary at all, as the owner Stella Ablett in public hearing in Dec2016 had said  “We rent
space at The North Shore Neighborhood House gym, as well as Memorial Gym, we’re also active at John Braithwaite
Community Center, or Harry Jerome, and we also go to things like Griffin’s Boxing and out to Deep Cove Kayak and so it
is very much our vision that the students learn to live in the community and enjoy the recreation there and it’s not
restricted to the old idea of perhaps only playing in your school basketball team for example.”

4-Now she has become greedy and wants to ruin our life and not only close our water view out and cause more noise and
traffic in this area but also she would bring the value of our apartments down by building a monstrous building right in front
of ours.

5-Me and a lot of my neighbors  living in the building across from this future building are concerned with the traffic and
noise throughout the Neighborhood but especially in the Cul-de-Sac at the bottom of Mahon at Esplanade. We have
concerns about access to the lane; It’s use for drop-offs in the am & pickups in the pm.

6-Parking on West 1st & 2nd in the 200 & 300 Blocks will be directly impacted by the extra demand for on street parking’s
generated by the Events Center. We foresee endless circling of cars in our quiet residential neighborhood.

7-Fire Access issues are also concerning. A shuttle bus is proposed for the Event Center & will be yet another vehicle on
clogged Streets. We foresee endless circling of cars in our quiet residential neighborhood.

Please DO NOT let this happen,

Regards, Page 23 of 54



Azar Mohsenipour

Thank you

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

Page 24 of 54



1 message

Mon, Jan 4, 2021 at 3:24 PM<>
To: Samantha Potter <samantha@poonigroup.com>

Will send these to you, just in case your not getting them. I will keep any from my Nation. 

Thanks 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message: 

 Benny Yeo <> 
 January 4, 2021 at 3:03:14 PM PST 

 sheryl.riversconsulting@gmail.com 
  

Hello Sheryl,

My name is Benny and I am writing this to express my opinions and concerns regarding the new
development at 63 Mahon Avenue. 

I have reviewed the updated project proposal (2020), architectural plans, and other architectural documents
published by the developer and Alcuin College.

After reviewing them, it has become my concern not only as an individual in the architectural field, but also
as a resident who lives directly across Mahon Avenue (in 277 West 1st Street), that the additional height
and the addition of an event room may decrease the level of privacy and quality of life for many of those
currently residing adjacent to the new development. I personally worry that the addition of an event space
may cause visual and auditory disturbance throughout the day, as it faces directly into our unit. 
Also, the existing view to the mountains and its breathtaking surroundings that our unit offers will be
disturbed, despite the "studies" they have done to assure the view blockage will be minimal.
I would like to express that a populated room of students and faculty members facing directly into our unit
(and many others) is not an ideal living environment for residents in our building.

I understand the significant work that Alcuin College does to provide education for a variety of population,
but it is important to note that the new development will greatly impact the quality of life of many residents
who by no means disagree with the purpose of the development. 

I would like to know if there will be any compensations or means to make the residents feel more supportive
for the proposal, as the current proposal exhibits many cases in which the quality of life and privacy of a
large number of residents will be affected.

Thank you,
Benny Yeo

Page 25 of 54



1 message

Tue, Jan 5, 2021 at 11:46 AM<>
To: Samantha Potter <samantha@poonigroup.com>

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message: 

 brenda nakanishi <> 
 January 5, 2021 at 11:10:11 AM PST 

 sheryl. 
  

Do not support the new proposal.  Increasing the building size from 2.5 to 4 stories does not accurately
reflect the actual increase that more than doubles the
height of the building!  I question the intent of the original development plan when this type of change is
requested.  I support the concerns (noise, parking) of the neighbours in that area regarding the addition
of an "event space". A combined total of 22 parking spaces seems inadequate for 150 person event
space. The CNV should not be creating a new zoning definition for event space at this point in the
process. 

Page 26 of 54



Page 27 of 54



1 message

Mon, Jan 4, 2021 at 11:19 AM<>
To: "samantha@poonigroup.com" <samantha@poonigroup.com>

Page 28 of 54



1 message

Mon, Jan 4, 2021 at 10:10 AM<>
To: samantha@poonigroup.com

Hi Samantha,

Regarding the 63 Mahon Ave 2020 new proposal, I just wanted to add that I don't agree with the new proposed height but
I'm ok with the old one and the rest of the project. The new proposal is much higher than the buildings around this project.

Kind Regards,
David

Page 29 of 54



1 message

Wed, Dec 30, 2020 at 7:17 PM<>
To: samantha@poonigroup.com

Hello Samantha,  

I received the letter of information regarding the proposed changes at 63 Mahon.

I'm opposed to the new additional changes for a few reasons.

Adding 3 more storeys is inappropriate for the environment, blocking the view of the
Burrard Inlet for the residents of the apartment building on Esplanade and other
residents north of Esplanade between Mahon and Forbes. The additional 3 stories also
create shadow and shade in an already dark environment where direct sunlight is a
valued commodity. From the south of the structure, the mountain view would be blocked
by the additional 3 stories.

11 parking spots were already insufficient for a building of this size, but now adding only
11 more parking spaces offsite does not offer sufficient parking for the additional people
who might be using the building under the new proposal. The additional parking offsite
should be added without adding any square footage to the structure.

The green roof was one feature in the original design that could have proved
environmentally friendly and in the new proposal, it appears to be covered over by
additional concrete and metal. Environmental impact must be considered not just for the
nearby residents whose views will be blocked, but also for the green spaces that should
accompany this building. Certainly the green roof must not be abandoned. This was a
small concession to the community that made the new structure appealing and
sustainable. Even if the space shown in the new rendering suggests that an outdoor
space will continue to exist beneath the new layers of structure, in the shade, plants will
not grow and thrive. Without green spaces the young students who attend the private
school will not grow and thrive. 

683 West Victoria Park
Page 30 of 54



North Vancouver BC V7M0A2

Gillian@swervestudio.com

 
8K

Page 31 of 54



1 message

Thu, Dec 31, 2020 at 11:18 AM<>
To: sheryl.rivers, samantha@poonigroup.com
Cc: devel@cnv.org, planning@cnv.org

Good Morning Sheryl & Samantha; 

As solicited by your website, and recent mailout, I want to provide some feedback on the proposal for the 63 Mahon Ave
project in North Vancouver. 

I have no issue with the school being there, but my concern is doubling its size, and adding the 150 person venue, could
easily more than double the amount of vehicle traffic of students going to and from school everyday, and traffic related to
non-school events in the 150 person venue, in an area already congested traffic area. 

I believe this traffic congestion will also add to further impact and traffic issues at the surrounding intersections of Forbes
and 3rd, Chesterfield and West Esplanade, Mahon and 3rd, and Lonsdale and West Esplanade. 

It is for these reasons I am in opposition of the proposal to double this developments size. 

Respectfully submitted 

Graham Hawkins 
North Vancouver 

CC: City Of North Vancouver Planning and Development.

Page 32 of 54



1 message

Fri, Jan 8, 2021 at 11:13 AM<>
To: samantha@poonigroup.com

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

 

Page 33 of 54



1 message

Mon, Jan 4, 2021 at 3:50 PM<t>
To: samantha@poonigroup.com

Good Afternoon Samantha, 

I just wanted to add to the comment about the proposal for 63 Mahon.  

I feel it would be a grave error to add to the already approved proposal of 43.7Ft. I don’t believe we want the North Shore
to resemble Metrotown or Brentwood in Burnaby.   Keep the neighbourhood a community to be proud of, not a high rise
village. 

Regards, C. Hubbard

Page 34 of 54



Page 35 of 54



1 message

Tue, Jan 5, 2021 at 6:28 PM<sheryl.rivers>
To: Samantha Potter <samantha@poonigroup.com>

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message: 

 Jerry Guspie <> 
 January 5, 2021 at 5:18:17 PM PST 

 sheryl.riversconsulting@gmail.com 
  

I have submitted the online form at www.63mahon.com <http://www.63mahon.com> 
indicating that I am not in support of the proposed Amendment to the 
Development Permit for 63 Mahon. 

Following are my comments:   

* As a local resident, I do not feel the additional FSR and Height
being requested will improve the contextual fit of the project into the
surrounding neighbourhood.
* While the design calls for 4 storeys only, the actual height is
equivalent to a 9 storey building...much higher than the surrounding
existing buildings, and any of the new adjacent buildings on Esplanade.
* The building façade rises straight up from the street and
contributes little to the pedestrian experience, beyond shadowing and
blocking views of the north shore mountains.
* The additional floor area requested is to host special events for up
to 150 guests, in addition to the staff and students......yet is providing 
only 11 additional parking spaces, almost ½ km away.  These spaces would 
scarcely cover the needs of staff required to accommodate an event of that 
size.  Arguably, some event guests may use the Seabus and walk the ½ km from 
the terminal but, I suspect many will search out on street parking in the 
surrounding neighbourhood.  (Google Maps already includes a notice that 
"parking is usually not easy near this destination".   
* The original development allowed only 11 parking spaces, presumably
for staff, but makes minimal provisions for student drop off and pick up.
Parents picking up students from the nearby St Thomas Aquinas are already
creating traffic congestion in the area during morning and evening rush
hours and after hours school events.  Amending the Development Permit to
allow an Event Space to host an additional 150 individuals during or after
school hours will make matters worse for local residents.
* The amendment makes no mention of additional loading bay provisions
for deliveries or handling additional garbage and recycling generated by
event spaces.

Please confirm receipt of this email. 

Page 36 of 54



Thanks!! 

Jerry Guspie 

j

 
6K

Page 37 of 54



1 message

Fri, Jan 1, 2021 at 8:50 AM<>
To: sheryl.riversconsulting@gmail.com, samantha@poonigroup.com

Hi there,

We are residents of 503-118 Carrie Cates Crt and received a letter regarding 63 Mahon.
We are confused that on question 4 at the back, why is the building represented as 9 storeys high?
We took a look at the drawings on CNV's website. The peak is 96' high but level one is 31'6" high and the average grade
is 26'6" high.
Is this another letter seeking to stop this project? At least keep the facts straight!

Regards,
Joe and Mingmei

Page 38 of 54



1 message

Thu, Dec 31, 2020 at 12:44 AM<>
To: "samantha@poonigroup.com" <samantha@poonigroup.com>

It is rather deceptive looking at the rendering of the new building at 63 Mahon.  In fact the new private school sits on a
very small irregular lot and surrounded by West Quay and other residential buildings. 

The proposal to add another 1.5 storeys to accommodate an event space of approximately 5,000 sf with the capacity to
hold 150 individuals is clearly not appropriate for this site because:

1. The addition of 11 off site parking to the approved 11 on-site parking is definitely inadequate if the event space has
a 150 person capacity.

2. We need to consider the issue of traffic congestion due to attendees, as well as students parking along West 1st

and Mahon Streets which is primarily a residential area.  There is not a lot of street parking in the vicinity and there
is no room to create more parking spaces.

3. There is no bus servicing this area of Esplanade and Mahon Ave.  The seabus terminal is quite a distance away.
4. The addition does not integrate with the design of the approved building.  It appears to be 2 separate spaces - the

school and the event space.  Perhaps the intent is to operate as 2 independent spaces so that the event space is
available to other users during business/school hours as well as evenings to generate more revenue for the owner.
There is also the issue of traffic noise during the evenings.

5. Is the roof garden open to the event attendees during evenings?  If so, then there is potential noise concern.
6. The new height would probably block the view to the west for some of the West Quay units facing Mahon Ave.

I strongly believe that the City of North Vancouver should not proceed with the rezoning amendment.

Ching-Lei

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

Page 39 of 54



1 message

Thu, Dec 31, 2020 at 3:53 PM<>
To: samantha@poonigroup.com
Cc: External link <djohnson@cnv.org>

I received with my mail today an invitation to comment on the application to revise the rezoning for the subject address.

In response to the questions on that form:

1. I did not receive information in the mail about the revised proposal, from CNV or anyone else.
2. I did not know about, nor did I attend, the Virtual Developer Session on 12 Nov 2020.
3. I do not support this proposal.
4. I do not think the proposed 9 storey height is appropriate for this location.
5. I do not think an event space is appropriate for this location.

The proposal as laid out in the notice is confusing and contradictory.  It says in three places (including question 4 above)
that the application is for a height of approximately 9 storeys, but the summary states “Total Storeys  4” and the illustrated
“Proposed concept in 2020” shows a building of 4 storeys.  This discrepancy of 5 storeys is very concerning, and
suspicious.  A 4-storey structure at this busy intersection might work, but a 9-storey structure would be completely out of
character for that neighbourhood.

There is no public transit serving that location, and a total of 11 parking spaces would be too few for a 4-storey structure,
much less for a 9-storey one.

The Esplanade/Forbes traffic route is a very busy one, added to which are the coincident intersections with Mahon and
the southern road providing access to BCIT, the large office building at the corner, the marina, and the residences on the
Reserve.  This is a particularly bad location for a school, which will inevitably involve vehicular pick-up and drop-off
congestion, even at the 4-storey size.  Doubling its size, and then adding an event space on top, will exacerbate to an
untenable degree.

In response to the request to let you “know if there is anything that could be considered … that might make” me more
supportive, my response is to leave the existing 2017 approval unchanged.

Ken Harrison

33 Chesterfield Place – 1303

North Vancouver, BC

V7M 3K4

Page 40 of 54



1 message

Sat, Jan 2, 2021 at 6:05 PM<>
To: samantha@poonigroup.com

 
   

   

 
 

 

   
    

   
  

  

Page 41 of 54



1 message

Fri, Jan 8, 2021 at 2:01 PM<brad@lamoureuxarchitect.ca>
To: Leslie Watson <>
Cc: David Johnson <djohnson@cnv.org>, samantha@poonigroup.com, planning@cnv.org

Hi Leslie,

The 5 stories includes the buried Parking Garage
We do this because in our Code Consultants' report, the building is described in this way in terms of life- safety strategies.
The project is a 4 story Building 

Regards,
Brad

3392 Marine Drive
West Vancouver BC
Canada V7V 1M9

brad@lamoureuxarchitect.ca
www.lamoureuxarchitect.ca

On Jan 8, 2021, at 1:36 PM, Leslie Watson <> wrote:

Page 42 of 54



mailto:djohnson@cnv.org

samantha@poonigroup.com
63 Mahon Avenue

https://letstalk.cnv.org/63-mahon-avenue

djohnson@cnv.org mailto:djohnson@cnv.org

www.cnv.org http://www.cnv.org/

samantha@poonigroup.com
63 Mahon Avenue

Page 43 of 54



mailto:brad@lamoureuxarchitect.ca

djohnson@cnv.org samantha@poonigroup.com
63 Mahon Avenue

3392 Marine Drive
West Vancouver BC
Canada V7V 1M9

brad@lamoureuxarchitect.ca mailto:brad@lamoureuxarchitect.ca
www.lamoureuxarchitect.ca http://www.lamoureuxarchitect.ca

lewatson@shaw.ca mailto:lewatson@shaw.ca

Page 44 of 54



3-241 4th Street East
North Vancouver, BC V7L 1J1

Page 45 of 54



1 message

Fri, Jan 8, 2021 at 4:27 PM<>
To: "samantha@poonigroup.com" <samantha@poonigroup.com>

2. Did not attend the virtual developer info session.

3. I do not support this proposal..

4. The proposed height of approximately 96 feet is not appropriate for this location.  It will block the
view for many residents living in the condo's above west 1st street.

5. No an event space is not appropriate for this location.  It should be left as a residential area
only.

6. There is not adequate parking available in the area currently.  With the recent change to this
neighbourhood with West Quay condominium building and other condo's in the area there isn't
enough parking.
Events should be held elsewhere the Centennial Theatre on Lonsdale is suitable for holding
events.

Thanks,

Marie Jones

Page 46 of 54



1 message

Thu, Dec 31, 2020 at 9:28 AM<>
To: "samantha@poonigroup.com" <samantha@poonigroup.com>

Hello Samantha, 

Thank you for sending out the proposal for 63 Mahon.   

I filled in a questionnaire online, was unable to leave my comments there.  

I would like to point out; the proposal is for a 13 grade private institution with only 11 parking spots?  I understand there
will be another lot a 450m away.  Why not dig down?  Reduce your footprint?  It may add additional stress on my
neighborhood parking.   

My biggest concern is the increased height.  It is way too high!  You will be blocking my natural light and view.  There is no
way I can support anything near that height.   

Thank you 

Matthew Scheffer 

Sent from my iPad

Page 47 of 54



1 message

Tue, Jan 5, 2021 at 12:20 PM<> To: 
samantha@poonigroup.com

Name: Paul Cooper

Email: Address: 417 15th St W, 

North Van Signed: Paul Cooper! 

Info from city: no

Virtual Developer session: no

Support proposal: yes

Height appropriate: yes

Event space appropriate: yes

Comments:

1. The location is transitional, e.g. right on the border of office/industrial & multi-story residential & low-
rise residential and also other schools. Hence, arguments about “appropriate use” could go any
direction, but my view is that it is a great location for this kind of development.

2. Event spaces like this would likely be critical to assisting the school to self-fund sustainably for many
years, which would be admirable and should be encouraged. In comparison, the downsides (slightly
higher structure and slightly more traffic from time to time) seem less significant.

Page 48 of 54



1 message

<sheryl.riversconsulting@gmail.com> Tue, Jan 5, 2021 at 2:32 PM
To: Samantha Potter <samantha@poonigroup.com>

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message: 

 Robert Wilmot <> 
 January 5, 2021 at 2:28:42 PM PST 

 sheryl.riversconsulting@gmail.com 
  

Hello Sheryl. 
I received the "Rezoning Text Amendment" for the above in my mailbox within the past
few days.  Sure doesn't leave much time between then and the "Comments" return date
of January 8.  Regardless.   

I have completed and returned the On-Line form, but I'm disappointed that apart from
allowing for the ticking off a few boxes, the On-Line form does not provide space for
written comments.  An email, this, has to be completed.  A one step process would
have been appreciated.  However, onto my comments about the Rezoning application.

I am against doubling the height of this building and changing the plan.  I have to
wonder if the designers were being fully transparent when they submitted the original
and approved rezoning application in February 2017?  Had neither the firm nor the
college not given thought to an event space that would double the height of the building
prior to submission? Why would they wait until excavation has commenced before
submitting a further rezoning application?    Was the thinking that if they applied for a
proposed height of 96 feet they would be turned down, so perhaps it would be better to
wait until shovels were in the ground before submitting the real application.  I have no
idea how legitimate my questions are, but I am left wondering.  

I am aware that when the City approved the plan in 2017 part of the rationale would be
that the new site could serve more students living in the local area, though at a current
cost of $17,500 per academic year tuition fee, a $10,000 debenture while the child is in
the school and a non refundable $375 application/admission fee, I think the new school
will really only be available to students coming from homes with high incomes and as
the college does not operate on a school catchment  basis, those students will be
coming from other parts of the Lower Mainland, and elsewhere, while children from low
and middle income homes in the Lower Lonsdale area will need to continue to access
overcrowded public schools that are not within walking distance. 

Going from 2.5 storeys/50 feet to 6 storeys/90 feet high does not get my support.  Now
if it was to provide some subsidized/low cost housing for families and seniors, which is

Page 49 of 54



something North Vancouver badly needs, I would support that.   

Thanks for the opportunity to provide comment. 

Robert Wilmot 
435 11th Street East 
North Vancouver 
V7L 2H3 

Page 50 of 54



1 message

Sat, Jan 9, 2021 at 11:15 PM<>
To: samantha@poonigroup.com

We Soussan and Jerry 1806-188 Esplanade E, North Vancouver, BC, are not supporting the proposal for increasing
height of the building 63 Mahon Avenue let alone the event space on top. 
Lower Lonsdale and especially Esplanade Avenue is already flooded with too many condos. There are too many people,
dogs, too many cars, bikes, heavy trucks, traffic issues, and not enough parking that is already unbearable for the
community. Please stop adding more condos and bringing more population to the lower Lonsdale area. The City of North
Vancouver kept adding to the density of the all condo buildings, already ruined the Lower Lonsdale, please don't make it
worse.

Thanks

Page 51 of 54



1 message

Fri, Jan 1, 2021 at 5:35 PM<
To: "samantha@poonigroup.com" <samantha@poonigroup.com>

Hi Sheryl,

I have been living and working @ 306 West 1st Street and have been watching the development going on directly beside
63 Mahon; which I think is very much over the top when compared to other developments in the area. The development
beside 63 Mahon has 23 parking spots already very little parking on site for a 50 unit rental plus 1 full floor of commercial
currently being built. When I went to this site meeting I asked both the city planner and developer is they had planed any
space for delivery or moving in/out they had not and simply stated they would do this in the alley where the school is being
built.

The city planner seemed to think everyone will just use smart rental cars or transit...as he drove to the site meeting.  Well;
I see these rental car service providers being fewer and parking right now is hard to get for my visitors let alone any new
residents or a school that’s being planned. This added  development is irresponsible for such a small space in which they
only have 7 parking spaces. Most school kids get dropped off and picked up by a parent and will put enough stress on our
neighborhood.  

I’m not a fan of restrictions but this extra development is not needed and really hope it doesn’t proceed.

JMHO

Steve McIsaac

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

Page 52 of 54



Page 53 of 54



1 message

<sheryl.riversconsulting@gmail.com> Mon, Jan 4, 2021 at 11:00 PM
To: Samantha Potter <samantha@poonigroup.com>

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message: 

 Susan Ennis <> 
 January 4, 2021 at 8:51:04 PM PST 

 sheryl.riversconsulting@gmail.com 
  

With yet another project beginning its construction do you not think or care we’ve just about hit our threshold
of  ‘construction fatigue’ involving ALOT more traffic in our neighbourhood, traffic interruptions, the noise of it
all from 0700 hrs until ????!! 
We do not need another event Center here, we are served well with the Shipyards, hotels with event
centres, the Quay. 
You are taking away our peace, you think offering up 11 REALLY off site parking spaces is going to appease
our ever growing parking needs? 
Our accident rate is high enough around here what is your traffic projection for our area even though it is
already 5 years behind realistically.  You cannot even accommodate your teaching staff parking
requirements and we won’t discuss student pick ups. 
You are going to be shadowing what little sunshine we get on such a limited basis with what you are
currently building on such a small site. 

Susan I. Ennis 
Sent from my iPhone

Page 54 of 54







MISSION OF SCOUTING
To help develop well rounded youth, better prepared for success in the world.

Page 1 of 2



September 1, 2020 

To Whom It May Concern, 

This letter is to express that Scouts Canada would be interested in being considered as a user group for the 
new facility located at 300 Esplanade W, North Vancouver, BC.  After having a discussion with Ryan  Deakin at Havaal 
Real Estate Group , I shared with him that this type of opportunity could support many of our local groups and be a great 
place for our youth to use as part of  our Scouting program. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if there is any additional support I can provide at 

Doug Smith 
Operations Manager, Western Canada 
Scouts Canada 

Page 2 of 2















141 WEST 14TH STREET / NORTH VANCOUVER / BC / V7M 1H9
T 604 985 7761 / F 604 985 9417 / CNV.ORG         

NOTICE OF
PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that Council will consider:
Zoning Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8819
to amend the current Comprehensive Development 

original 2.5 storey approval, and to increase the 

private school.  Eleven vehicle parking stalls are 
provided in the underground parkade, with another 

location.
As City Hall remains closed to the public, the Public 
Hearing will be held electronically via “WebEx”.  All 
persons who believe their interest in property may 

an opportunity to speak at the Public Hearing and/
or by email or written submission.  To ensure all 

Hearing, certain deadlines have been implemented.
  Include your 

name and address and send to input@cnv.org no 
later than 12:00 noon on Monday, March 1, 2021.
For written submissions:  Include your name and 
address and mail or deposit into a drop-box at 
City Hall no later than 4:00 pm on Friday, Feb. 
26, 2021, as documents are subject to a 24-hour 

To speak at the Public Hearing by phone:  Pre-

PublicHearings.  Persons can also pre-register 

to you.  All pre-registration must be submitted no 
later than 12:00 noon on Monday, March 1, 2021.
Speakers who have not pre-registered will also 
have an opportunity to provide input at cnv.org/
PublicHearings.  Call-in details will be displayed on-
screen at the Public Hearing (watch web livestream).  

speakers time to phone in.

Council.
The proposed Zoning Amendment Bylaw, 

Please direct any inquiries to David Johnson, 

WHO: Lamoureux Architect Incorporated
WHAT: Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 
 Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8819
WHERE: 63 Mahon Avenue
WHEN: Monday, March 1, 2021 at 5:30 pm
HOW: View the meeting online at 
 cnv.org/LiveStreaming

306

31
5

267

326

327

224

24
4

308

250

270

307

31
1

275

33
9

277

274

25

233

W 2nd St

W 1st St

Fo
rb

es
 A

ve

M
ah

on
 A

ve

Se
m

isc
h 

Av
e

W Esplanade

63 Mahon Ave

63

W
 Esplanade

Squamish
Nation



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8819 Document: 2014104-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8819 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8819” (Brad Lamoureux / Lamoureux Architect 
Incorporated, 63 Mahon Avenue, CD-684 Text Amendment). 

 
2. Part 11 of Division V:  Comprehensive Development Regulations of Document “A” of “Zoning 

Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby amended by: 
 

A. Amending the following section to Section 1100, removing “CD-684 Comprehensive 
Development 684 Zone” in its entirety and replacing it as follows: 

 
“CD-684 Comprehensive Development 684 Zone” 

 
In the CD-684 Zone, permitted Uses, regulations for permitted Uses, regulations for 
the size, shape and siting of Buildings and Structures and required Off-Street Parking 
shall be as in the LL-3 Zone, except that: 

 
(1) One Principal Building shall be permitted on one Lot; 

 
(2) The permitted Principal Use on the Lot shall be limited to: 

 
(a) Assembly Use; 
(b) Accessory Off-Street Parking; 

 
(3) The maximum Gross Floor Area shall be 1.20 FSR, provided that this amount 

may be increased by exceeding the ASHRAE 90.1, 2016 standards by 14% to a 
maximum of 2.60 FSR; 

 
(4) Section 6A04(3) shall be varied to allow a lot coverage of 82% above the second 

Storey; 
 

(5) Section 6A04(4) shall be varied to allow a Principal Building height of no more 
than 19.9 metres (65.3 feet); 

 
(6) Section 6A04(5)(a) shall be varied to allow a zero setback to the Rear Lot Line 

or a flanking lane; 
 

(7) Section 6A04(6) shall be waived; 
 

(8) Section 906(4)(c)(i) shall be varied to allow access for off-street parking off of 
Mahon Avenue; 

 
(9) Section 906(5)(b) shall be varied to allow a minimum driveway width of 4.0 

metres (13.12 feet); 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8819 Document: 2014104-v1 

(10) Section 908(8) shall be varied to support a minimum of 11 off-street parking 
stalls; 

 
(11) Section 1001 shall be varied to remove the requirement for an off-street Loading 

Space; 
 

(12) All exterior finishes, design and landscaping shall be approved by the Advisory 
Design Panel. 

 
 

READ a first time on the 1st day of February, 
2021. 

READ a second time on the 1st day of February, 
2021. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 


	1 Agenda�
	2 Minutes�
	Proc - World Lymphedema Day�
	PH - 63 Mahon Ave
	Report - 63 Mahon
	1-Map - 63 Mahon�
	2-Summary - 63 Mahon�
	3-Plans - 63 Mahon�
	4-Description of Addition - 63 Mahon�
	5-Transportation Study - 63 Mahon�
	6-Consultation - 63 Mahon�

	Staff PP - 63 Mahon�
	Applicant PP - 63 Mahon�
	Submissions - 63 Mahon Ave�
	Notice - 63 Mahon�

	3 Bylaw 8819�



